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The Akauntan Nasional welcomes original and previously unpublished contributions which are of inte-
rest to accountants, executives and scholars. Manuscripts should cover domestic or international accounting
developments. Lifestyle articles of interest to accountants are also welcomed.

Manuscripts should be submitted in English or Bahasa Malaysia and range from 2,500 to 5,000 words
(double-spaced, typed pages). They should be submitted in hardcopy and diskette (3.5 inch) form in Microsoft
Word or Lotus Wordpro. Manuscripts are subject to a review procedure and the Editor reserves the right to
make amendments which may be appropriate prior to publication.

Letters to the Editor
A key element in the world of publishing is what readers have to say.

We want to hear from you on just about anything that appears in
each issue of Akauntan Nasional. Why not drop us a line now?
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Ido not want to be found guilty of closing the chapter too early on the US-led inva-

sion, and the subsequent occupation of Iraq — which I feel will be long, messy

and ugly — but life has to go on.

At the risk of being described as insensitive, we need to carry on and that notwith-

standing the unwelcome visit of the killer disease SARS (Severe Acute Respiratory

Syndrome).

The thing about SARS is that no one really knows what it is — how it kills, infects or

transmits. The best we have are educated guesses. One thing is for sure, SARS is

scaring a lot of people and the fear is slowly working its way into the economy. Al-

ready, some clever people are trying to postulate and quantify the impact it will have

on the economy, which it will surely have.

Some research houses have begun shaving the growth forecasts of many regional

economies. In Malaysia, tourism is the leading indicator of the SARS’ influence. While

no number has been disclosed on arrivals, outbound travel to SARS-affected coun-

tries — Singapore, China and Hong Kong, among others — has dropped by about 50

per cent. Hotel occupancy is falling, while a number of exhibitions and conventions

have been postponed. Malaysia Airlines and other regional carriers have cut down on

some services.

In fact, some countries are keeping people from SARS-affected countries at bay by

advising them not to even bother coming over. Business, especially trans-border ac-

tivities, will surely be affected, too, as business travel gets hit. The retail trade, which

has benefited from the growth in tourism, may have to rely more on Malaysians now.

But Malaysians are not big spenders as the West Asians, who over the past year or

so have made this country their honeymoon destination of choice. At the end of the

day, our gross domestic product may be affected as the services sector, to which

tourism has been a major contributor, suffers the impact. The services sector has

been the star performer for a while now, with many predicting it to perform better in

the future. Sure, SARS is dangerous; in fact, it is fatal.

Aside from hiding in our rooms, mask over mouth, latex gloves on, there is not

much we can do to make sure that we do not catch it. And of course, this SARS thing

should not be taken lightly. But we should not be paralysed by it either. Sooner or

later, the world will find a way to contain this microscopic beast. Perhaps, we should

adopt the attitudes of the Iraqis’, or at least the ones I saw on TV, towards life. I see

them trying to lead a normal life despite knowing very well that bombs may be

dropping on them at any time.
 Editor

THE SARS WAR:
WAR and SARS Continue to Plague Us
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NOTICE TO PRACTISING MEMBERS

CHANGE IN WORKING HOURS FOR THE STAFF OF
SURUHANJAYA SYARIKAT MALAYSIA

With reference to circular No. 2/2003 in
respect of the change in the working

hours for SSM’s staff and the operation of its
counters, the Institute would like to highlight
an error in respect of paragraph (ii) under the
table entitled “Minggu Kedua & Keempat”

wherein, the title “WAKTU BEKERJA” should
be read as “WAKTU URUSAN KAUNTER”.

 A copy of the amended detailed schedule
of the change in the working hours of SSM
is reprinted and attached for members’ atten-
tion.

PEMBERITAHUAN

KEPADA SEMUA PELANGGAN SSM,
Adalah dimaklumkan bahawa berkuatkuasa pada 1 April 2003, waktu bekerja bagi pejabat
ini adalah ditetapkan seperti berikut :

i) Bagi Ibu Pejabat SSM dan negeri-negeri di mana hari Ahad adalah hari rehat mingguan:

   Minggu Pertama dan Ketiga (Cuti Rehat Sabtu)

HARI WAKTU BEKERJA WAKTU REHAT

Isnin-Khamis 08.15pagi-04.45ptg. 01.00tgh.-02.00ptg.

Jumaat 08.15pagi-04.45ptg. 12.15tgh.-02.45ptg.***

Sabtu 08.15pagi-01.05ptg. —

HARI WAKTU URUSAN KAUNTER WAKTU REHAT

Isnin-Khamis 08.15pagi-04.00ptg. —

Jumaat 08.15pagi-04.00ptg. 12.15tgh.-02.45ptg.***
Sabtu 08.15pagi-12.20tgh. —

Nota :  *** Waktu rehat bagi Sabah & Sarawak pada hari Jumaat adalah dari 11.30 pagi-2.00 ptg.

ii) Bagi pejabat SSM di negeri-negeri di mana hari Jumaat adalah hari rehat mingguan :

Minggu Pertama dan Ketiga (Cuti Rehat Sabtu)

HARI WAKTU BEKERJA WAKTU REHAT

Ahad-Khamis 08.15pagi-04.30ptg. 01.00tgh.-02.00ptg.

HARI WAKTU URUSAN KAUNTER WAKTU REHAT

Ahad-Khamis 08.15pagi-03.45ptg. —

Minggu Kedua & Keempat

HARI WAKTU BEKERJA WAKTU REHAT

Sabtu-Rabu 08.15pagi-04.30ptg. 01.00tgh.-02.00ptg.

Khamis 08.15pagi-12.40tgh.

HARI WAKTU URUSAN KAUNTER WAKTU REHAT

Sabtu-Rabu 08.15pagi-03.45ptg. —

Khamis 08.15pagi-11.55pagi —

Segala perhatian dan kerjasama anda amat dihargai. Terima kasih.
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C O V E R
COST OF WAR

T he year 2003 was supposed
to be the start of a much-
awaited recover y for the

world’s economy. At least this was the
consensus view of industry players and
observers as we ended year 2002. Indeed,
early signs of a recovery were visible
towards the later part of last year as various
segments of the industry experienced

The Cost
of WAR By Iszudin Mohd Amin

improvements, albeit only marginally.
Alas, the promising outlook fast

vaporised. In fact, much of the promised
recovery has already gone up in smoke, in
tandem with the destruction of Iraqi cities
inflicted by the US-led invading forces.
Many analysts are of the opinion that the
invasion of Iraq is likely to lead towards
another long-term conflict in the Middle

East. By all accounts, this would be the last
thing that the global economy needs,
which incidentally is still smarting from the
devastating effects that the previous years
have brought about.

Hence, as long as the world’s economy
remains weak or uncertain at best, it is
hard to imagine how business activities and
the economy in general can ever return to
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WAR :  Effect on Malaysia
Government ministries are being directed
to compile comprehensive reports on how
the war might affect the sectors under their
purview.

Malaysia, as the 18th largest trading nation in the world, cannot isolate
itself from the war in Iraq. But we can insulate ourselves from
war’s possible ill effects on our economy by a change in policies, by

introducing a strong stimulus package to power stronger economic growth and to
make better income distribution a matter of high priority.

Already, Malaysia has taken the first step in anticipating the situation, with
government ministries being directed to compile comprehensive reports on how
the war might affect the sectors under their purview.

As acting Prime Minister Datuk Seri Abdullah Ahmad Badawi has rightly said,
such preparations will help the Government remain one step ahead in dealing with
the possible effects of the War on the domestic economy. We must be pro- active
and forward-looking in dealing with any war-related economic problems, so as not
to be caught off-guard by, or overreact to, the unexpected.

Among the first sectors to be hit may be transportation and tourism. Shipping
and airline rates as well as transport and travel insurance premiums will rise with a
war going on, and it would be important to monitor the impact of rising transportation
costs on other sectors. Of critical importance is up-to-date information, assessing
the effects and then deciding the measures necessary to mitigate those effects.
This is especially so as ours is an open economy and we must be quick to act.

The war against Iraq is a reminder that it is always a good strategy to diversify
our export markets and sources of foreign investment, as well as of foreign exchange
earnings such as tourism. Over-dependence on any one source is always risky.

its former glory. Such is the domino effect
of a globalised economy. The war is having
an impact on every corner of the global
economy, ever y sector, ever y single
business. And it is undermining sales.
Business spending is declining.

“The war has caused a negative impact
to the global economy,” says one observer.
“The economic situation of certain countries
in this region were already struggling prior
to the commencement of the conflict in Iraq.
The longer the war goes, these countries
will suffer further”, he adds.

He is not the only person who has voiced
his fears on the possibility that the war
against Iraq will be a prolonged one.
Another observer indicates that the war in
Iraq could raise oil prices to a dangerously
high level. Already the world economy is
suffering with the sharp fall in tourism, the
near collapse of some international airlines,
the volatile prices for other commodities
and the depressing effect on consumption.

In difficult times, most companies are
likely to tighten their expenditure and hold
back their expansion plans. Also,
investments tend to be among the first to
be shelved.

Economists agree.   The International
Monetary Fund (IMF) in a recent statement
stated that “prolonged uncertainty could
keep risk aversion at a high level, depress
financial markets and reinforce the headwind
against global economic recovery”.

On the other side of the coin, though,
post-war Iraq will definitely need massive
rebuilding - that is if there are enough
Iraqis who survive the killings. Post war,
Iraq will be in need of a lot of things, but
that should not be mistaken for a rise in
demand or as an indication of any sort of
global market recovery.

Clearly, businesses have a lot of
opportunities in this “rebuilding” of Iraq
but as some analysts have commented,
these opportunities are likely to go to a
select group of US companies. Ironic as it
sounds, but the US could come out smiling
as this new “growth” area could be a boost
to the sagging US economy.

How convenient … it certainly gives a
new definition to the expression of
“creating your own opportunities”. If we go
by market trends, growth in the US
economy will have a positive impact on

“prolonged uncertainty could
keep risk aversion at a high

level, depress financial markets
and reinforce the headwind

against global economic
recovery”.

AN

other markets. Then again, things may
change. It is difficult to predict the full
consequences of a war. On the local scene,
industry observers and players appear to
be more optimistic.

Perhaps this stems from the fact that over
the last year or two, most businesses have
been depending on domestic spending to
remain afloat. Thus, the impact of the current
war on the local economy may not be so hard.
Certainly, the stimulus packages introduced
by the Government after the 1997 downturn
shielded us from the full-blown impact of the

crisis. With the announcement of the latest
stimulus packages, it is only natural that local
businesses tend to feel just as shielded now
from the full impact of the global economic
uncertainties.

Anyway, let’s return to the bigger
picture. We must remember that  stimulus
packages, are always meant to be
temporary measures and therefore they
will expire some time in the future. What
will happen after that is hard to guess.

Maybe the Government will introduce
more of such packages, but where will the
money come from? Raising funds is not
going to be easy. Digging into the country’s
reserves may not be a good move. In a
broader scope, we can’t rely on domestic
consumption forever. Not that we should.
We have come to an era of globalisation
and to have any chance of long-term
prosperity, we have to play in the global
marketplace. Of course, we have to bear
the pains to get the gains.
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C O V E R

How to Plan for a

Now that the US is  at war with Iraq,

what should businesses expect?

 By Joseph Anthony

1

Let’s be optimists here. Let’s as-
sume that we’re looking at a
short war — something along
the lines of the Gulf War. Andrew

J. Birol remembers his own business expe-
rience then. In 1991, he was Director of New
England Business Service, a seller of busi-
ness forms and supplies to small businesses.

The company was preparing to launch a
new product line of stationery and acces-
sories to florists. “We had a couple hundred
telemarketers and customer service reps
trained and ready to take orders. More
than 40,000 catalogs had been sent out,”
says Birol, now President of Birol Growth
Consulting of Solon, Ohio.

But just as the product line was launched,
Operation Desert Storm unfolded. Com-
merce for the next few weeks pretty much
collapsed. The product line eventually re-
covered, but Birol learned that much of
what happens in business is out of a
company’s control. And even though the
Gulf War was proclaimed a rousing success,
the US economy still fell into a recession.

Here are seven suggestions that Birol
and other experts have for businesses dur-
ing wartime.

Be prepared to experience a
drop in business

We’ve gotten used to round-the-clock
battle news — even when there are no
battles and not much news. If Americans are
glued to their TV sets to keep up with the
turmoil, they’re likely not going to be out
shopping, spending or doing much else.

Hope for something short,
which many say could boost
the economy

3

4

People sometimes cite World War II as
an example of how a war can actually stimu-
late an economy. “That was unique —
World War II was a phenomenal thing be-
cause we had to build an industrial com-
plex,” Birol says. “That’s not the case here.
At best, you hope for a shor t,
technologically-oriented victory that doesn’t
drain resources out of the economy.”

Figure that the longer it goes,
the worse things could get

If the US invades Iraq with the goal of
taking over Baghdad and the country, a
short-term conflict could become a long-
term commitment. That could take the mo-
mentum out of any war-related rebound,
and force businesses to reconsider any
commitments to expansion.

“Even a temporary military failure or
damage to Iraq’s oil fields or infrastructure
could send [oil] prices to US$35 a barrel
or higher,” says Antonin Rusek, an associ-
ate professor of economics at Susquehanna
University in Selinsgrove, Pa. “This could
increase both household costs and produc-
tion costs in the US. The result would be
lower consumer confidence, lower demand
and probably a recession.”

Don’t try to discount your
way through a slowdown

Lower prices aren’t going to motivate
clients or customers who aren’t running
their own businesses at full-steam or who
simply are not in the mood to spend money.

When there’s reduced demand, price-cut-
ting doesn’t seem to pay. “People who are
going to buy are going to buy not on price
but out of necessity or escapism,” Birol says.

Translation :  You’ll be able to sell people
the things they must have, whether those
are physical necessities or emotional needs.
Restaurateurs may be in for a rough time.
But movie theaters might do just fine — as
long as they’re not screening war movies.

5

7

Don’t try to whip up new
programmes

Instead, focus on service. “Get back to what
you like doing and what you do well,” Birol says.
“Assurance, stability, reliability, consistency —
these are the things that your customer base
is going to want. You bring a lot of credibility
by doing what you do well, rather than trying
to expand into a new area.” But see No. 6.

Do consider new programmes
aimed at the stay-at-home market

Even though the US may not be under at-
tack, people are still drawn to their homes
by the perception of a crisis. “Remember that
after 9/11, consumer demand dropped ter-
ribly,” Rusek says. “Peoria wasn’t in danger,
but people in Peoria stopped buying sofas.”

“Cocooning will go on unabated as long
as our perception of our individual freedom
and our ability to go out is under attack,”
Birol says. “Look, right now I’m planning
to go to Cancun with my wife and daugh-
ter. Am I as eager to do that when the FBI
is warning people about threats that it
won’t explain or define? Of course not.”

Learn to expect the unexpected

A stunningly quick victory, a horrific set-
back and other unanticipated events —
they all could whipsaw consumers and the
economy in one direction or another.

“It is important to consider psychological
impacts,” Rusek says. “Things always go
wrong in the military. If you put troops on the
ground in Iraq and they get somehow stuck
there, you could have a very negative reac-
tion. That’s long term. Short term, remem-
ber that oil markets tend to panic before ev-
eryone understands what has happened.”

At a certain point, you cannot plan; you can
only be ready to respond. “Economics plus war
collectively add up to psychology on steroids,”
Birol says. “If people don’t feel confident, they’ll
stock up on stuff just because it feels good to
be able to do it. [But] they probably won’t be
throwing a lot of big parties.”

Note : Joseph Anthony is a financial writer
and enrolled tax agent who advises small
businesses and sole proprietors as part of
his tax preparation and planning practice
in Portland, Oregon, USA.
email: Josephthetaxguy@hotmail.com

AN

(or Long One)
SHORT WAR

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○



7Akauntan NasionalApril 2003

Economists, analysts and small-
business experts are using the
U-word — “uncertainty” — in
describing the most-distressing

aspect of what lies ahead. Even so, they
believe the resulting economic impact of a
war will not be significant long-term (bad
or good), and urge businesses to resolve
to get through these tough times. They feel
the US is in better shape today to endure
the economic turmoil normally caused by
a war, police action or whatever you want
to call it.

Here are 10 general tips for getting your
business through uncertain times, compiled
from experts interviewed for this article. As

you will notice, they don’t advise hiding out
in a cave, or even dwell on retrenching.

Stay as informed as possible about
economic indicators and relevant

world news
Knowledge is power in uncertain times;

you need to make decisions with the best
information available. Consumer confi-
dence, consumer spending and retail sales
reports are good barometers of the con-
sumer mood. Layoffs at major corporations
have ripple effects through industries and
regions; rumours and announcements
should be duly noted. Kneko Burney,
Director of e-business research at In-Stat

MDR, pays particular attention to statistics
regarding freight costs and interstate
transpor tation, especially during the
holiday shopping season. Strong shipping
volumes will be a healthy sign, she says.

Take command of your costs
Small businesses can control spending

much easier than large businesses. Now
is the time to find areas to streamline, re-
examine your spending priorities and jus-
tify new hiring, travel plans and major pur-
chases. Yes, you may want to put off some
initiatives until next year. Web
conferencing and videoconferencing with
customers may help you save on travel
costs, if a face-to-face meeting is not criti-
cal. However, don’t stop all travel or other
spending, or you may do a lot more harm
than good to your business. For example,
don’t cancel an important business trip
because you are afraid to get on a plane.
In the aftermath of the attacks, air travel is
likely to be as safe as it’s ever been.

           Don’t Let SabRe
Rattling SHAKE
YOUR BUSINESS

 By Monte Enbysk
A weak economy drones on. A war continues. If you’re a
small-business owner, how do you deal with both?

“Economists, analysts and small-business experts are using the
U-word — “uncertainty” — in describing the most-distressing
aspect of what lies ahead. Even so, they believe the resulting

economic impact of a war will not be significant long-term … and
urge businesses to resolve to get through these tough times”.
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Manage your cash flow aggressively
 This point is forever made, in good

times and bad. But poor cash flow is one
of the biggest reasons businesses go un-
der. When times get tough, customers pay
less promptly, and you need to become
smarter and more aggressive about collect-
ing the money you are owed. But also, you
need to find ways to prod clients gently into
paying up, without angering them. Be po-
lite. Meanwhile, pay your own bills on time.

Don’t overlook good
opportunities for loans or bargains

Now might be a good time to negotiate
a long-term loan or a line of credit for your
business, says Bruce D. Phillips, the
NFIB’s senior fellow for regulatory stud-
ies. “We’ve just had another rate cut by the
Federal Reserve, and financial services
firms have money to lend,” particularly if
you are expanding, he says. Because of a
downturn in commercial real estate, it also
might be a good time to negotiate a lease
on your office or retail space, Phillips says.
(On the other hand, if you are small and
suffering, now might be a time to negoti-
ate out of your office lease — and move
your business to smaller, less-expensive
quarters or your home, he adds.)

Upgrade your technology security
(and start backing up your data!)

The steps outlined are smart, simple and
economical. Find additional tips for back-
ing up your data. The war on terrorism is
likely to bring about increased “cyber-ter-
rorism,” including viruses, most agree. You
don’t want to lose valuable business data
because you failed to take the necessary
precautions. Get help from your informa-
tion-technology consultant or value-added
reseller, if necessary.

C O V E R

Upgrade your tech skills, and
make better use of the Web

PC prices have fallen dramatically.
Internet growth has stalled, but is des-
tined to rev up again. If you have fallen
behind your tech-savvy competitors, now
may be the chance to play catch-up. You
can upgrade your skills and your system,
and get your own website for bargain
prices. In time, using the Web for sales
and marketing can save you time and
money. “Many small businesses are still
not using the Web yet, or have not made
much of an investment,” says the NFIB’s
Phillips. “With Internet growth taking a
pause, it allows them to get up to speed
technologically.”

Look into
business-disruption insurance

Small businesses throughout the country
were impacted by the terrorist attacks.
Because air travel was halted and restricted
for several days, many business owners
were away longer than expected. They lost
valuable business time and revenue; in
many cases, their businesses remained
closed for that time. With business-disrup-
tion insurance, you may be covered for such
losses, as well as for hotel and meal costs if
you are stranded. Same if your business
suffers a technology meltdown and you
can’t work. Such insurance can be obtained
through the NFIB and selected carriers.

It’s an employers’ market again;
don’t be afraid to hire (or fire) people

We’ve talked about bargains in technol-
ogy; that goes double for job candidates
right now. A lot of smart, talented people
are looking for work, many of them victims
of corporate downsizings or company shut-
downs. The labour pool is as good as it may
get for some time. But, on the other hand,
maybe you need to cut staff. That is unfor-
tunate, but certainly a reality in difficult
times. Have you done your best to cross-
train your employees, make the best use
of your employees and exhaust all other
options? If so, make the layoffs as humane
and painless as possible. Provide some
general hints to the possibility of job cuts
in advance (to avoid too much surprise and
rage), then take action swiftly and grace-
fully. Provide a decent severance package.
Then move on.

Be visible — and patriotic
Use any extra time you may have to pro-

mote your business. Volunteering your
time to business organizations and chari-
table causes, donating your products and
services, getting involved in community
events and supporting community activi-
ties all build goodwill that can benefit your
business. Get your employees to help.
Show pride in your company and your
community. Wave your company flag —
and your national flag — wherever you
can.

Maintain your sense of humanity
 “Many people are going to be at wit’s

end in getting through this,” says Burney
of In-Stat MDR. “Do what you can to help
others cope.” Small businesses, not large
businesses, are counted on for
personalised service. Make that extra ef-
fort to show you value your customers, she
says. Accommodate the special needs of
people, as best you can. Give what you can
to relief efforts. “Here is a chance where
you, as a small-business owner, can make
a difference in your community.”

Note : The writer is an award-winning
business writer who has worked as a writer
and editor for the past decade at publications
such MSN Money Central, Washington CEO
Magazine and the Eastside Journal.

AN
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If you’re to succeed, you’ll need to
move with the times. Here are
some strategies for keeping a busi-
ness strong in a wartime economy.

First, recognise that
conditions have changed
Trying to operate as though things

are just the same as they were some
30 days ago isn’t realistic — issues of
security, whether it’s prudent to
spend large sums of money on dis-
cretionary items and even the com-
fort level of being in a large gather-
ing of people prey on consumers’
minds. “It’s most definitely not busi-
ness as usual,” says Dr. Don B. Brad-
ley III, Executive Director of the
Small Business Advancement Centre
at the University of Central Arkansas.

Start looking over your business
plan to see if any assumptions need
to be revised. For instance, if you
were counting on a large influx of
tourist traffic or planned to load up
on luxury items that customers will
no longer take an interest in, you may
want to revise your income projec-
tions or look to other options to make
up for the unexpected changes.

Don’t ignore
Government opportunities

In a wartime economy, look to the gov-
ernment for some of your best business op-
portunities. Bradley notes that certain “set-
asides” are always earmarked by the gov-
ernment for small business. “For instance,
somebody had to supply and make money
from those humanitarian food packages
dropping right now.”

Make security your business
It’s no shock that security-related small

businesses have flourished of late, from
burglar alarm suppliers to gun shop own-
ers. If it’s appropriate, consider adding se-
curity stock to your own business. For in-
stance, if you run a hardware store, play
up outdoor lighting as a security measure.

Go easy marketing security
products and services

Don’t come across as capitalising on
people’s fears. Instead, build “social capi-
tal” by positioning your business as help-
ful and community-minded, says Mark
Weaver, Director of the Small Business In-
stitute at the University of Alabama. If you
want to advertise some sort of security-
minded product or program, make sure the
ads are low-keyed and subdued. Again, you
want to appear reassuring, not hungry for
a fast sawbuck.

Fear Not,
Keep Your Business Strong

We are in the midst of worldwide conflict. The economy
is staggering. And you have a business to run. By Jeff Wuorio

Make sure you’re secure as well
Pay more attention to your business’s

security levels. Make sure burglar alarms
are functioning properly, keep a sufficient
number of lights on at night and even pay
attention to where trash bins and other

closed objects may be.

Keep the communications
lines open

This covers just about anyone hav-
ing anything to do with your business.
Talk with your salespeople and staff
to get a sense of what inventory is
moving and what is stagnant. Ask
your customers what they’re buying
and how world events are affecting
their lives and their attitude toward
spending. Keep in touch with your
suppliers to make sure they can still
provide you with the goods you want.
To hedge your bets, try not to rely on
any one supplier for an item that’s cen-
tral to your business. If the supplier
shuts down for some reason, you
could be left in the wind without a coat.

If you can, try to look past
the immediate conflict

Yes, the world is divided over the US
conflict with Iraq, and at the same time,

national economies faces some challenges.
But current conditions could offer future op-
portunities for small businesses, whether
they’re looking to establish worldwide connec-
tions or simply to get established. “Once this
is all over, it’s going to make everyone think a
lot more globally. That’s going to be one of
the real big pluses for all this. And small-busi-
ness owners should look at this as a test of
their business skill. Anyone can run a busi-
ness when times are good. You really find out
how good a manager you really are in times
like these.” AN
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Six Reasons not to
OVERREACT DURING
WAR TIME

C O V E R

As a war continues, you and other small-business
owners may be engulfed by the feeling of having to
do something — anything — to adjust your business
to a “war time economy.” By Jeff Wuorio

But that may prove a dangerous
strategy. Not only may it be
unnecessary to downsize or
change your business in any

way, but you also run the risk of overreac-
tion — an overextended knee jerk that may
take precious time to correct. Granted, run-
ning a business while bullets are flying isn’t
purely business as usual. But here are six
arguments for keeping things as normal
as you possibly can.

Reaction Smacks of
Short-term Thinking

As a business person, you’ve heard over
and over again about the importance of tak-
ing a long-range view of your business —
taking in everything from income growth
to personnel development. As valuable as
that is, it also runs entirely counter to the
temptation to change a salient element of
your operation out of a time-specific fear of
what war may bring. Put another way, it can
be harmful to lay off employees if activity
drops slightly during a military conflict —
you may need those same people back only
a few months down the line. It’s essential to
take a long-term view, because, no matter if
there’s a war on or not, you still offer the
same value, the same benefit to your cus-
tomers. Businesses that focus on the short
term can be destroyed by uncertainty.

So, Exactly When do you Act?

In investing circles, market timing — try-
ing to pick stocks based on short-term, cy-
clical patterns — is as big an oxymoron. The
same pitfall lies in wait for any business on
the lookout for short-term steps — the risk
of an over-reactive misstep is compounded

1

2

3

4

by the danger of making any sort of choice
at the worst possible moment. Since the
leading experts can’t predict how long the
conflict will last, it’s doubtful the average
entrepreneur will be able to do any better.

Is yours a Business That Will
Really Suffer from a War?

Again, the prospect of a conflict is no
cause for celebration, at least for most of
us. But it’s imperative not to get swept up
in a Chicken Little wave of fear as to how
your business truly will be affected. Be as
coldly calculating and empirical as pos-
sible. Study your market, your products
and your customer base to gauge just how
much impact a war thousands of miles
overseas will really have.

Watch your Persona

Belief derives in large part from percep-
tion. One of the greatest risks of preparing
for the worst possible outcomes of war —
whether you are justified in doing so or not
— is the image it broadcasts to those with
whom you work. For some businesses, a
persona that exudes concern can project a
negative and gloomy perspective and be
devastating. If you’re in consulting and you
prepare for a major downturn, your attitude
changes and clients notice. You can’t simul-
taneously project an image of abundance
with fear for the future. So firms preparing
for the problems of war may actually lose
clients rather than hold onto them.

5

6

If Anything, be more Aggressive

A knee-jerk reaction to the uncertainty of
war is the bunker approach — hunker
down, play things close to the vest, and ride
it out. However, there’s a lot to be said for
taking the opposite tack — in many ways, a
wartime environment fosters a buyer’s mar-
ket. When competitors are reducing adver-
tising, increase yours since you’ll be able to
negotiate better rates anyway. When they’re
cutting prices, be firm with yours. The ser-
vices you provided yesterday are just as
valuable as those you’ll provide tomorrow.

Act, Don’t React

The final argument against undue reac-
tion to a war time economy lies in the con-
cept of driving your decision making on the
basis of outside events. If you pull back on
your business based on fear of the ramifi-
cations of military action, not only are you
responding to something that may not war-
rant any consequential response, but
you’re also responding to something other
than your own acumen. It’s certainly pru-
dent to examine your business in light of
changes in the dynamics of the world as a
whole. But do it on your own terms and
what you know fits your business’s future,
not events over which you have no sway
whatsoever. Of course, you should make
adjustments — in fact, if things slow down
during war time, that’s the ideal time to
examine just that. But look at it as neces-
sary adjustments, not a reaction. When
you’re reacting, you’re letting something
or someone else set your agenda.

Note :  Jeff Wuorio is an award-winning writer and
columnist, and is the author of The CNBC Guide
to Money and Markets. email : jw@jeffwuorio.com
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“Since the leading experts can’t
predict how long the conflict will last,
it’s doubtful the average entrepreneur

will be able to do any better“.

AN
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Could this be an Early
Warning of Something
Even DEADLIER?

As if war and terrorism were
not enough, a terrified
world now has a new threat
to contend with — a mys-
    ter y illness that is

spreading around the world from the Ori-
ent. The symptoms are horrible, it can kill
and there is no cure.

Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome
(SARS) is a highly-contagious pneumonia-
like infection that has so far killed more
than 100 people (1 in Malaysia). Yet doctors
and scientists are extremely worried,
prompting an unprecedented warning
from the World Health Organisation, and
from our own Department of Health, that
travellers should not go to Hong Kong or
China’s neighbouring Guandong Province.

Over the centuries, mankind has been
vulnerable to the devastating power of in-
fectious disease — from the Bubonic
Plague, to the Spanish Flu pandemic of
1918 which killed 50 million, to the current
AIDS crisis ravaging Africa. So, exactly
how worried should we be about SARS?

Even if it can be contained, many experts
warn that this outbreak is an important
wake-up call for a far more devastating ill-
ness that is sure to emerge soon from one
of China’s teeming cities.

Of course, it is important to keep SARS
in perspective. Since late February, when
the illness was first recognised, some 1,900
people have been infected worldwide. This
is the number of people who die every day
from malaria.

Having said that, SARS is highly unpleas-

ant. The symptoms include a cough, sore
throat and panic-inducing asphyxiation.
Most recover but the very young, the old
and those with weakened immune systems
are at highest risk of death.

What is worrying about SARS is that it
appears to be very infectious and no one
really knows how it is spread. Certainly
most cases are the result of exposure to
an infected person’s bodily fluids produced
through sneezing and coughing — but
there are cases where this mode of trans-
mission has not been verified.

 To date, many of the victims have been
hospital workers. SARS has even claimed
the life of the man who identified it, the
WHO’s Dr. Carlo Urbani who diagnosed it
in a US businessman in Hanoi in late Feb-
ruary. And, still more worrying, scientists
have still not conclusively identified the
agent that causes SARS.

The most probable cause is a
‘coronavirus’, a sort of super-charged ver-
sion of the common cold. However, it is
possible that SARS is caused by more than
one micro-organism. Some laboratories
have identified paramyxovirus, another
microbe that attacks the lungs. The WHO
stresses that its new advice is not based
on risk to the individual, but on containing
SARS in its ‘homeland’.

The actual threat to tourists visiting
Hong Kong is low, but should even one
become infected and travel home, it is pos-
sible that an outbreak could start anywhere
in the world.

There is cause for concern then, but the

good news is that SARS is not caused by
the influenza virus as was feared initially.
This, according to British virologist Profes-
sor John Oxford, would have been a night-
mare scenario because flu remains one of
the most feared of infectious diseases.

China’s great cities are fertile breeding
grounds for the influenza virus where mil-
lions of people live crowded together with
flocks of chickens and ducks.

The infection often starts in birds and
crosses the species barrier into humans via
the spray-like excrement of poultry, which
is inadvertently inhaled. In 1957 and 1968,
global influenza pandemics originating in
China caused millions of deaths worldwide.

But China is not the only source of such
epidemics. The 1918 Spanish Flu arose
from the trenches of the Western Front,
infecting several hundred million and kill-
ing far more people than those who died in
World War I. Since then, dozens of new
strains of the influenza virus have emerged.

But most ‘new’ influenzas are, in fact,
slightly modified versions of existing
strains and their make-up is usually suffi-
ciently familiar to our immune systems for
our bodies to mount a defence.

Professor Oxford believes that SARS will
not prove to be a global killer and will remain
more or less contained in its south China
home. It has already failed to generate new
centres of infection outside Southeast Asia.
But he is certain that, one day, another
virulent strain of influenza will threaten the
lives of millions.

Today, the biggest threat comes from glo-
bal travel with aeroplanes proving to be al-
most as effective as the mosquito in spread-
ing disease. When it will happen is unknown
and, just as in 1918, medical science may
have little or no answers to deal with a glo-
bal problem that could dwarf the scourge
of AIDS, which has killed 30 million to date.

The world, therefore, is learning some
important lessons from SARS before some-
thing more devastating comes along. It is
only a matter of time.

As Professor Oxford says : “SARS car-
ries a warning of what might happen. We
must prepare for a huge outbreak of influ-
enza in the future, and I don’t think we are
at the moment. We can see what chaos
even a little outbreak like this causes. How
will we react if five million people die?”

Could this be an Early
Warning of Something
Even DEADLIER?

AN



12 Akauntan Nasional April 2003

GENERATION
NEXT

F I N A N C E  &  M A N A G E M E N T
S H A R E  O P T I O N S

         By Margaret May

Since “big-box computers” first
mechanised financial process-
ing in the 1970s, the course of
evolution has taken us through
devolved finance using local

servers and spreadsheets in the 1980s to glo-
bal enterprise resource planning (ERP) and
shared service centres (SSCs) in the 1990s.
By the turn of the millennium, the develop-
ment of web technology had aided the full
integration of business processes, featuring
electronic links to suppliers, partners and
customers. Web-enabled SSCs managed all
non-core processes, with ERP linking to sup-
ply chain management systems and cus-
tomer relationship management systems.

Today the function is moving towards com-
plete “lights-out” processing. The eventual
outcome will be “virtual finance”, with the
replacement of transaction processing by

web-based systems maintenance and audit.
In addition to the considerable impact to

technological developments, all businesses
have experienced huge changes stemming
from a wide range of other challenges over
the past 15 years. These have included :

� An increase in shareholder power.
Businesses have been forced to focus
more attention on delivering share-
holder value. It is no longer sufficient to
calculate the traditional profit and loss
and balance sheet statements; it is now
equally important to address the drivers
of economic value creation through
shareholder value calculations, which
reveal economic profit or loss. Part of
this calculation in a 21st-centur y
organisation is the need to include the
intrinsic value of intangible assets that
give rise to corporate reputation and

must be protected by an integrated en-
terprise risk management system.

� Heightened environmental, ethical
and social awareness. Since the turn
of the millennium, companies have been
required to have an embedded internal
control system that monitors important
risks, including environmental, ethical
and social threats.

� Cultural transformations. These have
included the move from the “top-down”
organisation, with its command-and-con-
trol management style, to a more em-
powered, innovative, “bottom-up” cul-
ture. All departments have had to accept
the idea of providing a service to their
internal customers — and all too often
finance has lagged behind. A key part of
the change has been the replacement of
the conventional budgeting process with
scenario planning, rolling forecasts, bal-
anced scorecards and benchmarking,
complemented by the provision of busi-
ness intelligence and integrated perfor-
mance management systems. Equally
challenging for finance has been the

World-class organisations are increasingly demanding that their
finance functions move away from number crunching and start
creating real value. Margaret May, FCMA explains how the
profession must transform itself in order to rise to the challenge.
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change in emphasis from gatekeeper to
opportunity seeker.

� Changes in organisational structure.
Typical structures see support areas man-
aged by process rather than the tradi-
tional functional approach, often is SSCs
and operational areas split into autono-
mous strategic business units (SBUs).
Switching to business process manage-
ment requires practices and systems to
be re-engineered and the use of tech-
niques such as priority-based budgeting.
The outsourcing of non-core activities
such as finance, IT and even manufactur-
ing is becoming commonplace.

� Business globalisation. This has led
to a growth in strategic alliances and an
increase in customers’ bargaining power.
It requires new policies for control and
risk management founded on the web-
based systems that drive them.

� Government legislation. New laws
have affected not only the public sector
and the regulated industries; all busi-
nesses have felt the impact of a whole
raft of regulations.

As organisations respond to these issues,
they inevitably place extra demands on their
finance departments. The challenge for fi-
nance is to become more cost-effective, cus-
tomer-focused and embedded within business
processes, adding value and responding
quickly to changing needs. This can be
achieved only by transformation. The ques-
tion is not whether the organisation’s SBUs
will each have a new-style “business analyst”
as part of their core management teams, but
whether that person will be a finance profes-
sional or from a different discipline with some
financial skills. This is a challenge not only
for finance professionals, but also for the pro-
fessional bodies responsible for their training.

These new, dynamic finance profession-
als have become leaders of multi-
disciplinary teams engaged in strategic and
tactical planning, taking equal responsibil-
ity for the future success of the business.
The jobs that finance-trained professionals
are ideally suited to hold include :

� Traditional roles such as treasurer, com-
pany secretary and technical specialist;

� Wider roles such as chief operating of-
ficer, chief information officer, chief fi-

nance officer, chief executive and busi-
ness consultant;

� More commercial roles such as SBU
chief executive, commercial manager
and business analyst.

The pertinent point is that none of these
roles requires the same mix of skills that a
traditionally trained accountant would
hold. Most of them incorporate a high pro-
portion of non-financial work and face stiff
competition from other professionals in the
organisation. It cannot be taken for granted
that the finance function will be allowed au-
tomatically to take on this new value-add-
ing role. People from other disciplines will
believe that they are equally well qualified
to fulfil these broader roles.

Stephen Hodge, FD at Shell, writes in
eCRO (John Wiley & Sons, 2001) : “Shell

recognised that the concept of a finance
function with the right to exist was obso-
lete — finance would need to earn and
maintain its standing as a supplier to the
business … The goal was to become the
‘top performer of first choice’ through Shell
Financial Services, whose mission is to pro-
vide financial management and decision-
support skills to the operating businesses,
organised as a virtual business in a few glo-
bal locations and in competition with ex-
ternal providers.”

If we accept that the main functions of fi-
nance are to ensure the delivery of value to
shareholders and other stakeholders; to chal-
lenge managers and help them create value;
and to manage financial risk and maintain
control, then the transformed function has a
key role to play in supporting performance
improvements and company-wide change. It
then follows that the implementation of web-
enabled processes and other value-adding
systems must be driven by finance.

Richard Wilson and Wai Fong Chua, the
authors of Managerial Accounting :  Method
and Meaning (Chapman & Hall, 1993), de-

fine management accounting as “encom-
passing techniques and processes that are
intended to provide financial and non-finan-
cial information to people within an
organisation to make better decisions and
thereby achieve control and enhance effec-
tiveness … The ultimate test of successful
management accounting is whether or not
it motivates and assist managers in achiev-
ing [these objectives].”

While finance no longer “owns” the data it
provides, it has clear roles to play, including :

� To ensure understanding of the opportuni-
ties offered by the web and all other value-
adding tools throughout the business.

� To collect, analyse and present informa-
tion. This must include the design and
implementation of web-enabled pro-
cesses, models and enterprise-wide busi-

ness intelligence and performance man-
agement systems.

� To act as a catalyst for change, facilitat-
ing cross-functional workshops, driving
the web-enablement of end-to-end pro-
cesses and value-adding tools.

� To bring a financial perspective in assess-
ing ideas and proposals coming out of
these processes and to encourage new
business opportunities for creating value.

� To help in planning, forecasting, perfor-
mance measurement (both financial and
non-financial) and monitoring, and to move
beyond the annual budgeting process to
support the empowered organisation.

� To validate all information. This is an
audit role that finance is best qualified
to perform, and it should include the dis-
semination of best practice right across
the web-enabled organisation.

Note :  Margaret May FCMA is a Director of
Management Accountants in Practice (MAP),
UK. This article first appeared in Financial Man-
agement, a magazine published by CIMA, UK.

“… management accounting … encompassing techniques
and processes that are intended to provide financial and

non-financial information to people within an organisation to
 make better decisions and thereby achieve control and

enhance effectiveness … .”
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F I N A N C E  &  M A N A G E M E N T
P E R S O N A L  F I N A N C E

By Mansor Isa

A lthough many people
realise the importance of
personal financial plan-
ning, few actually plan
their finances, and fewer

actually implement it. Failure to plan may
be due to the  ignorance of what is involved
and how to go about it, or the lack of aware-
ness of the need and urgency of financial
planning. Circumstances that contribute to
the need of personal financial planning in-
clude economic uncertainty, social and
political instability, fluctuation in inflation,
interest rates, investment income, longev-
ity and changes in lifestyle, etc. And suc-
cess is measured in terms of materialistic
and monetar y wealth. To help manage
these risks and uncertainties, and to be able
to control one’s own financial affairs one
would require the services of a professional
financial planner.

Financial planning involves the setting
of financial goals and finding ways to
achieve them. The Financial Planning As-
sociation of Malaysia (FPAM) outlines six
typical steps in a complete financial plan-
ning process. These are :

1) establishing client-planner relation-
ship;

2) data gathering and goal setting;

3) data analysis;

4) strategy formulation;

5) strategy implementation; and

6) monitoring and revision.

A comprehensive financial plan would
include six elements, and these are :

1) risk management and insurance;

2) investment planning;

3) retirement planning;

4) tax planning;

5) estate planning; and

6) cash flow and liability management.

The personal financial planning industry
originated in the US with the formation of
the International Association of Financial
Planning (IAFP) in 1969. But it only began
to establish its presence in Malaysia in
1996 when the National Association of Life
Insurance Agents (NAMLIA) introduced
an eight-module programme to train mem-
bers to become qualified financial planners.
Later, the Malaysian Insurance Institute
conducted the Chartered Financial Plan-
ner course, a programme adapted from the
American College. In 1999, several indi-
viduals from various financial services and
professional bodies met and formed the
Financial Planning Association of Malay-
sia (FPAM). Members are drawn from unit
trusts, insurance, stock broking, legal and
accounting sectors. FPAM was awarded a
license by the Certified Financial Planning
International Council to conduct examina-
tions and award “CFP” designations in Ma-
laysia.

Because this is a new industry in Malay-
sia, serious efforts need to be taken to edu-
cate the public on financial planning. In late
2001, a survey was conducted to assess the
public’s perception on their need of the

Public Perceptions on

Personal
Financial
Planning
in Malaysia
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services of professional financial plan-
ners.1  Personal interviews were conducted
using a 2-page questionnaire in some se-
lected affluent areas in the Klang Valley
during the months of October to December
of 2001. A total of 160 sets of usable ques-
tionnaires was obtained for analysis. It
should be mentioned that due to the
“private and confidentiality” nature of the
topic, getting an inter view was quite
difficult. In addition, many respondents
required detail explanation before they
answered the questionnaire, an indication
that this was probably the first time they
heard about financial planning.

Table 1 presents results on respondents
level of interest in various objectives (or
benefits) of financial planning. Respon-
dents were asked to indicate on a scale of

results show that the respondents place
great importance on “minimising income
taxes”, followed by “establishing a regu-
lar, systematic savings plan”. The impli-
cation of these choices is that the most
important expectation of respondents
from the financial planning process is to
be able to increase wealth. Other wealth-
related objectives include, “Savings for a
major purchase or vacation” and “Devel-
oping/revising investment strategy”. Both
of these objectives show mean scores in
excess of 3.0, thereby emphasising their
importance.

The next important group of objectives
are “providing for children’s education”,
“providing for family in the event of death”,
“providing for family in the event of disabil-
ity” and “minimising the burden of health

security are major concerns of our respon-
dents. The least important objectives are
“determining distribution of assets/estate”
and “changing/modifying career”. Both of
these have only indirect relevance to in-
crease of wealth and/or social security
benefits.

Respondents were also asked on
whether or not they would need the
services of a professional financial planner
to help plan their finances. They were
asked to choose one of three answers:
“yes”, “no” or “not sure”. The results are
shown in Figure 1. 20.6 per cent of the re-
spondents answered affirmatively that they
would need the services of a financial
planner, 32.5 per cent say not sure and a
staggering 46.9 per cent reject the need for
the services of a financial planner.

T A B L E  1 Level of interest expressed by
respondents on various objectives of financial planning

1 to 5 their level of interest in each of the
stated objectives. The last column of the
table shows the mean score of each benefit.
A high mean (above 3.0) means that
respondents on average place great impor-
tance to the stated objective, while a low
mean (below 3.0) means the opposite.

The results show that in general there
exists strong interests among the respon-
dents in the objectives of financial plan-
ning. The overall mean score is 3.45. The

care”, in that order. These objectives taken
as a whole reflect the concern of respon-
dents on their need to ensure income and
social security. Other related objectives
are, “Ensuring cost-ef fective insurance
coverage” and “Investing for a comfortable
retirement account.”

Since the general objective of financial
planning is to be able to meet one’s social
and financial objectives, it is not at all sur-
prising that increasing wealth and social

These results are quite disturbing. If we
assume the “not sure” group is divided 50-
50 between a “yes” and a “no”, then we
have more than 60 per cent of the
respondents who would not want to use the
ser vices of a financial planner. The
implication of these results is that a more
systematic and aggressive information
campaign is needed to educate the public

1 Research data and results courtesy of Neow Sew
Keing.

Not Very Mean

Objective of financial planning
Interested Interested Score

1 2 3 4 5

% % % % %

Minimising personal income taxes 3.80 10.60 22.50 27.50 35.60 3.81

Establishing a regular, systematic savings plan 0.60 9.40 26.30 38.10 25.60 3.79

Providing for children’s education 3.10 17.50 15.60 28.80 35.00 3.75

Providing for family in the event of death 1.90 6.90 26.30 44.40 20.60 3.75

Providing for family in the event of disability 3.10 11.90 23.80 41.90 19.40 3.63

Minimising the burden of health care 0.60 13.80 32.50 33.10 20.00 3.58

Savings for a major purchase or vacation 2.50 16.90 23.80 34.40 22.50 3.58

Ensuring cost-effective insurance coverage 2.50 11.90 35.00 29.40 21.30 3.55

Investing for a comfortable retirement account 6.30 20.60 26.30 26.30 20.60 3.34

Developing/revising investment strategy 6.30 22.50 32.50 28.80 10.00 3.14

Determining distribution of assets/estate 10.60 28.80 28.10 25.60 6.90 2.89

Changing/modifying career 15.00 33.80 31.30 13.10 6.90 2.63

Average 4.69 17.05 27.00 30.95 20.37 3.45
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“Do you need the
services of a financial planner?”

on the benefits of financial planning.
Equally important is the assurance by the
governing body and relevant authorities
that proper rules and regulations are in
place to protect the parties involved.

One unique feature of personal financial
planning is that it involves revealing very
personal and private information regard-

F I G U R E  1

Willingness to provide
personal financial data and private
information to a financial planner.
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ing one’s financial standing and life ambi-
tions. As such trust and confidence in the
financial planner is crucial to a successful
financial planning process. Are people will-
ing to provide their personal financial in-
formation to a financial planner? This ques-
tion was also asked and respondents
picked one of five possible  answers: “Defi-

nitely will provide”, “probably”, “not sure”,
probably not”, and “definitely not”. Their
responses are presented in Figure 2.

Figure 2 shows that the answers are
overwhelmingly negative. The percentage
answering “definitely not” is 33.8 per cent
compared to a meagre 2.5 per cent answer-
ing “definitely will provide” their private in-
formation to the financial planner. Combin-
ing the first two categories and comparing
it with the last two categories we find the
proportion of negative reaction (45.1 per
cent)  is far greater than positive reaction
(27.5 per cent). Additionally it can also be
deduced that respondents are less hesitant
in answering “no” than “yes”. The results
in this section are consistent with our per-
ception on the sensitivity of the issue. The
unwillingness to share private information
may be due to the feeling of insecurity
among people, or it may well be due to the
culture of our people not wanting to “show
off” or reveal their wealth.

In summary, although personal financial
planning is a relatively new concept in
Malaysia, it is logical to expect it to become
more acceptable in the future. This is based
on the fact that there is a noticeable rise in
society’s wealth, while at the same time the
future is becoming more uncertain. The re-
sults of the survey reveal that in general
the level of awareness of the benefits of
having a comprehensive personal financial
plan is quite high. However, it seems that
the awareness is not accompanied by the
desire to use the services of professional
financial planners. Also, respondents are
largely unwilling to share private
information with their financial planners.
These findings have impor tant
implications to the sponsors of the new
industry. More aggressive and persistent
efforts must be taken to educate the public
on the need and benefits of personal
financial planning, especially those in the
high-income brackets. Additionally, efforts
need to be directed at changing peoples
attitude so that they are more receptive to
the concept of professional financial
planning.

Note : The writer is a Professor at the
Depar tment of Finance and Banking,
Faculty of Business and Accountancy,
University of Malaya. He may be contacted
at mansor@um.edu.my
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ETHICAL CULTURE
IN

Corporate Accounting

This article highlights the
need for giving due impor-
tance to the ethical aspects
of accounting in all coun-
tries. Recent corporate

scandals in the most developed country,

where corporate governance was claimed
to be of high order, should alert all other
countries, especially the developing ones,
to take suitable measures to prevent their
occurrence. All the stakeholders suffer the
consequences of such unethical account-

ing. Legislative control measures and their
effective enforcement along with a stron-
ger culture of ethics in accounting will
greatly help prevent such scandals.

The authors  are of the view that replace-
ment of allocation-based earnings state-

 By Hamendra Porwal & Shashi Kumar
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ment by cash-flow basis of accounting will,
besides being a better measure of liquid-
ity and profitability, help to minimise the
scope of creative accounting.

The meaning of ethics is given in the
American Heritage Dictionary as accepted
principles, rules or standards that govern
the conduct of the members of a group or
a profession. The ethical approach places
emphasis on the concepts of fairness, jus-
tice and truth. By ‘justice’ it is meant that
there should be equitable treatment to all
interested parties. ‘Truth’ can be equated
with true and accurate information with-
out misrepresentation. ‘Fairness’ refers to
the basic concept that the data should be
fair, unbiased and impartial, without serv-
ing special interests

In a corporate entity, where the stakes
of many groups — shareholders, investors,
creditors, employees, government and oth-
ers — are involved, it is essential that the
management follows the accepted prin-
ciples or standards and conventions. If the
top management flouts the accepted
norms, the interests of all the stakehold-
ers suffer. There should be proper checks
and balances to ensure that the manage-
ment operates in fairness and protects the
interests of all groups.

This article highlights, in brief, how the
management of some corporate giants
have ignored the observance of time-
honoured norms, conventions and prac-
tices. What should be the remedial mea-
sures? Is there a need for revisiting the
existing accounting system? An attempt
has been made to find answers to these
questions in the following pages.

Non-adherence to Accounting
Principles and Conventions

It was seen that the 90s saw a general
boom period in the economy. Most of the
corporations involved in the scandals were
billion-dollar companies. Their Chief
Executive Officers (CEOs) and Chairmen
were getting fantastic amounts in the form
of total emoluments — many times the
average pay of their employees. These
companies were reporting earnings in bil-
lions and were reported to be doing very
well. The investors were happy. Their
shares were rising in value all along. The
stock market had returned to life, swept

up by demand for another hot new tech-
nology — the Internet — and by further
deregulation of energy and telecommuni-
cations.

During the end of the decade, in 2000
and 2001, these CEOs and Chief Financial
Officers (CFOs) began to practice cre-
ative accounting (or aggressive account-
ing) methods. They stopped following
some of the established norms and
conventions with the evil intention of be-
coming richer by any means. They
amassed huge fortunes in the form of per-
sonal assets at the cost of their corpora-
tions. They indulged in off-balance-sheet
transactions, did not make full disclosures
to their shareholders, investors and the
regulatory agencies, and adopted meth-
ods of accounting, which wrongly
reported higher earnings.

During the period of higher earnings,
the share prices were high. But these top
executives knew the reality. The earnings
were highly inflated by aggressive account-
ing. During this period, they sold most of
the stock they personally held at high
prices. When the reality was known that if
true accounting had been done, these cor-
porations would show losses (rather than
earnings). Consequently, the share prices
tumbled and the shares were quoted at
very low rates.

Har vey Pitt, in 1989, put the blame
squarely on greed. “Our marketplaces …
have created more oppor tunities for
certain people to take advantage of infor-
mational superiority.”

Some Examples of
 Corporate Misdoings

There are hundreds of companies that
have been forced to reveal the unethical
procedures and management excesses.
Examples of selected companies that devi-
ated from the rules, generally accepted
accounting principles and ethical conven-
tions are listed next.

“Our marketplaces … have
created more opportunities for

certain people to take
advantage of informational

superiority.”

ENRON  This energy company used
hundreds of off-balance-sheet partner-
ships to hide billions of dollars in debt.
The firm also sold dubious assets to
these partnerships at jacked up prices
to create bogus income.

GLOBAL CROSSING  This telecom
company boosted its reported profits by
“swapping” network capacity with an-
other carrier.

ADELPHIA  This large cable-TV pro-
ducer guaranteed US$3.1 billion in loans
to off-balance-sheet partnerships owned
by the founder family.

TYCO   This company evaded more
than one million dollars in sales taxes
on art masterpieces. The CEO and the
CFO defrauded the company and inves-
tors by taking more than $170 million
in improper bonuses and unauthorised
loans, and fraudulently obtained more
than US$430 million from selling Tyco
stock over more than seven years.

ImCLONE  The CEO was involved in
insider trading and other accounting
frauds.

WorldCom  This giant corporation
wrongly listed US$7.1 billion as capital
expenses.

Xerox  This company overstated rev-
enue by US$6.4 billion over the period
of five years.

AOL Time Warner  The world’s larg-
est media company allowed a British
company to buy advertising instead of
paying an arbitration award in a large
dispute. It made false and misleading
statements about the company’s busi-
ness and financial condition, and it gen-
erated advertising and commercial rev-
enue as a result of unconventional trans-
actions

Qwest  This communications company
was one of the most aggressive users
of swaps — selling long-term fibre-optic
capacity and equipment to a company
from which it bought a like amount of
capacity, and then booking the sale
upfront as revenue by more than $1
billion before it received payment or
before the fibre was actually delivered
to the buyer.
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There are many others, like Dynegy,
Merck, and Big KMart, under shadow. In
response to the Securities and Exchange
Commission’s (SEC) notice to the CEOs
and CFOs of 900 publicly traded compa-
nies to swear to the accuracy and complete-
ness of their corporation’s financial state-
ments before 14 August 2000, a good num-
ber of companies restated their earnings.
This shows the magnitude of aggressive
accounting undertaken by some of the big
corporations in the US.

Legislative Steps
Enacted to Check

Deceptive Accounting
and Management

Practices
To check the malpractices

narrated above, the US
Congress approved the cor-
porate gover nance and
accounting oversight bill
(known as Sarbanes-Oxley
bill). This bill was signed by
the President on 30 July
2002 to make it a law. It
has major consequences
for executives, accoun-
tants, shareholders and
regulators. The key provi-
sions of the accounting leg-
islation are :

� An independent public
company accounting
oversight board (PCAOB)
has been created. It com-
prises five members with
investigative and disciplin-
ary powers. The board is
majority independent, and
will be overseen by the
SEC.

� The auditors have been prohibited from
offering certain types of consulting ser-
vices to corporate clients. There is an
attempt to reduce conflicts of interests
arising from audit firms earning huge
consulting fees from clients.

� The accounting firms are required to
rotate lead or reviewing partners from
client assessments every five years.
(This will give shareholders greater as-
surance that financial results reported by

companies are credible. The accounting
firm, however, will not be changed.)

� The audit committee members must be
independent. The panels will have to hire
and oversee the corporation’s auditor,
and establish procedures for handling
complaints. If the companies do not fol-
low the rules, they risk being delisted
from the stock exchanges.

� One important decision is that the CEOs
and CFOs are now required to certify the
financial reports. If earnings are restated

due to securities fraud, they will forfeit
profits and bonuses.

� The executives are prohibited from sell-
ing company stock during blackout pe-
riods. The insiders are required to report
all company stock trades within two
days.

� The law prevents the executives from
receiving company loans unavailable to
outsiders.

� Material changes to the company’s finan-

cial condition are required to be dis-
closed immediately.

� The CEOs and CFOs penalties have
been increased if they fail to observe the
above stated legal requirements.

� New protections have been provided to
whistleblowers, and analysts who
criticise clients of the firm.

It will be seen that the goal of the legisla-
tion is “to stamp out deceptive accounting
and management practices by beefing up

criminal penalties for
wrongdoers, setting up
deeper oversight holding top
executives more directly
responsible and requiring
more open books.” This is an
effort to “repairing a decade
of gradual erosion of the
culture of compliance” by in-
stituting a “stronger system of
regulation, and a stronger
culture of ethics, and stronger
corporate governance.”

Harmonisation of
Accounting

With greater emphasis on
globalisation and liberal-
isation all over the world, es-
pecially in the developing
countries, there is a need for
uniformity in accounting
rules and principles of all the
countries. If all the countries
adopt the same accounting
guidelines for preparing
their financial statements, it
will be easier for cross-bor-
der securities listing world-
wide. This will help proper
flow of resources to the
companies, which can most

ef fectively utilise them. At present, any
company outside of the US has to restate
its financial statements in accordance with
the Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) in force in the US or to
provide reconciliation from foreign
financial statements to the US GAAP to get
its shares listed on the US stock exchanges.

The International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) is doing a useful job towards
achieving uniformity in accounting prac-
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… the goal of the legislation is “to stamp out
deceptive accounting and management

practices by beefing up criminal penalties
for wrongdoers, setting up deeper oversight

holding top executives more directly
responsible and requiring more open

books.”
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tices in the different countries. Around one
hundred members (professional bodies)
all over the world adopt, with or without
adaptation, the IASB standards. The Inter-
national Accounting Standards (IASs) are
based on principles, with limited guidance
on specific situations, with the result that
loopholes are reduced. The GAAP use spe-
cific rules, with precise, case-by-case in-
structions. The latter allow clever financial
engineers to weave ways around. They are
rule-based principles, while the former are

principle-based standards. IAS 1 (Revised)
states that the financial statements should
provide information that “reflects the eco-
nomic substance of events and transactions
and not merely the legal form.”

Due to the “accounting misdeeds in the
US, the European Union (EU) is lobbying
Washington to adopt standards, it
says,which are superior to those known as
GAAP, which companies listed in the US
must use.” The EU sent a delegation to
Washington last fall (2002) to discuss the
issue with the SEC of ficials. Frits
Bolkestein, the EU top financial rule-
maker, espouses the international stan-
dards but he says, “He would be willing to

consider a system melding IAS with
GAAP.” It will be useful to have common
standards so that the companies can eas-
ily be listed on the stock exchanges of the
dif ferent countries. Har vey Pitt, the
previous SEC Chairman, also said that he
is not opposed to the idea of creating one
set of rules for US and EU companies but
he does not buy claims of international
standards’ superiority. “Our GAAP
standards are the best in the world”, he
says. All standards are good in one way or

another. They also have shortcomings but
the need of the time is that there should
be one set of accounting rules and
principles all over the globe.

Change in the
Basis of Accounting

Paragraph 25 of IAS 1(Revised) states,
“An enterprise should prepare its financial
statements, except for cash flow informa-
tion, under the accrual basis of account-
ing.” Under this basis of accounting, trans-
actions and events are recognised when
they occur (and not as cash or its equiva-
lent is received or paid) and they are re-
corded in the financial statements of the

periods to which they relate.
In view of the misdeeds in accounting

which continue to occur all over the globe
in one way or other, the question that needs
to be examined is whether the present ac-
crual-allocation based historical cost ac-
counting is playing a useful role in decision-
making. In a global economy, the investors,
creditors and others need realistic
accounting information from the financial
statements. Some are of the view that
historical cost accounting, which is based
upon the allocation concept, is really not
helpful in investment and other types of
decisions. The earnings figure distorts the
real cash flows due to allocation, like de-
preciation, amortisation of preliminary
expenses, goodwill, discount on issue of
shares and bonds, and other non-cash
items. The management has lot of discre-
tion in allocating non-cash items to arrive
at the earnings figure. There is great
amount of subjectivity and arbitrariness in
these allocations.

In order to run a business effectively, the
management takes special care of two finan-
cial aspects — profitability and liquidity. The
cash flow accounting takes care of both.
Harold M. Williams, former Chairman of the
SEC, USA opined, “ In my view cash flow
from operations is a better measure of
performance than earnings per share.” The
Sandilands Committee (1975) was of the view
that “there is no objective correct measure
of income. There is arbitrary and subjective
judgment … liquidity crisis merits
development of cash flow accounting.”

The rationale of cash flow accounting can be
appreciated in the following words of Yuji Ijiri :

“There has been a serious
discrepancy between the way in which
the investment decisions are made and
the way in which the results of the
decisions are evaluated. In investment
decisions, the primary factor is cash
flow … in the performance evaluation
the emphasis shifts to earnings … the
two are often not reconcilable.
Therefore, either investment
decisions should be based on earnings
or performance evaluation should be
based on cash flows. The choice is
rather obvious, because the primary
objective of a business enterprise is

“At present, any company outside of the US has to restate its
financial statements in accordance with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) in force in the US or to provide

reconciliation from foreign financial statements to the US GAAP
to get its shares listed on the US stock exchanges”.
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cash flow. Earnings is only a surrogate
to represent per formance of the
enterprise on this cash flow objective.
And if earnings do not tell how well a
project or a division/corporation is
doing in terms of cash flow, then the
concept and measurement of earnings
has to be changed.”

The classic case of the bankruptcy of W.
T. Grant Company in 1975 (and others in
the early 70s) showed that the working
capital concept of funds was not a good
surrogate for its cash flows. This company
had positive net working capital and posi-
tive net income during 1966-1974, but had
negative cash flows during the nine-year
period (except 1968 and 1969). The com-
pany went bankrupt because of its inability
to generate cash flows from operations. This
happened in spite of the net income being
positive for all the years under review.

In order to reduce the arbitrariness of the
management in cases like that of Enron,
WorldCom and others, it is time to seriously
consider the replacement of the accrual
basis of accounting by the cash flow basis
of accounting. The scope for creative
accounting is minimised in cash flow
accounting.

Suggestions
In addition to the legislative steps listed

earlier, the following suggestions should
be given due consideration to remove the
malpractices stated above :

� Rotation of audit partners every five
years. Instead of rotating a partner of
an audit firm every five years, the law-
makers should have decided in favour
of changing the auditing firm every five
years. The corporate executives will,
then, be less likely to pressure the audi-
tors to sign off on flimsy financial state-
ments. The SEC and the investing pub-
lic depend on the competence, ethics and
independence of the accountants who
certify the accuracy and fairness of the
financial statements of public companies.

� Consultancy work and internal audit
should not be given to the same audit firm
that is doing external audit of a company.

� Stock options as an expense. Mr.
Rohatyn, a former managing director of
Lazard Fres and a former US ambassador

to France, said, “I recall ser ving on
corporate boards in the 1980s when the
pressure coming from institutional inves-
tors to align management interests with
shareholder interests led to large scale
compensation restructuring away from
cash and in favour of options. The use of
options was, in many cases, abused; ac-
counting for options did not truly reflect
the cost to the company.” He rather sug-
gested simple stock grants in lieu of op-
tions. Further, Federal Reserve Chairman,
Alan Greenspan, in a testimony on Capitol
Hill in July 2002 said, “Companies do not
report stock options as an expense, as they
do other executive compensation.” He

wanted that to change. Paul Volcker,
former chairman of the Federal Reserve
Board said, “the practice of showering ex-
ecutives with stock options is inherently
suspect. Options are so subject to abuse
that there ought to be an extreme bias in
public companies against their use.” The
lawmakers should legislate or the stan-
dard-setting bodies in the different coun-
tries should decide that stock options
would be considered as an expense, and
will form part of executive compensation.

� Revenue recognition. Most of the
misdoings of the corporations (mentioned
earlier) reveal that they either inflated their
revenues wrongly or reduced the
operating expenses by transferring them
to capital account. It is high time that the
standard-setting bodies of the different
countries revisit principles of recognition
of revenue and determination of expense.

� Off-balance-sheet items. There should
be no of f-balance-sheet items. Every
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transaction in which the company is
involved directly or indirectly must be
brought within the ambit of the financial
statement.

� Corporate leaders should be required to
announce in advance (30 days to 60 days
before) plans to sell company stock so
that they cannot take advantage of inside
knowledge that allows them to predict
fluctuations of shares better than the in-
vesting public.

�  The executive compensation given in
the form of salary in cash, bonus, re-
stricted stock, stock options and other
perks to the senior executives (CEO,

CFO and others) should be disclosed in
detail.

“For the most part, public filings only
hint at a company’s total price tag for de-
ferred compensation, and the titbits are
buried in footnotes and other oblique lan-
guage.” Total annual contributions made
by a company to its senior executives un-
der the deferred compensation plans
should be disclosed in detail.

� To root out corporate greed, the corpo-
rations that are most generous to their
executives should be red-flagged early.

� A course on business ethics should be
introduced in all business schools.

Lessons for Developed and
Developing Countries

The above account of creative accounting
indulged in by big corporations in the past
decade in the most developed country, where
corporate governance was claimed to be the
best, should be an eye-opener to all the
developed and developing countries. If every
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country issued a notification to all the big
publicly traded companies asking the CEOs
and CFOs to swear to the accuracy and
completeness of their company’s financial
statements, it is our view that many
companies will restate their earnings.

Scandals of different type and magnitude
continue to occur in the different countries.
Developing economies have greater need
for taking steps mentioned above due to
lack of transparency and other reasons.
Preventive action is always better than cor-
rective action. This saves the stakeholders
from many of the after effects of the type
of scandals narrated above.

Suitable legislative action, to check the
malpractices stated above, should be taken
by the developed and developing countries
where necessary. Due consideration should
be given to the suggestions made earlier by
all the countries. However, for rapidly
developing economies, the following
additional steps should also be taken by the
government or the agencies concerned.

Due to rapid advances in information and
communications technology (ICT), investors
prefer to make investments in other
countries where there is likelihood of better
returns. They also like to get their shares
listed on foreign exchanges to attract
investments. There is, therefore, great need
for high quality uniform accounting and
reporting standards, which are applicable, as
stated earlier, in all countries. This
underscores the need for independent
standard-setting machinery on the pattern
of either the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) or the Financial
Accounting Standards Board FASB (US) or
England, or Malaysia in every country.

The UK, the European Union, FASB, the
International Organisation of Securities
Commissions (IOSCO) and IASB are
taking steps to have one set of Financial
Reporting Standards (FRS). The IASB is
revising its core standards to produce
uniformity in FRS all over the world. The
developing countries will have to fall in line
and adopt all the standards issued by the
IASB to remain global.

Further, some of the steps mentioned
above, such as setting up of a majority inde-
pendent public company accounting over-
sight board (PCAOB), having independent
audit committees, not allowing off-balance-

sheet items, changing the audit firm every
three or five years, separating external audit
from consulting services, treating stock
options as expense should be legislated.

 The SEC (US) has proposed the follow-
ing rules for corporate control :  The
companies are required to designate a finan-
cial expert on their corporate boards, adopt
internal controls and disclose whether they
have a code of ethics. The corporate
executives are barred from coercing,
manipulating or misleading the firm’s
auditor. The companies should establish
internal controls over financial reports and
evaluate their effectiveness on a continuing
basis. The governments of the developing
countries can authorise their securities and
exchange boards to frame rules on a similar
pattern. This will help make corporate
transparency more effective.

Enforcement Machinery
To enforce the aforesaid legal reforms,

there will be need for effective oversight,
rigorous enforcement and deterrent pun-
ishment. A suitable commission or board,
like the Securities and Exchange Commis-
sion (US) should be entrusted with neces-
sary powers to regulate and control the ob-
servance of the rules of accounting, and
have effective monitoring over the corpo-
rations in the country.

Ethics
Rohatyn (op.cit.) says, “… of course, ulti-

mately rules are no substitute for ethics. I
believe our corporate world and our finan-
cial markets will, ultimately, reward ethical
behaviour … ethics will turn out to be more
than a moral imperative; it will turn out to
be good business. It will sell at premium.”
There is need for a “stronger culture of
ethics, and stronger corporate governance.”

Concluding Remarks
The last decade has witnessed aggressive

accounting by the world’s corporate giants.
Last year, the US Congress took far-
reaching legislative steps to stop the

If every country issued a notification to all the big publicly traded
companies asking the CEOs and CFOs to swear to the accuracy and
completeness of their company’s financial statements, it is our view

that many companies will restate their earnings.

scandals. This is a lesson for other
developed and developing countries of the
world. No country should assume that such
scandals cannot happen there. There is a
need for preventive steps to be taken.

However any amount of legislation will
not be sufficient to plug the loopholes in
the accounting system. “No one can legis-
late honesty and personal integrity. Not
everything that is legal is the right thing
to do.” What is needed is to give due im-
portance to the ethical approach by the
management, accountants and others. Cor-
rective steps taken after the events have
happened cannot be regarded as the best
approach. It is just like bolting the door
after the horse has gone. It cannot make
up the harm done to the stakeholders.

Cash flow from operations by the direct
method better measures the liquidity and
profitability of an enterprise. Besides, it
minimises the scope for creative account-
ing.
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ISLAMIC BANKING
IN THE WEST
The challenges ahead
 By: Dr.Yusuf Karbhari, Dr. Kamal Naser and Zulkarnain Muhamad Sori

Introduction
Unlike conventional commercial banks,

Islamic banks undertake their operations
without paying or receiving interest. This
concept is rooted in the belief that Riba, a
“predetermined rate tied to the maturity
and the amount of principle” (Iqbal, 1997)
is prohibited by the Shariah-Islamic law.
For the purpose of simplicity, Islamic
scholars indicate that Riba  can be
generally interpreted as interest, which is
common in the conventional banking
system (Schwarz, 1992). The idea of
Islamic banking was first developed in the
1950s and resulted in the creation of the
first generation of Islamic investment
banks in Malaysia and Egypt in the early
1960s. In 1974 Dubai Islamic Bank was
established as the first private interest-
free bank. Since then, the idea of Islamic
banking has become widespread.
According to Kahf (1999), the number of
Islamic banks around the globe now
exceeds 100.

Moreover, current changes in the world
economy, the revolution in information
technology and globalisation, resulting in
dramatic changes in world trade, placed
pressure on businesses in general and
banks in particular and forced them to al-
ter their strategies to respond to these de-
velopments. More recently, the World
Trade Organisation (WTO) encouraged
countries that signed the agreement to
open up their economies to all investors.
The WTO agreement has widespread im-
plications for the banking industry. Con-
sequently, under the WTO agreement, Is-
lamic banks will find themselves in direct
competition with the internationally well-
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established conventional banks, espe-
cially since many conventional banks have
realised that Islamic banking provides op-
por tunities to tap into new markets.
Hence, it is not surprising to see a number
of conventional banks such Barclays,
Citibank, HSBC and ANZ offering Islamic
services

Theoretical Problems
and Challenges

Although the idea of Islamic banking is
still young, the last decade has witnessed
a slow-down in the number of Islamic
banks in the world in general and in the
west in particular. This reality was con-
firmed by Ali (1981) who stated that the
largest number of Islamic banks was es-
tablished either in the late 1970s or in the
early 1980s. Similarly, Wilson (1999) in-
dicated that Islamic banking reached ma-
turity only after twenty years of
operations.

Generally, Islamic banks operate within
three different types of environment;

those that function in countries
adopting Islamic Shariah principles
(for example : Iran, Pakistan and
Sudan);

those that function in predominantly
Muslim countries along with conven-
tional banks (Arab and Muslim coun-
tries);

those that function in predominantly
non-Muslim countries along with con-
ventional banks (Western countries).

For the purpose of this introductory ar-
ticle, our discussion will focus on the
problems and challenges facing the
Islamic banking system in the third
environment.

In general, attitude is the main problem
facing the development of the Islamic
banking system in the west. In this
context, Dixon (1992) quoted Saleh as
saying “the west has failed to adopt a
positive attitude towards the needs of
Islamic banks”. Conceptual problems of
Islamic banks also pose obstacles towards
the development of Islamic banks’ in the
west. A discussion of these major
problems in the context of a western
environment are provided next.

Lack of Standardisation
Interpretations of Islamic Shariah prin-

ciples are left to Muslim scholars. Hence,
different schools of thought have emerged
in different cultures and Islamic societies.
For example, there is no agreement among
different schools of thought on whether
riba and interest are synonymous terms.
The fact that Muslim scholars disagree on
such a basic issue highlights the lack of
standardisation of opinion in the field (El-
Gamal, 1997). As a result, each Islamic
bank appoints an Islamic Shariah Commit-
tee whose duty is to assess whether bank
transactions and activities are in accor-
dance with the Islamic Shariah. Shepherd
(1996) argues that lack of standardisation
between these committees’ results in
diverse interpretations and evaluations. In
the opinion of Iqbal and Mirakhor (1999),
lack of standardisation is not only time
consuming and costly but leads to
confusion about what Islamic banking
really encompasses, and therefore hinders
its wide scale acceptance. In this context,
Ainely (1997) highlighted that the biggest
problem of the Islamic banking system is
that people are not clear about what Islamic
banking constitutes. In Ainley’s view, the
confusion about Islamic banking is caused
by the Islamic Shariah  Committees’
various interpretations on what is and what
is not Islamic banking. This lack of
standardisation and clarity also makes it
difficult for western regulators to under-
stand the idea of Islamic banking. Conse-
quently, regulators tend to be restrictive
in granting licences for Islamic banks.
Thus, standardisation is expected to clarify
the functions of Islamic banking and may
assist in opening the way to more coher-
ent regulation. It may also lead to better
understanding and acceptance of Islamic
banking as a serious competitor to the con-
ventional banking system. Nevertheless, it
should be pointed out that because many
Shariah Committees have overlapping
membership, this does bring about some
level of standardisation. Also, the rulings
of the Fiqh Academy are widely accepted.

On the other hand, Al-Omar and Abdul
Haq (1996) argue that the idea of Islamic
banking is still relatively young and new
circumstances and issues are likely to oc-
cur which result in further clarification. This

should not be used as an excuse for the lack
of standardisation but helps in
understanding why standardisation on par-
ticular issues does not exist. As Islamic
banking further evolves, it is expected to
experience an increase in the
standardisation of its concepts and prac-
tices.

Regulation and Legislation
The long histor y of the conventional

banking system resulted in effective regu-
latory and supervisory bodies. Since the
Islamic banking system has only recently
emerged, regulatory and supervisory tech-
niques have not yet been developed to ac-
commodate Islamic banks. One of the ma-
jor problems facing the development of
Islamic banks is the current legal structure.
Lack of understanding coupled with a lack
of regulation caused tension between
Islamic banks and regulators, which in turn
affected the regulators’ willingness to sup-
por t such organisations. Regulators in
western societies are reluctant to grant a
banking license to institutions that cannot
guarantee customers’ deposits. In this re-
gard, Carlson (1986) indicated that the regu-
latory bodies in the UK tend to hold ver y
strict policies on their banking practices.
They stand firm on their definition of a bank
as an institution that can guarantee deposits
and provide a declared return on them.
Temple (1992) believes that the inability of
Islamic banks to guarantee deposits or
returns makes it difficult for the Bank of
England to consider them as banks. Yet
Ingram (1986) questions the cer tainty of
deposits in conventional banks, contending
that any bank is subject to default.

Wilson (1999) showed that Al-Baraka
was the only Islamic bank to operate in
the UK as a full deposit-taking institution
during 1980s. Al-Baraka, however, no
longer operates as a license deposit-
taking institution in the UK since
pressure from the regulatory body forced
it to surrender its license in 1993. Thus,
no Islamic institution with a banking
license resides in the UK due to the
countr y’s regulation and legislation.
There are, however, a number of Islamic
financial institutions registered as
investment companies, and conventional
banks that offer Islamic financing facilities.

1
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3
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Capital and Liquidity Requirements
Another issue related to regulation and

supervision of Islamic banks is that of capi-
tal and liquidity requirements. The Basle
Committee’s minimum capital requirement
is another strict regulatory hurdle that
must be resolved if Islamic banking is to
prosper. While identifying capital require-
ments, the Basle Committee overestimates
the risk to the Islamic bank’s assets. Ainley
(1997), however, provided an explanation
for this by indicating that assets of an Is-
lamic bank are more risky than of conven-
tional banks. This is because conventional
banks maintain a large portion of their as-
sets in fixed interest bearing deposits that
are relatively easy to value. In return, the
value of an Islamic bank’s assets, invested
in long-term projects and ventures, is diffi-
cult to assess. Moreover, the Islamic bank
cannot use the central bank as a safety net
and take advantage of its ser vices as a
lender of last resort, because of the inter-
est that must be paid on the loan during
repayment. Thus, the Islamic bank is
viewed by western regulators as maintain-
ing higher liquidity requirement with
riskier assets than that of the conventional
banks.

Tax Discrimination
Like other established laws in the west,

the tax system developed far before the
upsurge of Islamic banking as a practice.
Carlson (1986) pointed to the difficulty that
western regulators will face when taxing an
Islamic bank. Most of the tax systems that
prevail seem to favour conventional banks
to Islamic ones, through allowing interest
to be tax deductible whereas profit, which
is an alternative to interest under the
Islamic banking system, is not tax deduct-
ible (Temple, 1992). Most Islamic banks
and financial institutions resent this extra
burden and call for just regulation for both
systems. For instance, Khan (2001) rightly
argues that with regards to Islamic mort-
gages in the UK, the transfer of ownership
from vendor to bank at the commencement
of a lease and from the bank to customer at
the end of the lease may attract the pay-
ment of two sets of stamp duty. The second
set would arise at the end of the term of
the lease at the rate of stamp duty then
applicable. The second set needs to be ex-

empted because the true effect of the trans-
fer is similar to the redemption of a con-
ventional mortgage (i.e., when the property
finally vests with the customer without any
encumbrance). Therefore, the second
stamp duty would make the Islamic
Mortgage unattractive and cost prohibitive.

Financial Instruments
In theory, the main instruments em-

ployed by Islamic banks are those that are
encompassed in the Profit and Loss Shar-
ing techniques (PLS); namely Mudaraba
and Musharaka. In practice, however, the
use of these instruments is very limited.
Kahf (1999) used the information published
by the Director y of Islamic banks to
illustrate that, in practice, less than 20
percent of Islamic financing is carried out
through PLS. However, we contend that
this could be entirely due to the various
problems associated with implementing
PLS techniques. For instance, one of the
biggest problems with the PLS technique
is that it is long-term in nature, and has a
higher degree of uncertainty. According to
Abdul Gafoor (1995), this requires the
banks to be continuously involved in rigor-
ous analyses, evaluations and assessment
procedures, in order to determine the risk
and returns involved in a given long-term
investment. Furthermore, the longer the
duration of an investment, the longer the
time it takes to recover the principal and
profit/loss. Hence, depositors will not be
repaid for a long period of time. Thus,
Islamic banks will certainly be at a disad-
vantage to conventional banks, which can
provide returns to depositors at shorter
intervals.

Another problem which is associated
with the financial instruments of Islamic
banks is the lack of short-term instruments
to meet short-term capital needs and im-
mediate liquidity concerns (Neinhas, 1986).
The provision of short-term capital is an
integral par t of a conventional bank’s
operations. Providing this service, how-
ever, under an interest-free regime poses
certain problems. These problems can be
attributed to the application of PLS on
short-term loans, which effectively means
that risks and returns must be calculated
for short periods of time. The classification
of a short-term loan is typically from one

day to a year. Uzair (1976) suggested that
these loans should be given as interest-free
loans. This, however, cannot be considered
as an acceptable solution since the Islamic
bank is set out to be a business rather than
a charity. Parker (1993) attributed this prob-
lem to lack of concern for research and
development by Islamic financial institu-
tions.

Conclusion
Islamic banking is relatively a new field

and therefore much research is needed to
address the issues discussed in this article.
These issues relate to a lack of
standardisation, mismatch of existing regu-
lation and legislation with the operation of
Islamic banking, non-compliance of capital
and liquidity requirements, profit sharing
in Islamic banking that is not tax deduct-
ible and a lack of financial instruments in
operation. Although a number of chal-
lenges are faced by Islamic banking in the
West, its ethics attract customers and these
issues need to be urgently resolved. Also,
market players should undertake serious
efforts to ensure that an ideal Islamic bank-
ing system is in place. It must also be re-
membered that regulators do not make the
rules. The representatives of people make
the rules. Therefore, the Muslim commu-
nities in the West need to stand united and
demand their rights as well as make
concer ted attempts to change current
regulations.

In the next issue, we will report on other
crucial issues that hinder the development
of Islamic Banking in the West.
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Introduction
The statement of cash flow

may be considered a new devel-
opment in accounting and re-
porting requirements although
the interest in and the concept
of ‘cash flow’ is said to have
emerged in the 1950s.1  During
the early period it was mainly
used by investment and security
analysts. The expression ‘cash
flow’ or any similar terms in the
literature of investments and se-
curity analysts is usually the
equivalent of funds provided by operations.
This was followed by a similar interest in
accounting so that in the 1960s, authorita-
tive bodies began recommending the inclu-
sion of a fund flow statement in the finan-
cial reports of companies. This resulted in
the inclusion of what was then known as the
“Statement of Source and Application of
Funds”2 . The term ‘fund’ can be interpreted
in various ways. One interpretation of ‘fund’
is cash or cash equivalent, another is work-
ing capital, being current assets less cur-
rent liabilities, and still another is net cur-
rent monetary assets. The variation in con-
cept has resulted somewhat in the variation
in practice. If seen from the working capital
perspective, then the resulting statement
will include only the transactions, which af-
fect current assets and current liabilities.
From a broader perspective ‘fund’ should
cover all financial resources arising from
transactions with all parties external to the
enterprise. This preference for the broader
perspective has led to the change in the

name given to the statement. Subsequently
it came to be called a “Statement of Changes
in Financial Position.3

Following the development in the US,
the International Accounting Standards
Committee (IASC) in 1987, issued IAS 7,
Statement of Changes in Financial Position.
This standard was subsequently adopted
by the Councils of MIA and MACPA in
1979 and became operative in Malaysia
from the beginning of that year.

The next development grew out of the
general belief that fund in terms of working
capital is not as useful as cash and cash
equivalents in assessing, predicting and
evaluating cash flows and as such does not
meet the financial reporting objectives.
Thus the general interest began to shift
from working capital concept to the concept
of cash and cash equivalents. In 1987 FASB
issued Statement of Accounting Standards
No 95 “Statement of Cash Flows” requiring
companies to present a statement of cash
flows as a part of its financial statements in

T E C H N I C A L  N E W S
M A S B  5
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the annual reports, thus replacing the State-
ment of Changes in Financial Position. IASC
followed suit with IAS 7 (revised) entitled
Cash Flow Statements. This was adopted by
MIA in 1996 and subsumed by the current
MASB 5 in 1999 and became effective in Ma-
laysia in July of that year.

It is intended to discuss the standard
under each topic after briefly looking at it
from a general perspective.

General
MASB 5 is indeed an adop-

tion of IAS 7 (revised) with little
changes. The standard covers
all the topics expected to be
covered quite extensively.
These include the benefits of
cash flow information, the defi-
nitions of the various terms
used, the meaning of cash and
cash equivalents, the presenta-
tion and reporting of cash flow
statement in terms of the sepa-
rate activities, namely operat-
ing, investing, and financing
activities. In addition, it also in-

cludes discussions on important issues
such as reporting on net basis, foreign cur-
rency cash flows, extraordinary items, in-
terest and dividends, taxes on income, and
investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures. The discussions are supple-
mented with examples given at the end as
appendices covering cash flow statements
for non-financial and financial institutions.
The financial and non-financial are shown
separately because in the case of the
former cash may be viewed as a product
but not in the case of the latter. Both the
direct and indirect methods for presenting
cash flow from operating activities for non-
financial institutions are discussed in the
appendices. For financial institutions only
the direct method is illustrated.

This article examines MASB 5, Cash Flow Statements issued by
the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board in July 1999 which
replaced IAS 7 (revised) with the same title, issued by MIA and
MACPA in 1996.

MASB 5 Cash Flow Statements
— An Analysis

1 Mason P (1961), “Cash Flow Analysis and Fund
Statement”, AICPA Research Study No 2. p. 3.

2 Grady P (1965), “Inventory of Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles for Business Enterprises”,
AICPA An Accounting Research Study No 7. p. 311

3 See “Reporting Changes in Financial Position,”
Opinion of the Accounting Principles Board no 19,
New York, AICPA, 1971
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Objective and Scope
The objective of the standard is stated

thus, “The objective of this Standard is to
require the provision of information about
the historical changes in cash and cash
equivalents of an enterprise by means of a
cash flow statement which classifies cash
flows during the period from operating, in-
vesting and financing activities.” The cash
flow statement required under the standard
is therefore, based on the activity format,
although other formats are also possible as
for example, cash flow related to sales, for
administration and that associated with fi-
nancing. The standard further provides that
the cash flow statement is to be presented
as an integral par t of the financial
statements for each period for which the
financial statements are presented.

Benefits of Cash Flow Information
Paragraph 4 of the standard discusses

the benefits of the cash flow information
in a broad sense using complex sentences.
While the benefits are well covered, they
could have been better organised. A much
clearer presentation of the benefits of cash
flow statements is presented by FASB
Statement No. 95 which states that the cash
flow statement provides information that,
together with information in the other fi-
nancial statements, should help users to :

assess a company’s ability to generate
positive future net cash flows;

assess a company’s ability to meet its
obligations and its needs for external
financing and to pay dividends;

understand the difference between a
company’s net income and its cash
flow; and

determine the effects on a company’s fi-
nancial position and its investing and fi-
nancing transactions during the period.4

Further elaboration of the benefits of the
cash flow statement is made in the various
parts of the standard. For example, further
on the cash from operating activities is said
to be useful, in conjunction with other in-
formation, in forecasting future operating
cash flows.

Definitions
Paragraph 6 of the standard defines vari-

ous terms associated with the cash flow
statement. These are cash, cash equiva-
lents, cash flows, operating activities, in-
vesting activities, and financing activities.
These terms are further well explained
under separate paragraphs, which contrib-
ute immensely towards the understanding
of the standard. These definitions are also
consistent with those used in most coun-
tries.

Presentation of
Cash Flow Statements

This section now explains the reason for
the need to prepare the statement based
on the activity format. It states that the
“Classification by activity provides informa-
tion that allows users to assess the impact
of those activities on the financial position
of the enterprise and the amount of its cash
and cash equivalents. This information
may also be used to evaluate the relation-
ships among those activities.” Related to
this each enterprise is required to present
“its cash flows from operating, investing
and financing activities in a manner which
is most appropriate in its business.” The
standard then explains the different activi-
ties related to the cash flows. The special
importance of the cash flow from operat-
ing activities is emphasised. Each of the
activities are discussed under separate
headings. Cash flow from operating activi-
ties is said to be the key indicator of the
extent to which the operations of the en-
terprise have generated sufficient cash
flows to repay loans, maintain the operat-
ing capability of the enterprise, pay divi-
dends, and make new investments without
recourse to external sources of finances.
Various examples of cash flows under each
activity are given which help to provide a
better understanding and reduce disparity
amongst the different enterprises. Some
“grey” areas are explained, for example,
cash flows relating to gains or loss from
the sale of long-term assets, which are in-
cluded in the determination of profit or loss
for the period, are to be classified under
investing activities. Furthermore it is pro-
vided that cash advances and loans from
financial institutions are usually classified
as operating activities since they relate to
the main revenue-producing activity of the
enterprise.

Reporting Cash Flow from
Operating Activities

Paragraph 18 discusses the two methods
of reporting cash flows from operating ac-
tivities namely, the direct and indirect meth-
ods, permitting the use of either method but
expressing preference for the former
method. However, the standard also pro-
vides that enterprises using the direct
method are encouraged to provide a recon-
ciliation of cash flows from operation with
the net profit or loss for the period, that is,
a reconciliation using the indirect method.

The preference for the direct method is
consistent with the practice in the US as
provided for under FASB Statement No 955

except that in the US, the reconciliation
statement is mandatory for enterprises us-
ing the direct method. In the UK, the ASB
in its FRS 1 (Revised) leaves the choice be-
tween the two methods completely open
without showing any preference for either
method. In Australia, AASB 1026 only per-
mits the use of the direct method. It states “
… cash flows from operating activities must
be presented in the statement of cash flow us-
ing the direct method …”(para. 6.1). In spite
of the strong preference for the direct
method, AASB 1026 also requires the dis-
closure of the reconciliation of cash flows
of the operating activities to the net income
after tax using the indirect method.

The main reason for the above preference
for the direct method is that this method
presents a true cash flow statement, that is,
it shows operating cash receipts and pay-
ments. Such a presentation provides infor-
mation about the sources of cash from op-
erating activities and how such cash was
used. This is important because knowledge
of the sources of cash and the application
of the available cash in the past periods
makes estimation of the future cash flows
much easier. This advantage is expressed
in paragraph 19 of the standard.

The indirect method has its advantage
too because it shows the differences or the
connection between net income and the net
cash flow. The main complaint about the
indirect method, is that, the details are

1

2

3

4

4 “Statement of Cash Flows”, Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 95, paras 4 -5 (Stanford,
Conn,  FASB 1987)

5  “Statement of Cash Flows”, Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 95 (Stanford, Conn,
FASB 1987)
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6 Skousen, Stice & Stice (2000), Intermediate Account-
ing. 14th Edition, South-Western Australia p. 228.

confusing to statement users. For example,
showing the adding back of non-cash items
such as depreciation suggests that such
expenses are sources of cash. The indirect
method is considered more suitable as a
reconciliation statement rather than as the
primary statement.

The operating cash flow requirements
under the MASB 5 are quite consistent
with the practices in many other countries.
The expressed preference for the direct
method is aimed at promoting uniformity
amongst the enterprises. However, in many
countries, including Malaysia, this does not
discourage the use of the more complex
indirect method. The reason for the pref-
erence for the indirect method may be that
in using the direct method, enterprises are
also obliged to present the indirect method
anyway as a reconciliation statement. The
requirement in Australia where the simpler
direct method is made mandatory helps
towards a better user understanding of the
cash flow statement and also contributes
towards uniformity. This is also consistent
with the conceptual framework require-
ment for “understandability”.

Reporting Cash Flow from
Investing and Financing Activities

Paragraph 21 provides that major classes
of gross cash receipts and gross cash pay-
ments arising from investing and financ-
ing activities are to be reported separately
except for certain cash flows which may
be reported on the net basis. These excep-
tions are discussed in the paragraphs that
follow.

In paragraph 39, it is provided that the
aggregate cash flows arising from the ac-
quisitions and disposals of subsidiaries or
other business units should be presented
separately and classified as investing ac-
tivities.

Reporting Cash Flow
on a Net Basis

As a general rule, the requirement un-
der the standard is that all cash flow activi-
ties must be reported on a gross basis.
However, paragraphs 22 through 24 pro-
vide an exemption to this rule by allowing
certain cash flows to be reported on a net
basis. This is quite consistent with the re-
quirement in other countries. The advan-

tage of reporting cash flows on a net basis
is that it makes the cash flow statement
much simpler by not cramming it with so
much data making the statement more
complex. But on the other hand, report-
ing on a net basis may hide important op-
erating, investing or financing activities.
Thus the principle of full disclosure
demands that the exemptions are to be at
a minimum.

The standard provides that cash flow
from the following operating, investing and
financial activities may be reported as fol-
lows on a net basis :

cash flows which are, in substance,
transacted on behalf of customers
rather than its own cash transactions;
and

cash flows where the turnover is quick,
the amounts are large, and the maturi-
ties are short.

Foreign Currency Cash Flows
The standard includes a discussion on

foreign currency cash flow. This provides
a guidance on how cash flow from transac-
tions in a foreign currency and that from a
foreign subsidiary should be recorded us-
ing the appropriate exchange rate. How-
ever, the wordings in the paragraphs con-
cerned which were originally those of the
IASC, should have been altered to suit the
local needs. For example, the phrase “an
enterprise’s reporting currency” should
have been altered to “ringgit”.

Interest and Dividends
This part of the cash flow statement has

been a confusion amongst accounting stu-
dents who expect items like interest and
dividends payment to be reported under
the financing activity, and the receipts of
these items to be classified under the in-
vesting activity. The standard provides that
these items may be reported under any of
the three activities so long as it is done
consistently from year to year. The reason
for this flexibility is that there are pros and
cons for each type of presentation. For ex-
ample, as explained in paragraph 34, divi-
dend paid may be classified under financ-
ing activity because it is the cost of obtain-
ing funds. On the other hand it is also ar-
gued that dividend payment should be clas-

sified under the operating activity because
dividend is usually paid out of the operat-
ing activity cash flow. The need for consis-
tency is obvious. But comparability would
somewhat be enhanced if the standard
expresses some preference as to where
these items should be classified. For this
reason, in the US, the FASB has decided
to classify cash receipts from interests and
dividends under operating activities with
the rationale that the operating activities
section contains the cash flow effects of
items included in the income statement.6

Taxes in Income
Paragraph 35 states that taxes on income

should be separately disclosed and should
be classified as cash flow from operating
activities. It argues that “while tax expense
may be readily identifiable with investing
and financing activities, the related tax cash
flows are often impracticable to identify and
may arise in a different period from cash
flows of the underlying transactions.
Therefore, taxes paid are usually classified
as cash flow from operating activities.”
Such a stand contributes much to the com-
parability of cash flow reporting.

Acquisitions and Disposals of
Subsidiaries and Other

Business Units
Paragraph 39 is rather general in the

sense that it covers not only cash but also
non- cash disclosures. It outlines items to
be presented in aggregate under para-
graph 40 which are :

the total purchase and disposal consid-
eration;

the portion of the purchase or disposal
consideration discharged by means of
cash and cash equivalents;

the amount of cash and cash equiva-
lents in the subsidiary or business unit
acquired or disposed of ; and

the amount of the assets and liabilities
other than cash or cash equivalents in
the subsidiary or business unit ac-
quired or disposed of, summarised by
each major category
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Paragraphs 40(b) and 40(c) require the
disclosure of the cash consideration as well
as the portion of cash in the subsidiary or
business units purchased or disposed of.
The way this is done is shown in the ex-
ample in Appendix 1. The two amounts are
netted in the cash flow statement but shown
separately in the notes to the statement.

Non-Cash Transactions
Paragraph 43 of the standard provides

that non-cash transactions related to invest-
ing and financing activities are to be ex-
cluded from the cash flow statement. It also
provides examples of such non-cash items.
This is rightly so because as is stated in
paragraph 44, the exclusion of non-cash
transactions from the cash flow statement
is consistent with the objective of the state-
ment. The omission of the non-cash invest-
ing and financing transactions is, however,
one of the weaknesses of the cash flow
statement because these constitute impor-
tant information. The standard provides
that information relating to these non-cash
items should be disclosed elsewhere in the
financial statements in a way that provides
all the relevant information about these
investing and financing activities. The stan-
dard is not being specific enough. Disclo-
sure of the non-cash items such as the ac-
quisition of an enterprise by means of an
equity issue, in the financial statements
would not provide the necessary informa-
tion. It is much better disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements as is required
in Australia as provided for under AASB
1026.

Components of Cash and Cash
Equivalents

The standard requires the components
of cash and cash equivalents to be dis-
closed with a reconciliation of the amount
in its cash flow statement with the equiva-
lent items in the balance sheet. This infor-
mation should be disclosed in the notes to
the cash flow statement, an example of
which is shown in Appendix 2.

Other Disclosures
Disclosures are required for any signifi-

cant amount of cash and cash equivalent
balances that are not available to be used
by the group, for example cash held by an

overseas subsidiary subject to a currency
restriction control. An example of this dis-
closure is also shown in Appendix 1.

Besides the above, enterprises are also
encouraged to make certain disclosures to
help statement users in understanding the
financial position and liquidity of an enter-
prise. Among these are the information on
the amount of cash flows arising from the
operating, investing and financing activities
of each reported industry and geographi-
cal segment. These voluntary disclosures
can indeed help users gauge the relative
importance of each of the activities in
terms of cash flow.

Summary and Conclusion
The statement of cash flow has evolved

from the earlier Statement of Source and
Application of Fund, which later became
the Statement of Changes in Financial Po-
sition and in the late 1980s it finally
became the Statement of Cash Flows. In
Malaysia the Statement of Cash Flows
came to be included as a part of the
financial statements of limited companies
in 1996 when MIA adopted IAS (Revised)
“Cash Flow Statement”. The current
reporting of the cash flow is governed by
MASB 5 which superseded IAS 7 in 1999.

MASB 5 covers all the topics expected
to be covered under the standard quite
comprehensively. Some parts of the dis-
cussions are supported by examples given
in the appendices at the back of the stan-
dard. The most important parts of the
standard deal with the presentation of
cash flow statement and reporting the
cash flow from the different activities.

Alternatives allowed by accounting stan-
dard setting bodies, while providing for
flexibility, have not helped towards the uni-
formity in reporting and comparability of
the financial statements. In this standard,
two alternatives are allowed in the
presentation of the cash flow from operat-
ing activities. The standard states its pref-
erence for the more understandable direct
method, at the same time allowing the use
of the indirect method, and encouraging
the presentation of a reconciliation between
cash flows from operation and the net profit
where the direct method is used. The
expressed preference in the standard has
not received much response in practice. In

many countries, companies seem to prefer
the more complex indirect method with the
argument that it shows the connection
between the cash flow from operating
activities and the net income of the period.
But the direct method provides for a better
understanding of the cash flow from
operating activities by showing the sources
and the uses of the operational cash and
this is more important than just seeing the
connection. The Australian stand, which
makes the use of the direct method
mandatory, seems to be more consistent
with the needs of financial statement users.
It also provides for a better understanding
of the cash flow from operating activities,
and is more in line with the conceptual
framework on the requirement for “under-
standability”.

The standard also allows interests and
dividends to be reported under any of the
three activities so long as it is consistently
done from year to year. It is for the reason
of uniformity and comparability that in the
US the FASB requires that cash receipts
of interest and dividends are to be
classified under operating activities.

The standard’s stand regarding income
tax expense is commendable. It decides that
all income tax paid is to be classified under
operating activities, although such payments
may be identifiable with other activities

On the presentation of the non-cash
items, the standard states that it is to be
presented elsewhere in the financial state-
ments in a way that provides all the rel-
evant information about those investing
and financing activities. By “elsewhere in
the financial statements” does it also
include notes to the financial statements?
In this context, the Australian standard is
more specific. It plainly states that such
information is to be disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements.

On the whole MASB 5 contains all the
necessary topics and has been a useful
guide to the preparers, in particular, in the
presentation of statement of cash flows.
But perhaps in the setting of the standard,
more attention should be paid to the needs
of users as well.

Note : The writer can be contacted at
shaari@um.edu.my
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The Value of
Your Values By Rajen Devadason

Physicists love the word ‘entropy’. It refers to the tendency
every natural system has to move from a state of order to that
of maximum chaos. Entropy explains why astronomers
believe the universe appears to be heading toward a final
‘heat death’, countless billions of years from now. Entropy can
also be used to rationalise why your clients’ accounts some-
times refuse to balance; and why your teenager’s bedroom
might look like a concussion grenade just went off in it.

Not surprisingly, entropy also works in our financial

lives. This regular feature represents Akauntan Nasional’s
(AN) serious bid to educate all Malaysians of the need for
wise adherence to sensible financial planning principles
and strategies. Each accountant is a centre of influence —
in your of fice, to your colleagues and clients; and in your
home, to your family. Money Tree is thus designed to help
you learn and then teach — in steps — all that is impor-
tant in crafting a life of financial abundance, bounty and
contentment.

Join me in a thought experiment :
You are a mid-career accountant
who is good at his job. However,
you feel under-recognised. Even
though the level of job security is
high despite the uncertain eco-

nomic environment, you dream of a better
job.

Then, one day as you’re scanning the
classifieds to see what’s out there in the
job market, the phone rings. A corporate
headhunter says she represents a new
company looking for the right person to
come aboard as an equity-sharing Chief
Financial Officer.

You’re tempted to grab the offer, but then
your well-honed sense of prudence kicks
in. You say you might be interested, but
would like to find out more. Specifically :

The reasons for starting the business,
and how it arrived at its present state;

The traumas and growing pains the
business was experiencing, as well as
expected transitions;

Goals for product development and
market expansion, and their history of
meeting goals; and

The ethos by which the company is run.

The headhunter is a little taken aback
by your focused interrogation, but agrees
to set up a meeting between you and the
shareholders of the company.

My true intention for sharing this with you
was not to prepare you for your next job! (But
if I have inadvertently done that, you’re most
welcome.) What I wanted to do was under-
score the tremendous parallels existing be-
tween corporate and personal life.

For instance, when I teach financial plan-
ning and retirement planning in seminars
attended by Malaysian pre-retirees within
multinational corporations, I often high-
light the tremendous equivalence between
a company’s cashflow statement and an
individual’s budget. I do the same when dis-
cussing the parallels between a
corporation’s balance sheet and a person’s
net worth statement.

The similarities between corporations
and people don’t end there. Even the four
‘corporate’ queries listed above to help tar-
gets assess the viability of a headhunter’s
offer are similar to the questions a top-
notch financial planner would ask a new
client at the beginning of an engagement.

Those who prefer to trek through the fi-
nancial planning savannah by themselves
can also make use of similar questions.
Doing so helps individuals identify their
deepest qualitative values before diving into
the quantitative aspects of personal finan-
cial planning. I came across those four point-
ers in an insightful article entitled ‘Finan-
cial Life Planning :  Moving to Q2 In-
quiry”, written by Roy Diliberto and Mitch

Anthony in the January 2003 issue of the
US-published Journal of Financial Planning.

Diliberto and Anthony maintain that tra-
ditional financial planners and other finan-
cial professionals often focus excessively
on the quantitative side of things, which
they designate Q1, to the detriment of
qualitative issues, Q2.

Here’s a simple framework to distinguish
between the two Qs.

If a financial planner tells you all you need
to do is give him details of your net worth
statement and cashflow statement, and
he will then be able to crunch the num-
bers in some proprietary software pack-
age, that approach would epitomise Q1.
It boils down to using a ‘black box’ where
numbers go in one end and solutions mi-
raculously emerge out the other.

Don’t get me wrong; having the capacity
to exercise mathematical rigour within the
financial planning process is crucial. But it
is not the whole process.

This quantitative, logical approach works
best when dealing with ‘hard’ financial issues
such as asset management, tax planning, risk
management and liability management.

However, a second thought experiment
should help you realise the hard, quantita-
tive approach by itself is insufficient when
dealing with human beings.

(continued on page 36)
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UNDERSTANDING

JUST HARD NUMBERS

 IS NOT ENOUGH

FOR A COMPLETE

FINANCIAL PLAN

Consider Jack and John. Each is 40 years old, earns
RM12,000 a month, has a net worth identical to the other’s, a
non-working wife and a four-year-old son. Since all those pa-
rameters are the same, a financial planner who solely employed
a ‘black box’ number-crunching approach would generate iden-
tical retirement, liability management and kid’s education fund-
ing programmes for the two men.

But what about Jack and
John’s ‘soft’ differences? Say
Jack feels strongly against
investing in ‘sin’ stocks in-
volved in gambling, alco-
hol and tobacco, while
John doesn’t care either
way. Let’s also say Jack’s
temperament allows him
to sleep at night when
the stock market
plunges, while John
needs to check the
value of his invest-
ments twice a day!

There is no way purely
quantitative financial plan-
ning can optimally meet the
needs of both men. What is required
is a qualitative layer to the entire financial planning process
that takes into account their different values. For instance, an
automatic investment programme that does not take into con-
sideration Jack’s ethical position would probably leave him with
a growing dissatisfaction and sense of uneasiness that could
mar his long-term peace of mind, and thus quality of life.

Because financial planning is defined as ‘the process of meet-
ing your life goals through the proper management of your
finances’, the individuality of each person must be taken into
account when plans are constructed. Otherwise, the goals of
the life in question cannot be truly, completely and holistically
met. As Ernest Caldecott noted, “Ethical living is the indispens-
able condition of all that is most worthwhile in the world.”

You must understand I am not making a judgment call that Jack
is more ethical than John. Instead, I am saying their ethical stands
are dissimilar — arising from a multitude of psychological, ge-
netic, environmental, religious and cultural differences. And there
are many other factors.

For instance, geographic proximity plays a role. The value sets
of two Americans, even if one is a Protestant Republican and the
other a Muslim Democrat, are likely to be more closely aligned
than the value sets of an Iraqi soldier and a Maori warrior.

So, if the financial planning process is to succeed at the highest
and deepest levels, an accurate assessment of an individual’s val-
ues must be made. Unfortunately, this task is further compli-
cated because most people’s value sets are dynamic, not
static. In my opinion, both professional financial planners
and serious D-I-Y self-planners should pay heed to an ob-
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servation by George Matthew Adams :

“One of the great arts in living is to learn the art of accurately
appraising values. Everything that we think, that we earn,
that we have given to us, that in any way touches our con-
sciousness, has its own value. These values are apt to change
with the mood, with time, or because of circumstances. We
cannot safely tie ourselves to any material value. The values
of all material possessions change continually, sometimes
overnight. Nothing of this nature has any permanent set value.
The real values are those that stay by you, give you happi-
ness and enrich you. They are the human values.”

That is a terrifyingly tall order
for a financial planner — even a
Certified Financial Planner — to
fill! If you ask me, only God can
keep track of the dynamically shift-
ing shades of value transitions in
a person. But just because it is im-
possible for mere humans to do the
job perfectly, doesn’t mean it can’t

be done adequately.
It can be. A proper approach to finan-

cial planning is the place to start — one
incorporating the qualitative, ‘soft’ as-
pects of financial planning. According to
Diliberto and Anthony, the ‘soft’ aspects
can be understood — at least to a use-
fully high, if still imperfect, degree —
by contemplating four cornerstones of
what they designate ‘financial life plan-
ning’. The four cornerstones are  :

The client’s history;

The client’s present circum-
stances, including transitions;

The client’s hopes and goals;

The client’s principles and values
toward life and money.

(continued from page 32)
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If you go over the four pointers listed in
the first thought experiment, you will see
a direct parallel between the sensible ques-
tions you, as a potential headhunted CFO,
would ask possible hirers, and Diliberto
and Anthony’s four cornerstones.

As I write this, American allied forces
have begun firing on Iraq, as part of a big
push into Baghdad. By the time you read
this, the war will either be over or not. I
don’t know which. What I do know is the
resultant volatility in the stock market and
the oil market, with knock-on effects on the
entire economy, will be something inves-
tors must deal with.

Those investors with value sets and psy-
chological makeups that preclude handling
roller coaster market activity should settle
for either bank deposit rates or, for the sav-
vier savers, bond-based unit trust returns.

Others who think they are internally
wired to take nauseating volatility in their
stride will have the opportunity to prove
their mettle. The toughest of these should
gear up for increased equity exposure and
put in place programmes allowing them to
invest more aggressively in low markets,
say below Composite Index, CI, levels of
perhaps 600 or 500 or 400 points (whatever
their gut or trusted advisor suggests).

In my opinion, though, they should also
establish intelligent exit points on the up-
side to harvest the profits likely to come
their way some time later.

Whether that time of profit-taking is two
weeks, two months or two years out, I don’t
know. Nobody does. But the stock market
has always, always, always recovered from
awful bear markets! I don’t expect this time
to be any different.

Some of you reading this may have a dif-
ferent opinion. I respect that. I do urge you
however to look at things objectively to
make sure you aren’t falling for the ‘trap of
saliency’. Let me explain :

Saliency is a psychological term that re-
fers to the strange way our all too human
brains react to extreme trauma. There are
two criteria to consider when contemplat-
ing the saliency effect of a particular event:
Intensity of the trauma, and just how re-
cent the event was.

Let’s say for many, many years you have
no problems with muggers after you with-
draw cash from an ATM. Then, one day

you are robbed!
The very next time you go to the ATM

to take out money, you are likely to be pet-
rified, convinced you will be robbed again.
And this is almost certain to be the case
even if you had made almost weekly ATM
withdrawals for the last decade without in-
cident. For simplicity, let’s assume you
have made 499 withdrawals without inci-
dent, before the 500th tragic one.

In simple probability terms, it is easy to
see the chance of making a ‘safe’ with-
drawal is 499/500 = 99.8 per cent. And the
probability of making an ‘unsafe’ with-
drawal is 1/500 = 0.2 per cent. The odds
are overwhelmingly in your favour that you
won’t have any more problems with mug-
gers for a long, long time.

Yet, our human brains often choose to
ignore the high ‘good’ probability and fo-
cus on the low ‘bad’ one.

Those of you who understand the fun-
damental tenet of ‘value investing’ (which
must not be confused with the ‘human val-
ues’ we’ve been talking about so far) will
appreciate the value (pun intended) of un-
derstanding saliency.

Value investing, such as is practiced by
capitalist virtuosos like Warren Buffett and
our home-grown Tan Teng Boo of Capital
Dynamics Asset Management, boils down
to purchasing RM1 of value for, say, 50 sen
because of a temporary mispricing in the
market. This often happens because inves-
tors fall into the trap of saliency and be-
lieve only bad news can follow a spell of
not-so-great news. These market losers
then sell and keep selling, thus allowing
eventual long-term market winners to pick
up valuable assets at cents on the dollar.

Those who invested in the Malaysian
equities market in the first half of 1993 and
reaped profits in the second half of that now
long-distant superbull year know what I am
talking about. More recently, the early Sep-
tember 1998 ‘mega sale’ sub 300-point level
of the CI granted savvy, brave investors the
ability to grow very rich, very fast.

The trouble is only people with the ap-
propriate quantitative and qualitative at-
tributes can take advantage of such rare,
but rewarding periods of market largesse.
They need the ‘hard’ attributes of having
sufficient cashflow to generate funds for
investments, large enough cash reserves
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Note :  The writer, a certified financial planner and
professional trainer, is co-author of best sellers Fi-
nancial Freedom – Your Guide to Lifetime Finan-
cial Planning and Financial Freedom 2 – Through
Malaysian Equities and Unit Trusts, (publisher: Pub-
lic Mutual). His latest book is entitled Liberty! From
Debt-Slave to Money Master, (publisher: i2Media).
Rajen is CEO of RD WealthCreation Sdn. Bhd. He
welcomes questions and comments on any aspect
of personal finance in Malaysia. So, please feel free
to ‘snail mail’ c/o Akauntan Nasional or e-mail
rajendevadason@yahoo.co.uk and cc
devadason@maxis.net.my. You can also visit him
at www.i2media.com.my/wealthcreation.

in their net worth statement for judicious
reallocation, and sufficient time on their
side to take equity market risks. They also
need the ‘soft’ attributes of clarity, courage,
calmness, and conviction.

Financial planners, if given sufficient
time, can help most people improve their
quantitative qualities. But they are unlikely
to be able to change a person’s qualitative
traits, even though his value set is actually
in dynamic flux. Neither should they even
try. What they should do is help a person
understand who he is today, and then man-
age his expectations of what is possible and
what is not, based on quantitative and quali-
tative limitations.

That doesn’t mean there is no room to
educate a dyed-in-the-wool fixed deposit
saver in the anticipated, long-term, infla-
tion beating growth attributes of direct
equities, unit trusts, investment real estate
and perhaps even private equity invest-
ments. But such educational initiatives
must begin with a deep respect for, and
understanding of, the client’s values.

Those Malaysians who remain commit-
ted to D-I-Y financial planning will have a
much tougher task at this juncture be-
cause of the inherent difficulty in reinvent-
ing ourselves from the inside out with no
help from external experts. I’m not say-
ing it can’t be done; just that it is so tough
most people won’t bother to exert the ef-
fort.

But a few will :  The ones who take the
trouble to plumb the depths of their own
value system to create a viable, life-enhanc-
ing financial plan that incorporates both
quantitative and qualitative factors.
Chances are high these brave hearts will
evolve into true value investors – those who
buy when most others are selling and sell
when most are buying. AN
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Saving Time and Money
with Customised Financial
Management Software

A C C O U N T I N G  I T

Microsoft Business Solutions, one of the
seven core businesses of Microsoft, offers a
wide range of integrated, end-to-end business
applications and services designed to help
small, midmarket and corporate businesses
become more connected with customers,
employees, partners and suppliers. Microsoft
Business Solutions’ applications optimise stra-
tegic business processes across financial man-
agement, analytics, human resources man-
agement, project management, customer re-
lationship management, field service manage-
ment, supply chain management, e-com-
merce, manufacturing and retail manage-
ment. The applications are designed to pro-
vide insight to help customers achieve busi-
ness success. For more information about
Microsoft Business Solutions, please visit
www.microsoft.com/BusinessSolutions, e-
mail :  mbsasia@microsoft.com or call Patrina
Chew at +65 6433-5467, for further enquiries.

There is no longer any doubt that the
ability to customise software is para-
mount to return on investment (ROI)
in new technology. Even the ability to

shave five or ten seconds off the cheque writ-
ing or sales order taking process can save hun-
dreds of hours every year. In this article, J.
Carlton Collins, an independent technology con-
sultant, talks about key customisation factors
when choosing a financial management system.

Collins believes that the ability to customise
applications, screens and interfaces is a key fac-
tor when choosing a financial management sys-
tem.

By cutting just 10 minutes a day from the time
taken by end-users to complete tasks, such as
order processing, even small companies can im-
prove productivity and reduce costs significantly.

“Customisation capabilities are the most impor-
tant features to consider when selecting account-
ing software,” he says. “Every business has unique
needs. But for an accounting software vendor to
meet 100 per cent of those needs would serve only
to produce bloated software that would be diffi-
cult and cumbersome to use,” Collins said.

“Today’s best strategy is to choose software
that can provide 80-85 per cent of functionality
out of the box, yet also includes tools that can
customise applications to meet up to 95 per cent
of business needs.”

Embracing Customisation

During the 1980s and 1990s, a number of com-
panies were seriously distracted by the need to
completely rewrite their software using more
flexible architectures.

“The problem for many software companies
was that it required a radical strategic change
in approach to allow for customisation,” Collins
said. “Companies who had an underlying
architecture that was difficult to change had to
either rewrite their software or star t from
scratch. Others whose software already lent it-
self to customisation, such as Microsoft Busi-
ness Solutions, were able to embrace it.”

Boosting Productivity

Adding value to the customisation process
involves working with end-users to set up
screens that are highly specific to day-to-day
tasks. For example, a sales order processing
person in one company will require all of the
fields in the typical accounting software screen.
A user in another company will need to use half
of those fields, and will not want to spend time
tabbing through irrelevant data fields.

By customising the screen at this level, a com-
pany can save time and boost the productivity of
its staff significantly. Changes can continue to be
made as end-users refine their use of the soft-
ware. They may find that they are dealing with a
particular set of values or customer names. In-
stead of having to enter details each time, they

can set up a drop-down menu that lists commonly
used information. “It’s relatively easy to set up
defaults in software so that you’re not entering
the same information each time,” says Collins.
“You should also be able to customise software
for groups of users, such as sales order process-
ing staff, or sales representatives, as well as indi-
vidual users. Some groups of users require the
ability to record and access far more complex
information than other groups.”

Taking it One Step Further

Collins said that sophisticated accounting
systems can have as many as 10,000 screens
where users input data. These are stored in a
database and can be searched to create finan-
cial repor ts, which in themselves can be
customised to meet the needs of the business.

For example, an invoice created to bill for
work carried out for a government agency may
need to have a specific code included before it
will be paid. Accounting software must be flex-
ible enough to allow this code to be included on
invoices or statements — otherwise reprogra-
ming of the core system will be necessary.

Thinking Ahead

The way in which software can be customised
is an important issue for the future. Some soft-
ware can only be changed at its source by its
developer. This is much more likely to be the
case where a vendor has custom-made the soft-
ware specifically for an individual company.

Other software can be changed by the local
vendor, but only by using expensive and com-
plicated programming tools. This second ap-
proach means that software may be difficult to
change as a business grows or develops.

A third option (adopted by Microsoft Business
Solutions) is to produce software with easy-to-use
source code tools built-in that can be used by local
vendors and end users. The key point to check here
is that software can still be upgraded when new
versions are launched by the original developer.

“In the past, organisations found that they
could not update their financial software when
new versions were released because they had
modified their packages,” Collins said.

“Today, software developers like Microsoft
Business Solutions have figured out how to store
customised processes in a separate data dictio-
nary, so that customisation is preserved even
when the overall application is upgraded. Func-
tionality is effectively held separately from the
underlying database.”

Avoiding the Risks

Companies that fail to take advantage of the
ability to customise financial management soft-
ware will continue to run the risk of adding time
to business processes, or at least failing to do
all that they can to improve productivity.

“Companies with software that can’t be ad-
equately customised need to find ways to work
round it,” Collins said. “They end up making their
software unstable by relying on third party add-
ons or spreadsheets, and are forced to re-enter
information a number of times. The real cost of
new software comes from the additional time
taken by users to complete processes.”

As Collins explained, ROI in new technology is
more important now than ever. In order to justify
new investment in software, organisations need to
be able to prove that the software is customisable.
If it is not, then it will fail to boost user productivity,
as well as attract extra programming costs in the
future as the business grows or changes.

The Carlton Collins Checklist

Collins’ checklist for any company investing
in financial management software should
include the following questions :
• Can you customise financial statements, re-

ports and forms?
• Can you customise cheques and invoices?
• Can you customise data input screens and

add/subtract data fields to/from the under-
lying database?

• Can you pull information into the system from
external sources?

• Is the source code of the software available
to resellers?

• How much does it cost to customise the software
at each level, and how much time does it take?

• Do you allow end-users to change the system?
• Do they have to buy a special add-on kit in

order to do so?
• Do you lose customisations when you upgrade

to a newer version of the product?

Ask the Right Questions

By asking those questions in advance,
organisations can ensure they have financial
management software that fits their business
both now and in the future.

“The most important feature to look for in account-
ing software is the ability to tailor it to specific needs,”
Collins says. “But there are varying levels of
customisation. Understanding the questions to ask
is a vital part of the selection process.”
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NEGOTIATING
THE JAPANESE
Way By Sergey Frank

J A PA N

B U S I N E S S  W AT C H

Negotiators from West
ern Europe and the
US tend to of fer a
draft contract to the
other par ty, which

may be used as a general guideline for the
negotiation. The idea, similar for example
to a German or American approach, is to
discuss each topic point-by-point. In Japan
it is recommended to keep the draft con-
tract to yourself. Japanese and Western con-
tracts are very different in purpose, form
and content. A Western agreement is writ-
ten to define the purpose and to conclude
the negotiation. It contains highly detailed
clauses to pin down every aspect of the
transaction. On the contrary, a Japanese
contract is written to start a business rela-
tionship. Its primary intent is to establish
what both parties have agreed in mutual co-
operation. It is usually very short and lacks
specifics. Frequently, a Japanese-style con-
tract unlike US or European agreements will
not explicitly cover all possible contingen-
cies but may leave space for flexibility and
potential re-negotiation. Therefore, the
document will usually be shorter than legal
papers drafted on a US or European legal
background. The Japanese generally feel
that agreements even after their finalisation
require time and maturity. As both parties
begin to co-operate over a considerable pe-
riod of time, the mutual understanding upon

mind and also focus on both, active listen-
ing and asking questions. To understand the
other’s case correctly, one should let him
have his say, listen carefully and interrupt
only when a particular point is not fully un-
derstood—listening and understanding cer-
tainly does not mean agreeing with a par-
ticular opinion. The ability to listen is cru-
cial in any bargaining context, especially in
Japan. Further, the reaction of silence has
often the psychological effect that the other
side, especially coming from the West, feels
compelled to justify his case and continues
arguing. Thereby, he may disclose more
valuable information than absolutely neces-
sary just for purposes of legitimating. It is
recommended that negotiations should be
less verbal and actively use silences and

which agreements are based becomes
clearer. Should circumstances change after
an agreement has been reached your Japa-
nese partner will assume that flexibility,
adjustment and pragmatics ought to domi-
nate the continuation of such agreement. If
necessary, he will feel free to re-negotiate
and alter the agreement or parts of it. Do
not forget, a Western contract is written to
conclude a negotiation whereas a Japanese
contract is intended to start a business re-
lationship. Therefore, the role of lawyers
within the negotiation process is less influ-
ential than in the West. This does not mean
that you should refrain from any legal help.
It rather means you should achieve a pro-
found understanding of the other side and
only involve a lawyer when necessary. In
each individual case one should evaluate
whether to use a Japanese style or Western
style contract.

Listening is a Virtue
One of the key characteristics is the abil-

ity to listen: Japanese negotiators have a
high level of listening skills probably de-
rived from their use of non-verbal commu-
nication. Unlike Western approaches where
active speaking and a focus on “I” and “We”
is predominant, the key to success in Japan
is different. It is not so much to talk and to
persuade by simply “over talking” but rather
to listen. One should have this approach in

The role of the consultant as a chartered accountant, or
any other professional, is not identical all over the world.
Despite this fact and despite all efforts to move closer to
a single global set of accounting standards, the
necessary communication with the international client is
still and will also remain subject to a different set of rules.
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pauses. Never break a silence as a team
member. This should be done by the team
leader only. However, get used to a longer
silence as expected and do not become im-
patient. Do not forget, “silence” in Japan is
indeed a virtue.

Information Gathering Process
During the negotiating process one of the

main activities is the gathering of facts. Your
Japanese collaborator wants to know as
much as possible about you, your company
and the project in question in order to be
able to evaluate a long-term business rela-
tionship. So, be prepared to substantiate

your proposal with details, especially con-
sistent arguments. Be further prepared to
receive many questions, which will have two
aims—to acquire further information and
to check on your consistency and personal
credibility. In this context avoid being over-
active when taking the lead. Rather, let your
Japanese counterpart be the leader in the
communication process. Don’t forget it
takes time to gather enough information to
satisfy the Japanese side. Again, one impor-
tant aspect is non-verbal communication:
one member of your team should monitor
the non-verbal gestures of the other side,
especially during your own presentation and
report his feedback and observation from
time to time. Much valuable information can
be gained from this exercise.

Consensus-making Process
In the Japanese business culture, deci-

sions are frequently reached by consensus.
The group is of far greater importance than
the individual. In any conflict, the interest
of the group will be given priority. Together,
the top and middle management discuss
business issues and come to a joint decision.
This plays an important role in negotiations
since it is not enough to persuade only the
obvious top management on the other side
but one has to also seek approval from the
representatives of the middle management
who take part in the negotiation. Therefore,
no decision will be made during the first

meeting and most likely not at the second
either. Not only “silence” but also “patience”
is essential in Japan. You should respect the
hierarchy on the other side and not expect
openly discussed decisions. Get all team
members of the other side involved in your
negotiations and avoid alienating any mem-
ber, leading to a loss of face.

The Bargaining Process
Unlike some other cultures, the Japanese

will frequently find it hard to grant conces-
sions during the actual negotiation. The rea-
son for such behaviour is the bargaining
position of the Japanese negotiators, which
is usually reached via a long internal dis-
cussion process prior to and/or during the
negotiation. The first offer by the Japanese

business partner is likely to reflect what he
believes to be the best solution for both par-
ties. If you have a different opinion, do not
disagree openly but try to work towards a
shared consensus. Concession strategies
should be decided upon in writing prior to
the start of any negotiation. It is advisable
to make your own concessions before ask-
ing your counterpart to act. Once you have
presented your picture, wait for a response
and, as always, be patient. Japanese partners
will usually take breaks in the concession-
making phase to decide internally what to
concede and in particular to get out of the
social pressure of the negotiating table. An-

other reason for such an approach is also
the need to make joint decisions, which will
frequently require a collaborator to double-
check with his headquarters. Therefore,
one should also apply the same tactics of
making concessions outside the negotiating
table and having limited authority, which
necessitates frequently referring to one’s
own headquarters. Trading concessions
with your Japanese partners may not work
out because they regard nothing to be
settled until the whole deal has been
finalised. One should not commit oneself
until all open items and interests have been
fully explored and understood. On such a
basis, one should start making concessions,
first on minor issues to help maintain a posi-
tive climate and to build trust between the
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B U S I N E S S  WAT C H

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○

Note :  The ideas put forward in the articles apply
for the actual international consultation regardless
where it is taking place. The articles aim to educate
on different ways of doing business in different
countries. This is important since it helps to
understand international business. And this
conclusion is vital because nowhere in business,
especially in international consulting, can so much
be gained and lost so quickly as in international
transactions and projects. The articles were first
published in Accounting & Business, ACCA’s
monthly publication.

Note :  Sergey Frank is a partner of Kienbaum
Executive Consultants and Managing Director
of Kienbaum Ltd., the London of fice of the
Kienbaum Group. He is a worldwide acknowl-
edged author and speaker on international com-
munication issues. www.kienbaum.co.uk
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parties and then on major items. In addi-
tion, do not try to give the impression of
imposing on or overpowering your partner.
It is better to remain firm but friendly and
discuss concepts in terms of equality, mu-
tual benefit and, especially, reciprocity. Do
not forget patience and save major conces-
sions until the end.

Timing
Certain behaviour indicates that the Japa-

nese side may wish to finalise the transac-
tion. Softening the position, bringing in
high-level executives as mediators or inde-
pendent representatives as well as informal
meetings. Japanese negotiators believe that
negotiations require a great deal of time and
planning. Keep enough time in reserve. Do
not let your hands be tied by your own
organisation; try to remain as flexible as
possible to respond to possible bureaucratic
hurdles from the other side. In this context
it is not advisable to put the other side un-
der time pressure. One should try to avoid

a rushed negotiating approach. For ex-
ample, do not enter immediately into joint
venture negotiations, which involve high
risks because of the usually high amount of
managerial engagement and the required
equity investment. It is wiser to start nego-
tiating a non-equity co-operation with less
commitment. This enables you to gain ex-
perience of how to do business and how to
co-operate on totally unfamiliar territory.

The Team
The Japanese usually negotiate in a team

rather than alone. They usually outnumber
their counterparts. Prior to the negotia-

tions it is very important to find out who
will represent the Japanese side in the ne-
gotiations and select your team accord-
ingly. Here, the local agent may be useful.
In this context, it is advisable not to hesi-
tate to include additional technical or finan-
cial experts in the team. The incremental
cost may turn out to be a very good invest-
ment. Moreover, there is much to be gained
by a team approach versus a “go alone”
strategy, since many skills are simulta-
neously required at the negotiating table.

Listening, explaining, bargaining, main-
taining a positive climate and atmosphere,
making calculations, giving presentations
as well as keeping track of all technical and
financial documentation passed over or
received from the other side. Co-ordinated
teamwork is a far better choice in order to
accomplish such a multitude of tasks rather
than having only one person handling all
these assignments by himself.

Once the project is formalised your Japa-
nese counterpart will like to celebrate this

event with a formal dinner. Such a ceremony
is important. Gifts may be exchanged and top
executives from both parties may be present
to celebrate the occasion. An interpreter and
local agent should inform you in advance about
rules of propriety and ceremony.

To sum it all up, one should take the fol-
lowing into account: watch time and tim-
ing, focus on a long-term business relation-
ship, create and maintain a comfortable at-
mosphere, use silence and pauses, con-
sider feedback, apply active listening, ac-
cept Japanese ambiguity and, last but not
least, use non-business get-togethers for
conveying messages.

A local
Japanese agent

Cold calls are not customary to start a
business connection in Japan. There-
fore, a local contact who has knowl-
edge of the specific industry and a
good local image should avail you of
the appropriate introduction to the lo-
cal business community. Observe the
existing social customs and business
rules there. In short, the advantages
of a local agent are :

� introduction/door opening;

� know-how concerning — domestic
customs; connections, network; the
other side;

� transference of “informal informa-
tion” via local agent;

� mediating;

� interpreting; and

� not necessarily being a member of
the negotiating team.
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Conducting

International
Business By Genevieve Wordsworth

“We live in a globally
connected age. The way to

continue this historic growth
is to negotiate agreements
that remove barriers to the
nation’s (American) goods
and services.” — Bill Gates

 Managers can ill-afford to ignore the
rules and regulations of a country from
which they conduct international business
transactions. Many of the laws and regula-
tions do not specifically address the inter-
national business issues, yet they can have
a major impact on a firm’s opportunities
abroad.

The political environments in most coun-
tries tend to provide general support for
the international business efforts of a com-
pany based within the particular country.
For example, a country may want to reduce
trade barriers or to increase trade oppor-
tunities through bilateral or multilateral
negotiations. Some governments enact
specific rules and regulations that restrict
international business.

One of three areas of government activi-
ties that is a major concern to the interna-
tional business manager is embargo or
trade sanction. (The other activities are
export controls and the regulation of inter-
national business behaviour.)

Understanding Embargoes
and Sanctions

The terms sanction and embargo are
used to denote governmental actions that
distort free flow of trade in goods, services
or ideas, for decidedly adversarial and po-
litical, rather than economic, purposes.

Sanctions tend to encompass specific
bullying trade measures, such as cancella-
tion of trade financing or the ban of high-
tech trade. Embargoes are usually much
broader in that they prohibit trade entirely!

For example, in recent years the US im-
posed sanctions against some countries by
prohibiting the export of weapons to them,

but it initiated an embargo against Cuba
when all but humanitarian trade was
banned. To understand sanctions and em-
bargoes better it is necessary to examine
the sponsorship and legal justifications
under which they are enacted or imposed.

Trade embargoes have been used quite
frequently and successfully in times of war
or to address specific grievances. As early
as 1284, history records that North Ger-
man merchants, believing that its members
were suffering from several injustices from
Norway, called a meeting of its members
and resolved to undertake an economic
blockade of that country. The export of
grain, flour, vegetables and beer was pro-
hibited on pain of fines and confiscation of
the goods.

The blockade was a resounding success
as Norway deprived of grain from Ger-
many, and unable to obtain it from England
or elsewhere, faced a famine and had to
make atonements that included indemni-
ties for financial losses and extensive trade
privileges to the North Germans.

Over time — in the ensuing years of the
modern era — economic sanctions and em-
bargoes have become a principal tool of the

American foreign policy to many
developing nations. There have
been many instances of this be-
ing applied unilaterally to bring
about a change in government or
its policies. Reasons for the more
than one hundred such imposi-
tions that have occurred since
World War 1 have varied consid-
erably, ranging from the uphold-
ing of human rights to attempts
to promote non-proliferation of
nuclear arms or anti-terrorism.

There have been many ad-
vances in the legal justification
of economic sanctions, and these
have been incorporated into in-
ternational law under the char-
ter of the United Nations (UN).
The basic idea has been that
such economic sanctions could
force countries to behave peacefully in the
international community, and the UN char-
ter places greater emphasis on the enforce-
ment process. Sanctions decided on in the
UN, and not vetoed by the permanent
members of the Security Council, are man-
datory and with the authority of the Secu-
rity Council can be enforced by regional
agencies, e.g. Organisation of American
States, NATO, the Arab League,
Organisation of African Unity.

Iraq continues to live under a UN trade
embargo following its invasion of Kuwait.
Whilst its economy has been devastated,
Iraq has not curbed its nuclear weaponry
and military confrontation continues.

In order for sanctions to work more ef-
fectively, they need to be imposed multi-
laterally and affect all goods that are vital
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to the sanctioned country. Only on rare
occasions have close multinational collabo-
ration been achieved to strengthen sanc-
tions. It is still certainly a powerful and ef-
fective international political tool. When
one considers that sanctions may well as-
sume the middle ground between engag-
ing in war and doing nothing, its effective
functioning can represent an awesome ar-
row in the quiver of international policy
measures.

As is the case with most international
businesses, sanctions and/or embargoes
come at a price! Sanctions imposed by gov-
ernments usually mean significant loss of
business, and the issue of compensating
the domestic firms and industries affected
by such sanctions are always raised. Yet,
trying to impose these sanctions slowly or

making them less burdensome to these
firms only undercuts or negates the ulti-
mate success of the sanctions.

The international manager caught in this
political web, faces loss in business as a
result. Frequently firms try to anticipate

sanctions based on the evaluation of their
international managers and prevailing in-
ternational political climate. Nevertheless
firms must be prepared to still suffer sub-
stantial losses due to contract cancella-
tions.

In the final analysis, it is the reputation
of the supplier — unable to fulfil a contrac-
tual obligation — that will be damaged
much more seriously than that of an ex-
porter who anticipates sanctions and
realises it cannot accept the offer in the first
place!

The Iraq experience, as it unfolds to the
international world community, certainly
shows that cultural, geographic and histori-
cal ties have to be put aside before global
cooperation can be achieved in imposing
trade sanctions and embargoes.

“When one considers that
sanctions may well assume
the middle ground between
engaging in war and doing

nothing, its effective function-
ing can represent an awesome
arrow in the quiver of interna-

tional policy measures”.

AN
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Quality & Process
Management

T R A D E
M A N AG E M E N T

By Chris Read

The Productive Managers should continuously improve the process,
which with they and subordinate individuals work, rather than blame
individuals for something over which they have no real control.

Process Management
The first tool in process management is

planning and administering the activities
necessary to achieve a high level of per-
formance in a process. It also involves iden-
tifying opportunities for improving quality
and operational performance, and ulti-
mately customer satisfaction. It takes on
the design, control, and improvement of key
business process.

� Design focuses on the prevention of poor
quality by ensuring products meet cus-
tomer wants and that production/deliv-
ery processes are capable of achieving
high levels of performance.

� Control means overcoming abnormali-
ties and maintaining level performances.
Any process performance measure natu-
rally fluctuates around some average
level. Abnormal situations can cause un-
usual deviation from this pattern. Remov-
ing those causes and maintaining level
performance is the essence of control.

� Improvement on the other hand, means
altering the performance to a new level.

Thus process management activities
help prevent defects and errors, eliminate
waste and redundancy, and thereby lead
to better quality and improved company
performance through shorter phases of
time. They thus realise improved flexibil-
ity and faster customer feedback.

Principles
All leading industrial companies base

their methodology for process manage-
ment on selected principles :

� Process quality improvements focus on
the end-to-end process.

level, and is simultaneously a customer
as well as a supplier.

� Process quality improvement is driven
by customer-needs.

� Remedial action is by removing the root
cause of the problem and not just treat-
ing the symptoms.

� Process simplification is vital and re-

� Quality is one of prevention & continu-
ous improvement.

� Everyone manages a process at some
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duces margins for errors and rework.

� A disciplined and structured application
of the quality management principles is
needed to achieve objectives.

Scope of
Process Management

A process is a sequence of activities in-
tended to achieve some result, especially
to create added value to customers. Com-
mon business processes include and ac-
count for :

� acquiring customers & market knowl-
edge;

� meeting customer orders;

� purchasing;

� information management;

� new product or service development;

� production or service delivery;

� strategic planning;

� distribution;

� research & development;

� performance monitoring; and

� training.

All Work in an
Organisation is Performed

 by Some Process
Modifying and improving the process is

a continuous challenge for individual man-
agers and groups, who are given the au-
thority and hold accountability over pro-
cess performance. Customer satisfaction
is directly affected by four of these impor-
tant business practices, and leading com-
panies find it necessary to focus on the four
categories :

Design Processes that include both the
design of the product (viz., manufac-
tured goods or services), & the pro-
duction and delivery services that
create or deliver the product. No mat-
ter how well a manufactured product
is made or service rendered, poor
product design could kill a potential
market. Product design embodies all
activities performed to incorporate
customer needs into the product’s
functional specifications and thus
defines its fitness for use.

Production/Delivery Processes ensure
the product will conform to design
specifications and be produced eco-
nomically and efficiently. Careful atten-
tion to their design will influence the
efficiency of manufacture as well as the
flexibility of service strategies. Design
must be coordinated with the produc-
tion/delivery process as they are core
processes critical to customer satisfac-
tion and strategies of the company.

Support Processes generally do not add
value directly to the product or service,
but they’re critical to the operation of

the business. Support processes in-
clude information and software ser-
vices, human resources, public rela-
tions, law, regulatory activities, finance,
marketing and network security. A core
process for one company (e.g., a direct
mail distributor) might be a support
process for another firm (e.g., a custom
manufacturer). In general, ‘external cus-
tomers’ drive core processes, whereas
‘support processes’ are thru’ internal cus-
tomer needs.

Supplier Processes :  For many busi-
nesses, goods and services provided by
suppliers account for a significant por-
tion of the cost and end value of the fi-
nal product. The supplier process in-
cludes not only the companies that pro-
vide materials and components, but
also distributors, transport companies,
and information, healthcare & educa-
tion providers. Key suppliers might be
able to provide unique design, integra-
tion or marketing capabilities that are
not available within the business. As a
vital component to achieving strategic
objectives, managing supplier relation-
ships becomes an important business
process.

Application
To apply well the techniques of process

management, the processes have to meet
the criteria of being repeatable & measur-
able. Repeatability translates to the process
recurring over time. The cycle may be long
(as with the product development process/
patent applications) or may be short, as
with a manufacturing operation or an or-
der entry process. Repeatability means
enough data can be collected to reveal use-
ful information. Information is obtained
through measurement and reveals pat-
terns about the process performance. The
ability to predict performance, in turn, fa-
cilitates the detection of out-of-control con-
ditions as well as the search for improve-
ments.

“Modifying and improving the process is a continuous challenge
for individual managers and groups, who are given the authority

and hold accountability over process performance.”

1

2

3

4
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T R AV E L  A N D  L E I S U R E

Bali after the blast is definitely
different. The lack of tourists
aside, the island’s fierce spiritu-
ality and the people’s common
touch courts a different kind of
crowd back to the island

H
olidaymakers that have
travelled to Bali in recent
months are in a dilemma:
how to live up to the savvy
sun-and-surf globetrotter

image yet maintain a certain form of deco-
rum when they actually want to visit
Ground Zero.

The latest tourist must-do on any Bali
itinerary since last October’s bomb blast
— for better or worst — has given a new
twist to how travellers take on the island.

“That’s usually the first thing they ask
as soon as they arrive,” says Emil Bei, my
guide and friend from Asian Trails Indo-
nesia whom I’m meeting for the first time
despite having exchanged multiple corre-
spondences on the Net. “The very idea of
visiting the scene on holiday is both mor-
bid yet intriguing; but for many of them,
they’re just curious to see the place.”

But don’t be too quick to grab that Kodak
moment, because much of the rubble has
been cleared and that the two-metre-long
and one-metre-deep crater left by the bomb
has long been bulldozed flat and intact. The
only tell-tale sign of Bali’s traumatic past
is the handful of erected benjor — a billowy
floral religious structure made of bamboo
with young coconut leaves dangling at the
ends — put up on occasion by the locals as
a mark of respect for those who perished
(although plans are underway to erect a
monument soon). There are many scaffold-
ing lying around as Sari and Padi clubs are
being rebuilt (the targets of the blast);
while other neighbouring structures af-
fected by the blast have been perfectly plas-
tered, painted and manicured.

Despite all that, people continue to come
here — both tourists and locals alike —
the former out of sheer curiosity, the lat-
ter for prayers and offerings.

In fact, Emil told me later, it is this spir-
ited enthusiasm that has kept many Ba-

A Spiritual
Sojourn

By Anis Ramli

BALI

linese hopeful for the island’s tourism re-
covery. “Bali has definitely changed after
the incident. Six months ago, you couldn’t
even walk on either side of the main road
in Kuta without being jostled or rubbing
shoulders with other people. It was that
packed.” Now though, human traffic is at
a minimum, and while I enjoyed the enor-
mous personal space of the Bali today, the
emptiness is amplified when juxtaposed
with all the tourist and souvenir shops lin-
ing the streets with no customer in sight.

High Spirits
Ironically, it is the profound lack of crowd

that makes today’s Bali traveller more aware
of the island’s great mystic and beauty.

Suddenly, typical scenes of local women
dressed in their traditional best making
their way to the temples for offerings to
the Gods hold such a sentimental value.
Religious processions that snake through
various village centres make an intriguing
day inspection. At many of the bale banjar
(community centres), the womenfolk busy
themselves with preparing the sajen, offer-
ings made from flowers, leaves and food
that are offered to the spirits. While the
sight is no different from past communal

gatherings, more recently, there’s a kind
of solemn hush that accompanies the ac-
tivity. And with each prayer and offering
comes an additional plea: for the Gods to
return the island back to normalcy.

And whether you walk in rustic Ubud or
busy downtown Kuta, you cannot help but
be sucked into the locals’ fierce sense of pa-
triotism. At a junction, a simple poster re-
minding the locals of the 10K Solidarity Bali
Recovery Run happening soon stirred up
more patriotic spirits among the community
than the national anthem ever could — even
for a mere tourist such as I with only a fleet-
ing glimpse of the island’s aftermath. A chat
over coffee at Hard Rock swiftly changed
from surfing to song-and-dance, when the
server excitedly told me about next week’s
concert in aid of the Recovery Bali Program.

Sajen, offerings made
from flowers, leaves

and food that are
offered to the spirits
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It’s heartwarming to see the reactions of the
locals when Bali’s governing body to get Bali
back on its feet gear up for action.

Spirits are high that the island will perse-
vere. Even with the lack of tourists, locals
are upbeat going about their everyday ritu-
als. At Nelayan, one of the many seafood
restaurants that gave Jimbaran its reputa-
tion as a seafood paradise, the owners had
just added two new attractions :  a new menu

“It’s been tough. I can tell you that,” says
one of the guides, Batman, as he’d like to
be known, “but we’re optimistic. We’ve got
more people today than we could ever hope
for.” And just when his charges thought the
last of the rapids were behind them, he
dipped his paddle into the water and
splashed them with the cool, fresh waters
of the river and grinned when the effect of
his ‘work’ came to fruition.

Bali, there was no trace of bitterness, ex-
cept hope. “There’s no use in dwelling in
the past or what’s happened,” he said philo-
sophically. “Things will look up soon. The
island is incredible and the islanders even
more beautiful. People who’ve been here
will realise that and come back.”

At the entrance of the hotel, two young
Balinese dancers took their positions to
perform their daily 10-minute presentation.
As we sat to observe the graceful move-
ments of the young dancers, Anastasia
Lijadi, the Public Relations Director at Melia
Bali says, “Life has to go on. Yes, the tour-
ism industry looks bleak right now but most
locals don’t dwell on it. You’ll find that the
incident has brought many Balinese to-
gether. They may have lost a lot in tourism,
but they have also gained a lot spiritually.”

So, yes — there are still the beaches, the
surfs, the art markets, and the great Ba-
linese outdoors. But the new Bali offers the
traveller much more than just sun and sea.
With its people’s sense of togetherness and
raw enthusiasm to rebuild the island, get-
ting caught in the euphoria is just part of
the fun.

Off the beaten track :
Make your travel arrangements with

asiantrailsbali.com. They can take you into

the heart of Bali as well as far away from

the maddening crowd if you want, even a

scenic trek along the rice terrains of

northern Bali.

Brush up on your :
Bargaining skills and math, especially if

you’re trading in Rupiah (which you

should!).

Don’t leave home without :
Basic medicine (paracetamols, lozenges,

health supplements, cough mixture) as

pharmacies charge a premium for these.

Won’t be a bad idea to get yourself a health

insurance, too. And, oh — if you’re

bringing the greenbacks, make sure

they’re issued after 1996. Because there

was a lot of counterfeit money circulated

around this time, refusing the USD is just

a practical defense against funny money.

AN

and a ‘live’ one-man gamelan show.
Tonight, he was playing only for two out

of the 15 tables. But the owners are not per-
turbed. “Just because the place is half-full
doesn’t mean you can let your business go.
We are still competing with the other estab-
lishments.” And when every other restaurant
serves the same menu with the same cook-
ing style, Nelayan’s new approach to food and
the ‘live’ music would go a long way in dis-
tinguishing itself from the rest.

At the whitewater-rafting station of
Sobek Adventures, guides are preparing
the handful of tourists for their ride on
Ayung River. The thirty or so tourists num-
bering that morning are a far cry from the
hundreds the company used to handle pre-
October 12. But that hasn’t stopped the
guides from putting up a lively atmosphere.

A Better Tomorrow
Change is sometimes good. Take down-

town Kuta for example, where you’ll find no
problems hailing a cab. In fact, the cab driv-
ers are more likely to hail you. It’s a case of
too many cabs but too little tourists. At 5pm,
I was the taximan’s first passenger. He was a
pleasant chap who spoke extensively of the
island’s attractions, naming the usual and not-
so-usual tourist traps. With his pay now down
to only USD1 a day — “most of which is gone
by the time I have lunch at the warung” —
my driver had to double up as a part-time
travel agent, hence the island anecdotes.

Yet during the half hour scenic drive from
Kuta to the sprawling five hectare ground
of Melia Bali Resort and Spa in Nusa Dua,
he said very little of the new life he has to
endure. When he talks about what’s befallen
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The Editorial Board and Public
Relations Committee of the Ma-
laysian Institute of Accountants
met for a brainstorming session
at Colmar Tropicale, Bukit

Tinggi from 28 February to 2 March 2003.
The objective of the three-day session was

to augment the Institute’s communications
efforts in order to further build on the posi-
tive image of the Institute in the eyes and
minds of members of the Institute, business
associates and the public at large. Besides
using Akauntan Nasional as an effective
mouthpiece, media relations and public per-
ception were also discussed at length.

The session covered a wide variety of top-
ics that were presented by experts who
dealt with the subject matter objectively and
professionally. Besides presenting the facts,
feedback was also sought from the partici-
pants and basic strategies put in place for
further refining as a follow-up measure.

After a high-tea in the afternoon and a
buffet dinner, the first session began with
par ticipants warmly welcomed by the
Chairman of the Editorial Board, Raymond
Liew and the Chairman of the Public Rela-
tions Committee, Datuk Nur Jazlan bin Tan
Sri Mohamed.

The second session was entitled
“Akauntan Nasional Readership Survey :
Survey Findings and Analysis”, presented
by Iszudin Mohd. Amin. The objective of
this survey was to assist the Editorial
Board in coordinating its efforts and iden-
tifying action plans required to help posi-
tion and promote Akauntan Nasional cor-
rectly. The survey also evaluated the needs
and suggestions of members who spoke
freely on the strengths and weaknesses of
the magazine. For instance, one area for
improvement was delivery.

The third session kicked-off with Nelson
Fernandez, who talked on “Akauntan

Nasional :  Moving Ahead”. He started off
by presenting the evolution of the
magazine before assessing the need for a
new look and design. Nelson also proposed
new names and masthead designs as well
as a new logo for MIA. He also cautioned
that the readers’ survey should be used as
a guide only and not taken lock, stock and
barrel. What was more important was pre-
serving the integrity of the Institute, the
needs of its members and advertisers as
well as cost considerations.

Session four dealt with ‘Enhancing Its
(Akauntan Nasional) Commercial
Strength’. The objective of this session,
presented by Chin Sun Sun (Membership
Manager) was to plan effective advertising
and promotional strategies to enable
Akauntan Nasional to generate more in-
come from healthy advertising revenue.
She also identified new marketing initia-
tives to achieve this objective. To do this,

Editorial Board / Public Relations Committee
3-Day Brainstorming Session

C O R P O R AT E

The ‘Brainstormers’ strike a pose after a particular gruelling session. At
the centre are the Chairmen of the Public Relations Committee; Datuk Nur
Jazlan (left) and the Editorial Board; Raymond Liew.
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she said paying attention to what advertis-
ers want was crucial. Apart from this, Chin
said advertising rates must be competitive
and there must be a clear-cut blueprint for
editorial content. She also stressed on the
need for timeliness of the magazine.

The next session was co-presented by
Chuah Soon Guan and Johnny Yong who
spoke on “Akauntan Nasional :  Develop-
ing a Workable Framework with CPE/
Members in Practice Activities.”

After lunch, YB Datuk Nur Jazlan Tan Sri
Mohamed spoke on “Profiling MIA’s Image
& Reputation — Identifying Current Weak-
nesses & Proposing Counter Measures”.
The objective of this session was to estab-
lish MIA as the main point of reference by
the media, authorities and public on accoun-
tancy and accounting issues. To do this,
building strong relations with the media
was crucial, as was the proper branding of
MIA. The need to identify the true function
of MIA, whether as a regulatory or profes-
sional body was also discussed at length.

Session 7 centred on “MIA :  Enhancing
Media Presence” and was presented by YB
Datuk Khalid Ahmad, an expert in media is-
sues. He stressed on the need to establish a
spokesperson for the Institute apart from
positioning MIA in the minds of the public
as a body to be depended upon. He also
shared valuable guidelines on how to ‘court’
members of the media so that the dissemi-
nation of Institute information was easier.
Among the guidelines were establishing
good rapport with journalists besides sub-
mitting press releases to reporters that were
complete and factual. He also said it was im-
portant that ‘top guns’ or ambassadors were
picked to represent MIA in order to combat
any negative perceptions about accountancy
and accountants in general.

The next speaker was Y.M. Raja Dato’
Seri Abdul Aziz Raja Salim who spoke on
“Enhancing Collaboration with the Gov-
ernment Sector/Regulatory & Statutory
Bodies”. He said taking the initiative to set
up meetings with government and other
bodies was more beneficial for the Institute
instead of waiting for an invitation from
them first. He also stressed that it was
important that MIA promote itself as a fi-
nancial advisor rather than a body to be
consulted only when negative problems
arose. His advice to all present was to avoid

AN

confrontations at all cost but to work in
friendly terms with the government sec-
tor and regulatory and statutory bodies.

“MIA : Handling Crisis & Issue
Management” was the topic of the next
session presented by Tuan Haji Ghazalie
Abdullah. In his presentation, he stressed
the need to distinguish the differences
between crisis management and issue
management while constantly keeping in
mind the target audience. Besides giving
participants a clear-cut definition of the two
forms of management, Tuan Haji Ghazalie
also presented ways on how best to tackle
sensitive situations. He said any press
statement from the Institute must be gen-
erated in consultation with the Communi-
cations Department.

The last day of the brainstorming session
began with a presentation by En. Sudirman
Masduki entitled “MIA as a socially respon-
sible & caring organisation”. He said that

apart from formulating a common defini-
tion of social responsibility, there was a
need to inculcate the sense of social
responsibility among Institute members as
well. Akauntan Nasional could then be used
to carry articles on social responsibility
activities from free tax consultation to blood
donation drives and caring for sick children.

An hour was taken later to review and
re-evaluate the Terms of Reference of the
Editorial Board and the Public Relations
Committee based on the discussions of the
three days.

The three-day brainstorming session
ended with all participants feeling they had
learnt much from it and contributed to it
as well. All comments and suggestions
from members of the floor during the
presentations were documented so that
follow-up discussions and future
implementation could be carried out back
at the Institute.

In an effort to make Akauntan Nasional
(AN) more interesting and informative
for the Institute’s members and stake-

holders, a survey was conducted on the
AN over a period of eight months from
February to September 2002. This sur-
vey was open to all readers. This is the
second such survey to be conducted by
the Institute with the first done in Febru-
ary 2000.

At the time of survey, the Institute was
circulating an average of 19,000 issues of
the AN every month. A total of 242 re-
sponses to the survey were received by
the Institute via fax, e-mail, post and per-
sonal delivery. In terms of percentage of
responses against circulation, this figure
represents approximately 1.3 per cent of
the circulation figure. In terms of percent-
age of responses against readership
which is estimated at 72,000, being four
times the circulation figure, the number
of responses received represents approxi-
mately 0.3 per cent of readership.

The Board at its meeting on 4 Septem-
ber 2002 agreed that the number of re-
sponses received was small and did not
constitute an accurate representation of
the AN’s readership. As such, the opin-

Akauntan Nasional Readership Survey

ions and views expressed by the 242 re-
spondents serve merely as a guide to the
Board to initiate steps to improve the AN

 Part 1  Feature Articles
The general outlook towards the ar-

ticles featured in the AN is positive with
14.52 per cent rating the quality of feature
articles as excellent and 66.8 per cent rat-
ing it as good. In terms of the subject
matter covered in the AN, 60.09 per cent
find the information occasionally informa-
tive and interesting while over 38 per cent
have given a “highly informative and in-
teresting” rating. The quality of editing
appears to be at a satisfactory level with
a total of 70 per cent rating it as good and
13.33 per cent giving it an excellent rat-
ing. The current number of feature ar-
ticles and the length of articles appear to
be on track as over 80 per cent of respon-
dents have said that it is “just right”.
Whilst the majority of respondents, 62.92
per cent are satisfied with the current bal-
ance between technical and non-techni-
cal articles, 37.09 per cent have indicated
that they are not satisfied with the cur-
rent balance. Of the dissatisfied group,
60.67 per cent have asked for more techni-
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with some asking for an enlargement of
font size and yet others want a reduction.
Of the 42 suggestions for layout, one that
has already been considered is a sugges-
tion for the story headings featured on the
front cover to carry their page numbering.

Coverage on current global and local
accounting issues and news feature promi-
nently among the commentaries given by
respondents. Second to Technical articles
are ar ticles on Financial Planning and
Money Tree which are seen as useful and
informative in line with the statistical find-
ings that indicate a 62.81 per cent prefer-
ence for these sections. With the general
public becoming more health conscious
many respondents have requested for
health related articles. Practitioners among
the respondents are keen to keep them-
selves abreast of issues and developments
in this area, both local and global with a
significant number requesting for a shift
in focus from academic articles to stories
and commentaries from practitioners.
Among suggestions to improve the jour-
nal, improving timeliness of delivery is con-
stantly stressed. It is clear to see from the
responses received on this survey that the
majority of respondents are genuinely in-
terested in reading the material in AN and
have taken the time to give constructive
comments and suggestions that should be
taken into consideration, especially com-
ments on preferred topics and areas of in-
terest.

cal articles. However, in giving due concern
to readers who prefer non-technical articles,
our survey reveals that the major prefer-
ences are personal finance being the top
choice (67.35 per cent) followed by health
articles (56.61 per cent) while book review
and travel tied at third place (47.1 per cent).

 Part II  Columns
Financial Planning tops the list as the most

preferred column at 62.81 per cent followed
closely by Business & Accounting at 61.15
per cent and Tax & Finance at 59.91 per cent.

 Part III  Features of
   Akauntan Nasional

The general impression of AN is positive
with 84 per cent giving it the thumbs up with
an excellent or good rating. The respondents
are also generally satisfied with the layout,
cover design, usage of colours, pictures and
illustrations with an average of 75 per cent
giving an excellent or good rating. However,
the AN’s appeal as reader friendly material
indicates a dip in satisfaction level with only
69 per cent giving a good or excellent rating.
Approximately 31 per cent of respondents
have given a fair or unsatisfactory rating. A
whopping 87 per cent have indicated that 80
pages (which was the approximate number
of pages maintained at the time of the survey)
is the correct number of pages for the AN.

 Part IV  Delivery of

  Akauntan Nasional
Timeliness appears to be an area of con-

cern with 62 per cent of respondents giv-
ing a fair or unsatisfactory rating. Almost
70 per cent of respondents have stated that
the AN is received after the second week
of the month with several highlighting that
the journal is received well into the next
month.

 Part V  Awareness of Akauntan
  Nasional in website

The majority of respondents are aware
of the AN’s presence in the MIA website
with 70 per cent of them occasionally ac-
cessing the AN via the net.

 Part VI  Akauntan Nasional

   & You
It is heartening to note that over 85 per

cent of respondents take at least half an

hour or more to read the AN with
41.32 per cent taking over an hour.
However, only 17.99 per cent have
indicated that they use the AN as a
regular source of reference. Over
75 per cent only use the AN “some-
times” for reference purposes. Cor-
respondingly, only 68.75 per cent
direct their friends’ attention to ar-
ticles in the AN. The message from
respondents is loud and clear on
the question of ideal frequency for the
AN with a majority of 77.69 per cent say-
ing that the AN should be maintained as a
monthly journal while 18.59 per cent would
not mind receiving the AN on a bimonthly
basis.

 Part VII  Your Suggestions for
    Improvement

The diverse range of suggestions here
provides a wealth of possible topics or ar-
eas of interest that the Institute can con-
sider for future issues of AN. Whilst the
majority of readers have indicated their
preference for technical articles, several
suggestions for non-technical articles (Q7)
have been given with the majority
favouring motivational articles that include
personality profiles or biographies of cor-
porate/accountancy/business bigwigs and
personal development. Business and eco-
nomic articles also feature prominently
among the suggestions given, as do re-
quests for more IT related stories. It is also
clear to see from the responses that the
respondents, especially MIA members
favour accounting/accountancy related
articles as well as taxation, business and
finance. Personal financial planning ap-
pears to be a favourite with many. Among
the commentaries on current articles, one
response suggests that MASB related ar-
ticles should incorporate practical ex-
amples to enable easy understanding of the
subject matter. Several requests have been
made for a Q&A section/commentaries
from readers

Eighteen per cent of respondents who
rated the current layout as fair or poor have
given their comments/suggestions for im-
provement with some respondents clearly
being unable to differentiate between types
of articles and layout. It is also a case of
one man’s meat is another man’s poison AN
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MIA to Assist Ministry to Plan Strategies to Boost Economy
Accountancy Services :  Key Player for Economic Growth

 One for the album...(Seated L-R), MIA President, Dr. Abdul Samad Haji
Alias, Malaysia’s Minister of Finance II, YB Dato’ Dr. Jamaludin Mohd
Jarjis and MIA Vice-President, Albert Wong. (Standing L-R) Deputy
Accountant- General, Mohd Salleh Mahmud, Tuan Haji Muztaza
Mohamad, Datuk Nur Jazlan Tan Sri Mohamed and Beh Tok Koay

The Malaysian Institute of
Accountants (MIA) was
asked to play an active

role in assisting the Ministry of
Finance (MOF) to plan its
strategies to boost and market
the services sector both locally
and abroad.

This was told to the MIA
delegation during a courtesy
call on the Second Finance
Minister, Dato’ Dr Jamaludin
Mohd Jarjis on 20 March 2003.
The Minister informed the
delegation that MOF was
looking into new sources of
growth for the economy and
the ser vices sector. Considering the
magnitude of accountancy services in this
area, MIA was expected to take the lead.

The President of the MIA Council, Dr.
Abdul Samad Haji Alias then briefed the
Minister on the Council’s current

initiatives to boost the
competency levels of
professional ser vice
providers.

Apart from this, the Minister
was also briefed on the
proactive steps taken by the
Institute to strengthen
corporate governance as well
as steps taken to increase
Bumiputera accountants in the
country.

The delegation of Council
members from MIA included
Vice-President  Albert Wong ,
Datuk Nur Jazlan Tan Sri
Mohamed, Beh Tok Koay and

Tuan Haji Muztaza Mohamad. Also
present was Deputy Accountant-General,
Mohd Salleh Mahmud. AN

Official Launch - MIA Qualifying Examination

The Malaysian Institute
of Accountants’ (MIA)
Qualifying Examination

was officially launched by the
Deputy Finance Minister,
Datuk Chan Kong Choy on
behalf of the Second Finance
Minister, Datuk Dr Jamaludin
Mohd Jarjis on 27 March 2003
at the Palace of the Golden
Horses, Kuala Lumpur.

At the event, MIA and
Universiti Teknologi MARA
(UiTM) also formalised an
agreement that UiTM will
conduct the examinations over
the next three years.

The event received extensive
coverage from the print and
broadcast media. (For further
details please log-on to
www.mia.org.my)

Datuk Chan Kong Choy places his palm on the launching gimmick.
Looking on are MIA President, Dr Abdul Samad Haji Alias: Chairman
of the Examination Committee Datuk Ab. Halim Mohyiddin; and UiTM
Vice-Chancellor Datuk Professor Dr. Ibrahim Shah.

VVIP line-up: (L-R) UiTM Vice-Chancellor, Datuk Professor Dr.
Ibrahim Shah, MIA Vice-President, Albert Wong, MIA President, Dr.
Abdul Samad Haji Alias. Deputy Finance Minister, Datuk Chan Kong
Choy, Accountant-General, Datuk Siti Maslamah Osman, Examination
Committee Chairman, Datuk Abdul Halim Mohyiddin and Deputy
Accountant General (Management), Mohd Salleh Mahmud.

Aggrement signed: UiTM appointed to conduct the MIA qualifying
examination

AN
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Briefing the press on the QEThe Examination Committee, Council Members and the UiTM
representatives

Writing Effective
Reports

Dr. Ng Keat Siew.... Revealing the secrets of
writing effective reports

A two-day workshop on report-writing
skills was conducted by the CPE
Depar tment of the Malaysian

Institute of Accountants (MIA) from 19 to
20 February at Petaling Jaya Hilton.

The objective of the workshop was to
meet the needs of professionals who were
required to write business reports as part
of their job scope.

37 participants from various business
sectors attended the workshop conducted
by Dr. Ng Keat Siew, a former Associate
Professor of English at University
Teknologi Mara (UiTM).

At the workshop, Dr. Ng explained that
getting the ‘right formula’ was crucial in
projecting the professional image of the
writer. It also went a long way in making

Managing the corporate finance of
a company is no easy task. Very
often shifting gears to strike a

balance between business risk and
financial risk requires not only good
judgement but adequate experience too.

When this ‘shifting of gears’ is not
adequately achieved, corporations plunge
into severe financial crisis. Some have no
choice but to liquidate as a result of
accumulated losses. Even listed
corporations are not spared as evidenced
by the many second board and main board
companies that have yet to find suitable
solutions to their corporate restructuring
exercises because of excessive gearing or
leverage in the past.

In view of f these developments, the

‘Shifting Gears’ in
Corporate Finance

others take their duties seriously. She
added that in today’s business and
working environment, a well-structured
report with clear objectives got more
attention and was more likely to produce
the intended results.

During the two-day workshop, Dr. Ng
explained the key principals in preparing
an effective report.

It was clear participants learnt much
from Dr. Ng who kept the workshop
sessions lively and the training material
relevant and informative.

For more information about the ‘report-
writing’ workshop, call MIA directly at 03-
22799200.

Lee Fok Chong on Corporate Finance.

Continuous Professional Education (CPE)
Department of the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants (MIA) organised a two-day
seminar on the Basics of Corporate
Finance.

Mr. Lee Fok Chong, Managing Director
and Principal Training Consultant of
Applied Intellect Management Sdn Bhd
conducted the seminar held from 17 to 18
Februar y 2003. 50 par ticipants from
various business sectors attended.

At the seminar, Mr. Lee elaborated on
corporate finance transactions executed in
the country. He focused on the different
types of deals often carried out by
companies where debt and equity capital
were raised. He also did a review on the
different instruments of corporate finance
as well as the role played by advisors.
Lastly, he addressed the structure,
applications and regulations associated
with different transactions.

AN

AN
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The MIA Communications Depart-
ment recently organised a lunch get-
together with the “top guns” of Berita

Publishing at a leading hotel in Petaling
Jaya. Berita Publishing’s Editor-in-Chief,
Datuk A. Kadir Jasin, led a party of ten to a
sit-down lunch with several of MIA’s Coun-
cil Members led by Vice-President Albert
Wong. Present at the lunch were Council
Members Datuk Nur Jazlan Tan Sri
Mohamed, Abdul Rahim Abdul Hamid, Lam
Kee Soon, Nik Mohd Hasyudeen Yusoff and
Raymond Liew together with MIA’s Execu-
tive Director Ho Foong Moi.

Lunch with Berita
Publishing

Seated from left … Rohani Pa’ Wan Chik, Editor, Jelita; Ho Foong Moi; Zaini Zainudin,
Editor, Anjung Seri; Sarimah Othman, Editor, Going Places; Margaret Sebastian, Editor,
Her World. Standing from left …Wan Sabariah Shikh Ali, Editor I-Remaja; Mohd Desa Omar,
Editor, Politik Kedai Kopi; Noorsiha Ismail, Special Assistant, Office of Editor-in-Chief;
Ibrahim Yahya, Senior Editor; Raymond Liew; Datuk A. Kadir Jasin; Lam Kee Soon; Abdul
Rahim; Datuk Nur Jazlan;  Albert Wong. Standing Back Row … Nik Mohd Hasyudeen (left);
Charles Raj, Editor, Malaysian Business

Council Member Lam Kee Soon (extreme right) has everyone in stitches
as he dishes out a funny one-liner wearing his trademark poker face

Establishing a stronger working relationship (from left) … Datuk
Nur Jazlan, Datuk Kadir and Abdul Rahim

AN

The inaugural meeting of the Kuala
Lumpur Chapter of the MIA Toast-
masters Club was held on 3 April at

the MIA head office. The formation of this
club was mooted during one of the MIA
evening talks on developing confidence in
public speaking held earlier in March of
this year.

“With over 8,000 members in the Klang
Valley, we certainly look forward to the for-
mation of this club as the beginning of an
era to foster closer interaction between
members in the Klang Valley rather than
merely seeing each other during the
Institute’s Annual General Meeting”, said
the Club’s Pro-Tem Committee President,
Raymond Liew at the meeting. The Club,
which plans to hold its fortnightly meetings
on the 1st and 3rd Thursdays of each
month, hopes to attract a fair number of
participants for an evening of camaraderie
and purposeful personal development ini-
tiation.

      MIA Toastmasters Club, Kuala Lumpur Chapter
In encouraging members to attend these

meetings, Raymond stressed that the abil-
ity to speak with confidence is of para-
mount importance whether a person is
negotiating with a client, making a presen-
tation to the Board of Directors or present-
ing him/herself at a job interview.

The Club’s Pro-Tem Committee mem-
bers are : President, Raymond Liew; Vice-

President for Education, Yong Buong Peah,
Johnny; Vice-President for Membership,
Steven Lim; Vice-President for Public Rela-
tions, Karunanithi; Secretary, Ng Chew
Yong; Sergeant-at-Arms, Jason Boey.

In addition, two members have been co-
opted as part of the Club’s Executive Commit-
tee (Exco). They are Tengku Sharifena Tengku
Sulaiman and Melvin Ho Pooi Yan. AN

MIA Toastmasters Club, Kuala Lumpur Chapter during the inaugural meeting.
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Accountants in the Era of Transition
& Public Confidence in the

Accounting Profession

The 16th CAPA Conference

Date   : 15-17 October 2003 
Venue : The Great Hall of The People

Organizer : The Chinese Institute of 
     Certified Public Accountants
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Afive member delegation from the
Chinese Institute of Certified Pub-
lic Accountants (CICPA) paid a visit

to the Malaysian Institute of Accountants
(MIA) to promote the 16th Confederation
of Asian and Pacific Accountants scheduled
to be held in Beijing, China from 15-17
October 2003. The delegation, which was
led by CICPA Secretary-General Chen
Yugui, was met by MIA President Dr Abdul
Samad Haji Alias and Vice-President Albert
Wong Mun Sum.

Among others, the one-hour meeting
saw the Chinese delegates present an im-
pressive presentation on Beijing’s
preparation for the Conference that
included facilities such as world-class
hotels and a good rail, road and air
transportation system. The Conference
will be held at The Great Hall of the People
near Tiananmen Square.

According to Chen, CICPA is targeting
3,000 participants, of which 1,000 are ex-
pected to be foreign delegates. Chen ex-

CICPA Delegates Call on MIA

AN

(From left) … CICPA’s Director for Service Centre, Zhao Jin; CAPA Executive Director, Leong
Chew Poon; CICPA’s International Department Deputy-Director, Lui Weihua; Abdul Samad;
Chen; Albert Wong; MIA Executive Director, Ho Foong Moi; MIA’s Head of Continuing
Professional Education, Chuah Soon Guan and MIA staff, Joyce Lim

Abdul Samad presents a memento to Chen

pressed CICPA’s hope that Malaysia would
have an impressive representation at the
Conference. The organisers are prepared
to offer attractive discounts for early birds
and large delegations.

For more information, please contact the CAPA
Secretariat at 03-2273 6817 or visit the conference
website at www.capa2003beijing.com
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T he Malaysian Institute of Accoun-
tants (MIA) organised a two-day
seminar entitled “Commencement

of Public Practice” on 17 - 18 February 2003
at PJ Hilton. Speakers at the seminar were
Heng Chiang Pooh, Ong Yoke Yew, Nik
Mohd Hasyudeen Yusoff and Chiong Kee
Hong.

The seminar was held to address the
growing number of applicants who were
not sufficiently prepared to set up audit and
non-audit firms in the country, as indicated
at the audit license interviews.

Heng Chiang Pooh … on the commencement
of Public Practice

Are You Ready to Start Your Own Firm?

A seminar on Public Sector Accountants
was recently organised by the Malay-
sian Institute of Accountants (MIA)

Melaka branch in partnership with the
Melaka state government. Participation
was good with well over 120 accountants
from Melaka, Negeri Sembilan and Johor
attending.

The Melaka State Financial Officer,
YBhg Datuk Haji Ahmad Rusli Joharie,
officiated at the seminar on behalf of
YAB Datuk Seri Haji Mohd. Ali Mohd.
Rustam, the Chief Minister of Melaka.

The objective of the seminar was to
foster better understanding between
MIA and the various government
departments in Melaka. One of the main
topics was the roles and functions of
accountants and accounting personnel
in the public sector in the context of

Seminar on Public Sector Accountants 2003
MIA MELAKA BRANCH

career enhancements and career paths
in the government sector.

� Expectations of accountants in the
private sector.

� The Auditor-General’s expectations of
accountants; problems in public sector
accounting; introduction of short and
long term improvements.

� Issues in public sector accounting
and the introduction of short and
long term improvements from the
perspective of accountants in the
private sector.

� Good governance in public sector
accounting.

One forum in particular that was
well received by par ticipants was
‘Revisiting the Roles of Public Sector
Accountants’. AN

The need to nip the problem in the
bud was to ensure that applicants did
not run into problems later once their
firms were up and running.

Although many did successfully
obtain their audit licenses, many a time
changing mindsets from that of an
employee to that of an employer or
entrepreneur was daunting. Other
considerations included cash flow
management for initial set-ups as well
as the strict adherence to licensing
body requirements.

Participants during the event

(L-R) Auditor-General, YB Datuk Hadenan Abdul Jalil, YBhg
Datuk Haji Ahmad Rusli Joharie, Dr Abdul Samad Haji Alias and
Nik Mohd Hasyudeen Yusoff

AN

Abdul Halim … the organising committee chairman
delivering his speech. Seated (L-R) MIA President, Dr.
Abdul Samad Haji Alias; Melaka State Financial
Officer, YBhg Datuk Hj. Ahmad Rusli Joharie and MIA
Melaka Branch Chairman, Lee Hin Kan

today’s challenging environment.
The seminar also focused on the

following areas:

� The State Financial Officer’s expectations
of public sector accountants and public
sector accounting personnel.

� The Accountant- General’s expectations
and vision of accounting personnel;
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Some 200 members and their staff
were fortunate and honoured to have
Wong Poh Lam, the Head of Inland

Revenue Board Penang to address them
during a tea talk entitled “Tax Audit — IRB
Experience” on 11 March 2003 at the
Shangri-La hotel.

Wong had put in much time and thought
in preparing his PowerPoint slides. His
coverage of the many aspects of tax audit
was comprehensive yet compact and
concise. A lively speaker, he had the
audience in rapt attention as he elaborated
on his slides which amongst others,
included a summary of the issues/con-
cerns that the IRB has encountered in cases
according to the various sectors, observations on the role of tax
agents, the administrative and case settlement issues in tax au-
dits and how to handle tax audits. Wong also suggested some
prescriptions for a hassle-free tax audit i.e. applying due diligence
and all the Public Rulings with emphasis on PR7/2000, PR8/2000
and the need to have a checklist. His talk was certainly very infor-
mative. The Institute and members would like to record our con-
gratulations and heartfelt thanks to Wong and senior officials of
the IRB for their good work and contributions towards the success
of this talk.

The tea talk was organised by the Taxation Sub-Committee
comprising of : Fan Kah Seong (Chairman), Richard Oon Hock Chye
(Co- Chairman), Andy Chew Kah Hoe, David Hor Kwai Keong, Lindy
Ong Huey Min, Ong Theam Aun, Ooi Phaik Swee and Steven Teh
Eng Hin.

T outed ‘The Happening Club’, a meeting with a Valentine’s
Day theme was held in February 2003 complete with dinner
and wonderful company.

The Club held its
four th In-house
International Speech
Contest and Table
Topics Contest on 27
Februar y 2003. Lee
Min On, President of
the Club 2002/03
emerged champion in
both contests. He also
represented MIA in
the Area Contests and
was declared
champion in the Area
International Speech
and Table Topics
Contests.

While Club members continue to enthusiastically hone their
communication skills and share their thoughts in a friendly
environment, the club’s committee would like to see more MIA
members, accountancy graduates and students join to experience
the delights of being a Toastmaster.

The MIA (Northern Branch) Toastmasters meet every 2nd &
4th Thursday from 8pm to 10pm at the MIA Penang Office (behind
Citibank), 1st Floor, Menara Penang Garden, Jalan Sultan Ahmad
Shah, 10050 Penang. For enquiries, call Lim/Loh at 04-229 4203 /
KL Woo at 012-4747618 / KK Tan at 012-4306922.

MIA PENANG BRANCH

Tea Talk with
IRB Head

MIA (Northern Branch)
Toastmasters Club

The champion, Lee Min On (in red tie),
and first runner up, Chan Choung Yau,
pose with their trophies

Penang Branch Chairman, Steven Teh (left) presenting a token of
appreciation to Wong Poh Lam.

IRB officials and members at the talk

AN

AN

I N S T I T U T E  N E W S
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MIA SARAWAK BRANCH

Bintulu Chapter Dinner A Great Success

Being the smallest
chapter with only 46
MIA members, the

Chairman and Committee
members of the Bintulu
Chapter should be
congratulated for doing a
splendid job in hosting the
Second Chapter Annual
Dinner. 120 members including
staff of member firms, 12 IRB
of ficers and guests attended
the function, a significant
improvement over last year’s

An after-dinner group photograph of MIA members with the committee and guests.

Members of the Organising Committee for the 2003 Bintulu Chapter
Annual Dinner posing with all the lucky draw prizes before dinner.

Mr Chieng (MC) encouraging the ladies while the men await their turn.

Distinguished guests (L-R) En Abdul Halim bin Omar (IRB), Mr
Ngu Woo Hieng (MIA Bintulu Chapter Chairman), Mr David Tiang
(MIA Sarawak Branch Chairman) and Mr King Sie Hin (BCCCI).

inaugural dinner.
En Abdul Halim bin Omar, Head of IRB,

Bintulu Branch and Mr King Sie Hin, Chair-
man of the Bintulu Chinese Chamber of
Commerce and Industry were specially in-
vited guests at the dinner.

Dinner Organising Chairman, Mr. Voon
Kuek Yu and Master of Ceremony, Mr
Chieng Eu Hea kept the night lively with
warm-up games, dances, songs and lucky
draws. The top draws were won by staff
from Hii & Lee, Bintulu Development Au-

thority and Tong & Wong
Partners.

A strong sense of fel-
lowship was obvious be-
tween the Chapter Com-
mittee, the IRB officers
and members of the
press. Two Inland Rev-
enue officers turned en-
tertainers once the micro-
phone was in their hands
while the repor ters
gamely volunteered at the
dinner games. The big-

gest surprise of the night was when an en-
gineer took the shortest time to correctly
answer a mental arithmetic question. The
accountants on the other hand, were at a
loss without their calculators and comput-
ers! AN

I N S T I T U T E  N E W S
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Organising Chairman, Mr Chang Yu Chuk (right) with his familyA happy bunch of ladies willing to forgo their diet for once!

Branch Chairman, Alexandra Thien and her family Mr Wilson Lim (seated) and son (left) with Mr & Mrs Paul Chong & son
and Mr Philip Yong.  Also seen are staff Shirley and Lucy (standing)

MIA SABAH BRANCH

I N S T I T U T E  N E W S

Some live to eat, some eat to live.
Whatever it may be, the Sabah
bunch gathered at a Gong Xi Fatt

Chai Brunch organised by the Sports and
Social Committee on the 21st day of the new
year of the goat.

Sunday “Makan-Makan”

UiTM Students Visit MIA Kota Kinabalu MIA member, Puan Hapsah bte
Mohd, a lecturer from the UiTM
Sabah Campus paid a visit to the

MIA Sabah Branch Office in Kota Kinabalu
with 40 final year university students. The
Sabah Branch plays host to these special
visitors every year.

The UiTM Sabah Campus is situated 25
kilometres from the city and the trip was a
welcome outing for the students. During
the visit, the students attended a briefing
by Branch Manager, Ms Lucy Read who
spoke about MIA, the Institute and the
accounting profession in Malaysia.

After refreshments and photographs,
these future MIA members promised to
return in 3 years’ time to hand in their
application forms.UiTM students flanked by Ms Lucy Read (extreme left) & Puan Hapsah Bte Mohd (extreme right)

The lavish spread on the menu of
Magellan was most unkind to our mid
sections. Sushi, shasimi, rack of lamb, roast
beef, barbecue chicken, spicy crabs,
cheese cake, puddings, ice creams …the
choices were endless.

More than 40 members, families and
friends packed the restaurant on this late
Sunday morning, all in a happy mood to
meet, exchange new year wishes and enjoy
each others’ company. AN

AN
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A unique on-line MBA, developed
by the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants (ACCA)

and Oxford Brookes University, to
enhance the skills of professional
accountants, has attracted 100 students in
only its first six months.

ACCA is the first professional accoun-
tancy body to devise a purpose built MBA
with a UK university, for its members and
other professional accountants. Sixty stu-
dents from 17 countries have just com-
pleted their first examinations in the initial
MBA course, which was restricted to
ACCA members only. The second
programme is open to members of all
recognised professional accountancy bod-
ies and has already attracted members of

UNIQUE ON-LINE MBA PROVES

POPULAR WITH PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS

the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants (CIMA).

The course consists of five modules
which are :  markets, management and
strategy; managing self-development; glo-
bal business strategy; research method-
ology; and organisational change and
transformation. Seminars delivered
through the Vir tual Campus cover
contemporary business issues including
ethics, extremely relevant in the light of
the recent Enron and Worldcom
scandals.

“The MBA offers a unique combination
of distance learning and online support.
Students have access to a virtual library,
which includes thousands of relevant ar-
ticles, as well as virtual seminars, which

C O L U M N S
N E W S  F R O M  P R O F E S S I O N A L  B O D I E S

tutors say have attracted an ‘extraordi-
nary’ level of participation,’ said Adelina
Iskandar, ACCA’s Manager of Corporate
Communications in Malaysia. “We are de-
lighted that the programme boasts nearly
100 per cent candidate retention, very
high for a course of this kind,” Adelina
further added.

Mark Protherough, Executive Director,
Education, Training and Development at
ACCA said, “In an increasingly competi-
tive global business market place, the
MBA is seen as being the perfect partner
for the core ACCA qualification in prepar-
ing individuals for today’s complex and
dynamic business environment.”

For further details on the qualification,
please visit www.accaglobal.com

T he Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants (ACCA)
recently announced the winners

of the inaugural ACCA Malaysia Environ-
mental Repor ting Awards (ACCA
MERA) 2002 at the award presentation
ceremony held at Pan Pacific Hotel. The
Awards were presented by YB Dato’ Haji
Zainal Dahalan, Deputy Minister of Sci-
ence, Technology and Environment who
represented the Minister.

“There was widespread recognition at
the global summit meeting in
Johannesburg last September that corpo-
rations are indispensable to sustainable
development, which means that there can
be little progress in social or environmen-
tal progress without active contributions
from the corporations,” said Dato’ Haji
Zainal during his speech.

I commend ACCA’s initiative to raise
the profile of environmental reporting
among companies in Malaysia by
introducing ACCA Malaysia
Environmental Reporting Awards (ACCA
MERA). We hope that the initiative
will encourage more voluntar y

ANNOUNCING THE WINNERS OF ACCA MERA 2002

From left … Abdul Rahim Hamid, ACCA’s President of Malaysia Advisory Committee (MAC);
YB Dato’ Haji Dahalan, Deputy Minister of Science, Technology and Environment and Lt Colonel
Wahiruddin Abdul Wahid (right); Shell’s General Manager of Corporate Affairs and Devaneson
Evanson, Chief Judge for ACCA MERA 2002 (behind)
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Hajah Rosnani lbrahim, Direc-
tor-General of the Depart-
ment of Environment, Minis-

try of Science, Technology and Environ-
ment recently launched the “Environ-
mental Reporting Guidelines for Malay-
sian Companies” published by ACCA in
collaboration with the Department of
Environment (DOE).

The Guidelines provide a user-
friendly introduction to the subject of
corporate environmental reporting with
guidance on what environmental re-
ports might contain, drawing from best
practice guidelines and selected ex-
amples from all around the world espe-
cially for Malaysian companies.

The Guidelines is the result of a re-
quest made by Dato’ Seri Law Hieng
Ding, Minister of Science, Technology
and Environment at the launch of the
inaugural ACCA Malaysia Environmental
Reporting Awards 2002 (ACCA MERA
2002) in July last year. With the availabil-
ity of these guidelines, companies will be
able to publish a standard of environmen-
tal reports acceptable to all parties with-
out the hassle of trial and error.

“The voluntary nature of Corporate En-

vironmental Reporting should not deter
companies from making efforts to inform
their shareholders of the impact businesses
have on the environment — be it compa-
nies from the oil and gas sector, plantation,
construction or even the banking sector. We
hope that the guidelines will clear the path
towards an enhanced level of awareness on

the importance of environmental report-
ing for companies in Malaysia,” said
Hajah Rosnani in her speech.

“ACCA has been actively involved with
the unfolding debate on corporate social
and environmental responsibility since
1990. We have introduced corporate en-
vironmental reporting in many countries
and produced a wide range of research
and technical reports and work with a
host of environmental and sustainability
organisations. We hope that this Guide
will encourage Malaysian companies to
consider environmental reporting and we
look forward to seeing the results flow
through in terms of future ACCA Malay-
sian Environmental Reporting Awards
(ACCA MERA) winners,” said Rachel
Jackson, ACCA’s Head of Social and En-
vironmental Issues who was also present
during the launching.
The Guide is for all companies in Malay-

sia and is distributed free upon request.
You may order further copies of this Guide
by emailing zaiti.ali@my.accaglobal.com

The launch of the guidelines was witnessed
by 80 participants and guests attending the
one and a half day ACCA Corporate Environ-
mental Reporting Conference 2003.

Devanesan Evanson, FCCA during the
presentation of the Chief Judge’s Report,
ACCA MERA 2002 AN

LAUNCHING OF “ENVIRONMENTAL REPORTING

GUIDELINES FOR MALAYSIAN COMPANIES”

AN

environmental reporting from all types of
businesses, thus proving that we can inte-
grate the environmental concerns in eco-
nomic decision-making.”

Since 1991, ACCA has been involved in
reporting awards in more than 20 countries,
in Europe, Africa and the Asia Pacific region.
ACCA Awards around the world recognise
companies for excellence in environmental,
social and sustainability reporting. The aim
of the Awards is to identify and reward in-
novative attempts to communicate corpo-
rate performance, although ACCA does not
comment on performance itself.

The inaugural ACCA Malaysia Environ-
mental Reporting Awards was launched in
July 2002. When entries closed on 15 No-
vember 2002, there were 11 entries from
Alam Flora Sdn Bhd, AMMB Holdings

Bhd, Ford Malaysia Sdn Bhd, Golden Hope
Plantations Bhd, Kumpulan Guthrie Bhd,
Puncak Niaga Holdings Bhd, Redring Sol-
der Sdn Bhd, Shell Malaysia, Sony Tech-
nology Malaysia Sdn Bind, Tradewinds
(M) Bhd and Tenaga Nasional Bhd.

The objectives of ACCA MERA are :

� To reward organisations which report
and disclose environmental information

� To raise awareness in corporate trans-
parency issues

� Encourage the uptake of environmental
reporting

The award presentation ceremony was
witnessed by 80 participants and guests
attending the one and half day ACCA Cor-
porate Environmental Reporting Confer-
ence 2003.

N E W S  F R O M  P R O F E S S I O N A L  B O D I E S

C O L U M N S
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Professor Houghton delivered a
public lecture on client-auditor
‘match’ including auditor inde-

pendence, rotation, and quality to more
than 120 members and invited guests on
25 November 2002 at Shangri-La Hotel,
Kuala Lumpur.

He shared his extensive Australian re-
search and consultancy experience with
the participants. ‘Auditors must add value
to the service they are providing rather
than just agreeing with the clients’ figures
in the accounts’ he emphasised. Because
he was firmly of the view that the audit
function added value to financial
repor ting, it was important that the
profession must take the lead in regula-
tory processes.

A meeting was also organised for invited
regulators and partners of public accoun-
tant firms to share and discuss with him

CLIENT-AUDITOR RELATIONSHIP
the key issues in Malaysia. Among those
who attended the meeting were Dr. Abdul
Samad Hj Alias, President of the Malaysian

Institute of Accountants, representatives
from the Kuala Lumpur Stock Exchange
and the major accounting firms. AN

HONOURING TOP SCORERS

Tan Chooi Lin won the Microsoft
High Achievers Award for being the
top student in the CPA Programme

in the Malaysia Division. She received a
Microsoft Office software package. Tan
achieved high distinctions in all the five
subjects of the CPA Programme together
with Ng Cho Weng.

The Presentation Ceremony held on 24
January 2003 at a hotel in Petaling Jaya also
honoured students who had successfully
completed the CPA Programme and those
who scored High Distinctions in the vari-
ous segments. More than 200 graduates re-
ceived their awards from the President,
Albert Wong.

Also present at the Ceremony were 27
members advancing to CPA status and nine
to FCPA. They received their certificates
from Andrew Walls, Consul-General of the
Australian High Commission. Admitted as
Fellows were Chin Kui Vun, Gloria Goh Ewe
Gim, Low Ooi Leng, Mohd Zaki Hamdan,
Ong Chin Peng, Siti Ramelah bt Haji Yahya,
Suhaimi Badrul Jamil, Kenneth Thong
Chan Khit and William Wong Yet You. AN

Participants listening attentively to the speaker.

CPA President,
Albert Wong

presenting the
prize to the

winner

Among the proud recipients
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Minh Loc Le, 22, was attached to
Khair uddin, Hasyudeen &
Razi, Public Accountants firm,

for three weeks in January 2003. Le haile
from Perth, Western Australia, and was one
of the lucky students picked to join the In-
ternational Work Experience Programme
organised by CPA Australia. When the new
semester commences in March 2003, he will
be in his final year, completing his double
degree in Commerce and Law at Murdoch
University.

The purpose of this Programme is to pro-
vide an overseas insight, work experience
and culture for students pursuing
accountancy studies.

In December 2002, four successful Ma-
laysian accounting students were seconded
to employers in Australia under the same
programme. They were Wong Kah Yun
(Universiti Sains Malaysia), Ayu Afzan
Makhatar (Universiti Teknologi Mara),
Loh Shie Lin (HELP Institute), and
Gwenda Soh Peik Hoon (Sunway College).
They were selected based on an essay writ-
ing competition titled, Discuss ways and
means to increase interest in the account-
ing profession, opened to all accounting de-
gree students from local universities and
Australian twinning colleges, and an inter-
view.

Kah Yun and Shie Lin were attached to
Simon Wu Pty Ltd and the NSW Audit Of-
fice respectively in Sydney while Gwenda
Soh and Ayu Afzan with Energex Pty Ltd
in Brisbane and Mitsubishi Pty Ltd in
Adelaide respectively.

INTERNATIONAL STUDENT EXCHANGE PROGRAMME

Wong Kah Yun (Universiti Sains Malaysia), Loh Shie Lin (HELP Institute), Gwenda Soh
Peik Hoon (Sunway College) and Ayu Afzan Makhatar (Universiti Teknologi Mara).

AN

(L-R) … Albert Wong, Minh Loc Le and Viji Nair

F our public-listed companies re-
ceived accreditation from the
Chartered Institute of Manage-

ment Accountants (CIMA) as new Train-
ing Partners. Representatives from Renong
Berhad, Time Engineering Berhad and
Tenaga Nasional Berhad received their
Training Through Partnership (TTP) cer-
tificates from Lee Yee Chong, 1st Vice-Presi-

CIMA ACCREDITS FOUR NEW TRAINING PARTNERS
dent of CIMA Malaysia Division during an
Employers’ Luncheon Talk held recently
at the Pan Pacific Hotel Kuala Lumpur. The
fourth recipient was Intria Berhad.

The CIMA TTP scheme promotes and
recognises employers who offer practical
training and study support that meets CIMA
quality standards for the training of man-
agement accountants. CIMA provides two

levels of accreditation in its TTP Scheme
— “CIMA Recognised Status” and “CIMA
Quality Approved”. As “CIMA Recognised”
par tners, Renong, Time Engineering,
Tenaga Nasional and Intria join the ranks
of 2000 accredited companies worldwide
that demonstrate the best practical support
for staff development measured in various
areas. The assessed areas include financial
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Representatives from Tenaga Nasional Berhad, Time Engineering Berhad and Renong Berhad
with their TTP Certificates. On the left is Y. C. Lee FCMA, Ist Vice-President of CIMA Malaysia
Division

support, review and monitoring proce-
dures, study support and management in-
volvement in staff training and develop-
ment.

In her welcome address, Sopiah Suid,
Divisional Director of CIMA Malaysia Di-
vision, said, “As part of the requirement to
become Chartered Management Accoun-
tants, a candidate must have at least three
years of relevant practical experience and
such experience is often provided by
CIMA’s Training Partners. This collabora-
tion between CIMA and its Training Part-
ners will enable employers to participate
in the continued development of the CIMA
qualification and maintain its relevance to
the needs of businesses in Malaysia.” AN

MIA MEMBERS TO BE GIVEN SPECIAL EXEMPTIONS

Stepping up its efforts to woo mem-
bers of the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants (MIA) to pursue the

CIMA qualification, CIMA Malaysia Divi-
sion held the second launch of its Special
Exemptions for MIA members in
Kuching, Sarawak, recently. The Deputy
Chief Minister of Sarawak, Tan Sri Datuk
Amar Dr George Chan, who is also the
Minister of Finance and Public Utilities &
Minister of Industrial Development, offi-
ciated at the launch. The first launch in
Kuala Lumpur last year was officiated by
the President of MIA, Dr Abdul Samad Hj
Alias.

In his Opening Address, Tan Sri Datuk
Amar Dr Chan urged accountants to resist
the temptation of ‘creative accounting’ so
as not to compromise their ethics. He felt
that the pursuit of knowledge was much
easier because of the advancements in in-
formation technology but it was not the
same with ethical standards. “Those who
can preserve their ethical standards are the
ones who can last,” he said. He added that
the need for accountants to be ethical was
in line with the government’s emphasis on
good corporate governance as this was
crucial in wooing potential investors to the
country.

Also present at the launch was Dato’ Lee
Ow Kim, President of CIMA Malaysia Divi-
sion. He said that members of MIA who

have an honours degree from recognised
local universities were eligible to receive the
exemptions of 13 papers from the CIMA
examination. This meant that MIA mem-
bers who wish to pursue the CIMA qualifi-
cation would only have to sit for the last four
papers or final level of the examination. “To
top it all, I am pleased to announce that we
will also be granting a waiver of exemption
fees totalling £365 to MIA members who
take up this offer. At the current exchange
rate of 5.8, this is wor th more than
RM2,110,” Dato’ Lee added.

Tan Sri Datuk Amar Dr. Chan (2nd from left) awarding the special exemptions to Dayang
Rostylawati. Looking on is Dato’ O.K. Lee FCMA, President of CIMA Malaysia Division

Dato’ Lee pointed out that at the final
level of the CIMA examination, there was
also a case study paper that tested a
student’s capability to apply strategic man-
agement techniques to make and support
decisions within a simulated business con-
text. He said, “CIMA is continuously
reconfiguring itself so that it delivers a rel-
evant and dif ferentiated qualification,
which is employer-focused. We aim to be
the first choice of employers in the qualifi-
cation and development of professional
accountants in business.” AN
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REGISTRATION OF ACCOUNTANTS
The following persons are now entitled to use
the word ‘Accountant’ upon their admission to
the Malaysian Institute of Accountants, in ac-
cordance with Sections 22 & 23 of The
Accountants Act 1967.

 AS AT 24 JANUARY 2003

CA — Chartered Accountant
AM — Associate Member
LA — Licensed Accountant

M E M B E R S ’  U P D AT E

JOHOR DARUL TAKZIM

Batu Pahat

Siti Rabi’ah Binti Malek 20918/CA
Johor

Wong Siew Lan 20757/CA
Johor Bahru

Azdina Binti Baharudin 20946/CA
Chong Fei Ching 20889/CA
Huang Shze Jiun 20700/CA
Lim Lee Mien 20890/CA
Nor’azam Bin Md Jeen @ M Jani 20705/CA
Teng Hung Wen 20917/CA
Thomas Yap Lian Chong 20828/CA

Wang Shin Mien 20827/CA
Kangkar Pulai

Tan Sit Keow 20678/CA
Kluang

Chang Siew Fong 20912/CA
Kulai

Wong Siok Fong 20948/CA
Muar

Ng Kim Hian 20813/CA
Skudai

Kiyu Wei Lee 20737/CA
Tampoi

Dahniar Binti Abd Rahman 20831/CA
Ulu Tiram

Hong Pay Leng 20805/CA
Yong Peng

Wong Yik Gio 20818/CA
KEDAH DARUL AMAN

Alor Setar

Chow Cit Fong 20775/CA
Kim Chin Jit 20893/CA
Lim  Ling Cheow 20888/CA
Lim Yew Lin 20906/CA
Vathsla Devi A/P Gurusamy 20667/CA
Jitra

Intan Marzita Binti Saidon 20951/AM
Lee Woei Syong 20739/CA
Sungai Petani

Rosenani Binti Abd Rahim 20850/CA
KELANTAN DARUL NAIM

Kota Bahru

Nor Kasmawatty  Binti Dollah 20904/CA

Mona Airawaty Binti Mohd Anwar 20903/CA
MELAKA

Bukit Baru

Teow Yang Cheng 20758/CA

Tiong Yee Mei 20853/CA
Melaka

Adrina Lim Sien Im 20740/CA
Lim Hooi Bein 20803/CA
Mazliza Binti Ab Manap 20887/CA
Siti Rahmah Binti Ismail 20665/CA
NEGERI SEMBILAN DARUL KHUSUS

Jelebu

Shahril Bin Yahaya 20715/CA
Senawang

Sivamaran A/L Seenivasan 20685/CA
Wong Siow Shen 20852/CA
Seremban

Fong Hui Hui 20779/CA
Mahmud Riadzi Bin Hj. Hashim 20873/CA
Wong Keng Keong 20866/CA
Zain Azrai Bin Zainal Abidin 20859/CA
PAHANG DARUL MAKMUR

Benta

Marzuki Bin Mohd Nor 20922/CA
Kuantan

Norlina Bt Mohamed Yusai 20783/CA
Seow Boon Hin 20812/CA
Tee Tai Win 20699/CA
PERAK DARUL RIDZUAN

Ipoh

Chan Kim Meng 20736/CA
Chang Puy Shyuan 20735/CA
Fadzilah Binti Zero 20671/CA

Goh Mei Lee 20927/CA
Koo Lee Ming 20723/CA
Soo Chee Ling 20892/CA
Wan Yuet Ting 20675/CA
Wong Sze Chien 20708/CA
PERLIS INDRA KAYANGAN

Arau

Hafizah Binti Dun 20664/CA
Normah Binti Ahmad 20950/AM
Kangar

Low Kheng Kiang 20730/CA
PULAU PINANG

Ayer Itam

Lim Shuh Yin 20854/CA
Tan Th’ng Nair 20802/CA
Bayan Baru

Chuah Kong Yoon 20733/CA
Bukit Mertajam

Joyce Chong Hooi Theen 20902/CA
Lim Geik Fong 20851/CA

Butterworth

Ong Woan-Jiun 20760/CA
Zarina Mohamad Razali 20806/CA

Gelugor

Lew Keng Yew 20743/CA
Wong Chiew Ching 20897/CA
Georgetown

Lim Yuh Jen 20808/CA
Penang

Ho Tin Tin 20809/CA
Oong Bee Tin 20800/CA
Pulau Pinang

Yeoh Eng Chong 20811/CA
Yeoh Gar Leng 20693/CA
Sungai Ara

Yu Mei June 20869/CA
Sungai Bakap

Tan Yong Yong 20896/CA
SABAH

Keningau

Tan Beng Fun 20738/CA
Kota Kinabalu

Assaffal @ Samsul Kamal Bin P. Alian 20924/CA
Betty Chung Syn Mee 20716/CA
Lee Khin Fong 20669/CA
Wong Wei Siang 20848/CA
Yong Rit Sin 20756/CA
Lahad Datu

Leong Chan Keong 20707/CA
Penampang

Rosliah Sigoh 20944/CA
Sandakan

Chia Li Foon 20849/CA
SARAWAK

Kuching

Lam Ko Liang 20807/CA

Laura Chuo Me Me 20670/CA
Law Yen Chui 20770/CA
Nuradylin Mary Abdullah 20703/CA
Tan Mui Ling 20836/CA
Wong Siaw Wei 20706/CA
Miri

Poh Yan Wei 20945/CA
SELANGOR DARUL EHSAN

Ampang

Chee Wai Yen 20899/CA
Choong Lee Lan 20842/CA
Oh Chin Mei 20938/CA
Ooi Pei Yeen 20921/CA
Shek Seng Foon 20666/CA
Siti Zaliha Binti Hanafi 20727/CA
Ampang Jaya

Mohamed Adlan Bin Ahmad Tajudin 20932/CA
Bandar Puchong Jaya

Chan Chee Hoe 20763/CA
Bangi

Abd Hassan Bin Mohmad 20712/CA
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Batu Caves

Fuzilawati Binti Mansor 20696/CA
Mohd Shupian Bin Ibrahim 20822/CA
Ong Chye Keaw 20939/CA
Zeti Azlida Binti Zakaria 20790/CA
Beranang

Hafizal Bin Ahmad 20797/CA
Cheras

Kow Wai Hoong 20793/CA
Yusasniza Binti Mohd Yunus 20814/CA
Low Pei Lai 20764/CA
Kajang

Goh Lik Sin 20719/CA
Lee Sow Kam 20810/CA
Maslina Bt Muhamad Yusof @ 20762/CA
   Kamarudin
Mohamed Lotfe Bin Bidin 20880/CA

Norlela Binti Abu Bakar 20688/CA
San Tuck Hoe 20698/CA
Wan Alimi Bin Wan Ismail 20875/CA
Wong Pow Yee 20702/CA
Kelang

Haritha D/O Sinniah 20694/CA
Klang

Azhana Binti Abu Bakar 20835/CA
Chan Chie Siong 20676/CA
Mathew Philip A/L Philip Koshy 20679/CA
Ng Poh Li 20884/CA
Ng Poh Tin 20674/CA
Ng Soon Aik 20878/CA
Parihah Binti Hasan 20687/CA
Tew Siew Chong 20729/CA
Petaling Jaya

Chay Wan Nee 20863/CA
Chin Suet Teng 20841/CA
Ching Yan Fen 20750/CA
Chong Meei Ling 20767/CA
Choo Wing Kong 20724/CA
Chung Tsung Yen 20731/CA
Eng Yik Sang 20695/CA
Faridah Binti Bakar Ali 20744/CA
Firman Ismie Che Wan 20711/CA
   Bin Che Ismail
Goh Sok Fun 20901/CA
Kee Meng Tang 20864/CA
Khaleefur Rahman 20741/CA
   K. M. Mohd Ibrahim
Lee Sook Yuin 20777/CA
Lim  Hou Hock 20920/CA

Ng Chong Keong 20717/CA
Ong Tze-Ming 20816/CA
Paramendran A/L Vijayaratnam 20941/CA
Premala A/P Ariaratnam 20794/CA
Retnendran A/L Sivagurunathan 20701/CA
Shak Tien Soong 20673/CA
Tan Seng Yap 20820/CA
Tee Chin Lee 20819/CA

Teoh Soon Tek 20874/CA
Theng Bee Han @ 20913/CA
   Theng Cheng Chee
Tong Soon Nan 20684/CA
Ung Cheng Kim 20929/CA
Wong Mei Yin 20926/CA
Yeoh Sheong Lee 20876/CA
Yeoh  Sheong Nern 20881/CA
Yong Sok Leng 20891/CA
Puchong

Khor Ben Jin 20905/CA
Leong Kin Keong 20725/CA
Tan Kai Hwa 20879/CA

Tee Chen Boon 20915/CA
Teoh Lee Koon 20720/CA
Rawang

Mariam Binti Mahat 20668/CA
Mohd Sofian Bin Kamaruddin 20935/CA
Sekinchan

Khoo Guan Kiat 20886/CA
Selangor

Ng Kok Wah 20791/CA
Yap See Woon 20898/CA
Seri Kembangan

Cheah Ming Huat 20774/CA
Mow Lok Hee 20865/CA
Shah Alam

Ezra Johan Bin Mohd Zin 20761/CA
Fathiyah Binti Mohamed Yahya 20857/CA

Law Phey Long 20718/CA
Mohd Azanuddin Bin Salleh 20847/CA
Shabariah Binti Ariffin 20672/CA
Siti Yusmani Binti Harun 20817/CA
Tan Sui Hean 20839/CA
Teoh Thean Yong 20942/CA
Wong Siew Min 20908/CA
Yeap Day Ngo 20786/CA
Sri Kembangan

Chai Kum Weng 20768/CA
Subang Jaya

Goh Teck Keong 20726/CA
Haslindah Binti Atan 20830/CA
Hifzul Hafiz Bin Amran 20680/CA
Mak Sok Jeng 20947/CA
Ng Fui Ing 20867/CA

Quek Siew Mee 20949/CA
Rosnan Bin Rosli 20677/CA
Tan Kee Huat 20771/CA
Yap Choon Seng 20766/CA
Subang Perdana

Leong Choi Poh 20825/CA
Sungai Buloh

Syahrom Bin Ahmad Sabri 20872/CA
Taman Tasik Semenyih

Rajoo A/L Ramasamy 20815/CA
UEP Subang Jaya

Chai Meng Choo 20745/CA

M E M B E R S ’  U P D AT E

Goh Pie Haw 20752/CA
Law Yin Ling 20704/CA
Teoh Teng Tenk 20916/CA
Teoh Teng Tenk 20916/CA
TERENGGANU DARUL IMAN

Kemamam

Abdul Halim Bin Abdul Ghani 20883/CA
Kuala Terengganu

Mohd Nordin Bin Mohd Ali 20784/CA
Wan Aimi Yusri Bin Wan Ismail 20710/CA
WILAYAH PERSEKUTUAN

Kepong

Tan  Swee Ing 20933/CA
Kuala Lumpur

Amy Ho Li Lian 20846/CA
Angeline Kee Hui Ling 20697/CA
Anita A/P Padmanathan 20722/CA
Azeman  Bin Miskah 20858/CA
Azizul Azman Bin Abd Shukor 20845/CA
Chai Yet Von 20780/CA
Chan Ching Ching 20861/CA
Chan Ming Poh 20734/CA
Chan  Soik Hui 20856/CA
Chen Fong Seng 20686/CA
Cheok Tuan Oon 20682/CA
Chong Kok Kiong 20769/CA
Choong Ee Lin 20925/CA
Chu Pai Sei 20907/CA

Chua Kah Yee 20692/CA
Fazlin  Binti Abu Hassan Shaari 20840/CA
Foo Pooi Ling 20689/CA
Gan Jze Tiong 20681/CA
Gan Wee Liang 20755/CA
Germain Chong Shin Foong 20749/CA
Goh Weng Yew 20789/CA
Gooi Boon Ui 20823/CA
Hafifi Zakiah Binti Mohammad 20910/CA
Hasni Bin Haji Mohamad Tayeb 20940/CA
Hiew Pey Fong 20877/CA
Ho See May 20900/CA
Hoh Wei Ling 20795/CA
Hoo Yan May 20792/CA
Hoo Yee Sing 20788/CA
Hooi Su Yin 20928/CA

Janendran A/L S Mariappen 20937/CA
Kelvin Chooi Lu Yeung 20691/CA
Kenny Huah San Loong 20870/CA
Kerk Su Ngee 20821/CA
Lau Cheong Koon 20713/CA
Lee Kong Meng 20832/CA
Lee Lisa 20721/CA
Lee Pui Kuan 20714/CA
Lee Zin Keat 20690/CA
Leong Wone Meng 20787/CA
Leong Wy Joon 20799/CA
Liew Soo Ying 20843/CA
Liew Yen Sim 20885/CA
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M E M B E R S ’  U P D AT E

Loh Kean Wooi 20798/CA
Loh Wee Peng 20663/CA
Lye Chee Eng 20871/CA
Mark Chooi Lu Shen 20923/CA
Mazmeen Bin Mohamed Razali 20837/CA
Mohd Suhaimi Bin Semon 20751/CA
Moniza Binti Abu Bakar 20914/CA
Mushana Azlan Bin Mustafa 20728/CA
Nor Asmawati Binti Ahmad Bakri 20801/CA
Noradlina  Binti Adnan 20919/CA
Norzahira Binti Hashim 20911/CA
Nurulhuda Binti Ali @ Abd. Manan 20868/CA
Puvan A/L Balachandran 20882/CA
Rudzi Bin Majeed @ Aziz 20796/CA
Satwant Singh Gill A/L 20931/CA
   Kartar Singh
Susanna Binti Mohd Yamin 20934/CA

Suze Seau Chuey 20838/CA
Syarizal Bin Maizan 20829/CA
Syed Mohd Khairul Anuar 20824/CA
   B Syed Mahamud
Tan Cor Vuan 20748/CA
Tan Guat Hong 20855/CA
Tan Hshioa Yuen 20742/CA
Tan See Fee 20746/CA
Tee Pui San 20860/CA
Teo Gek Li 20936/CA
Teo Hwee Kung 20782/CA
Wahida Binti Sharif f 20781/CA
Wai Siew Ling 20747/CA
Wan Chee Khei 20930/CA
Wan Choy Kien 20772/CA
Wendy Mok Wan Nee 20833/CA

Wong Chee Cheng 20773/CA
Wong Feng Yen 20826/CA
Wong Li Fong 20683/CA
Wong Soke Guan 20765/CA
Woon Lee Chuen 20943/CA
Yeap Kooi Hin 20895/CA
Yeoh Phee Han 20909/CA
Yeow Kok Weng 20844/CA
Yip Wei Yin 20862/CA
Yong Moon Lee 20778/CA
Yusleena Binti Abd Latif 20732/CA
Zulkarnain Bin Che Man 20785/CA
Labuan

Pua Hui Men 20759/CA
Labuan F T

Wee Ooi Lee 20804/CA

Pandan Perdana

Chow Huey Tze 20894/CA
SINGAPORE

Jasmine Lee Ping Ping 20753/CA
Lee Song Chang 20776/CA
Paul Wong Chiik Kiet 20754/CA
Khoo Kit Ming @ Ming Nam 20834/CA
Lidwina Lee Pi Hui 20709/CA

NON-AUDIT FIRMS
REGISTERED
WITH MIA
FROM 16 FEBRUARY 2003
UNTIL 28 FEBRUARY 2003

NON-AUDIT FIRM NAME NF NO

JOHOR DARUL TAKZIM

YK Chong & Associates 0343
61-B, Jalan Molek 3/10
Taman Molek
81100 Johor Bharu
Tel :  07-352 8478   Fax :  07-351 8478

SELANGOR DARUL EHSAN

Kuan & C0o. 0344
12-3, Jalan USJ 9/5Q,
Subang Business Centre
UEP Subang Jaya
47620 Subang Jaya
Tel :  03-8024 1180   Fax :  03-8024 1182

SW Lee & Associates 0345
Unit 277, Block A
Damansara Intan
1 Jalan SS 20/27,
47400 Petaling Jaya
Tel :  03-7726 3916   Fax :  03-7118 2887

S K Yap & Associates 0346
124, (First Floor)
Jalan SS 21/35,
Damansara Utama
47400 Petaling Jaya
Tel :  03-7710 2711   Fax :  03-7727 9132

BRIEFING FOR
PRACTITIONERS

We are pleased to inform practising
members on the third briefing to be

held at the MIA office on 9 May 2002 (Fri-
day). Details are as follows :

Venue : Main Boardroom, Dewan Akauntan
2 , Jalan Tun Sambanthan 3
Brickfields, Kuala Lumpur

Time : 5.00 p.m. to 8.00 p.m. (or earlier)

Interested members are required to

register with Shuhairah at 03-2279 9200

Ext 125 (e-mail :  shuhairah@mia.org.my)

from Practice Matters Department.

For this briefing, we are pleased to share

with our practitioners the following topics

:

a Revolutionary Solutions to a
Paperless Auditing System

The CCH Prosystem fx Engagement is
among some of the revolutionary solu-
tions that has been made available to
firms in the history of auditing. This en-
gagement system will assist the practi-
tioners in moving towards a totally
paperless environment, which will even-
tually help the practitioners to save up
to 70 per cent of time compared to con-
ducting an audit in a traditional environ-
ment. This heralded paperless binder
solution will assist your firm experience
greater productivity whilst saving on the
costs associated with producing, copy-
ing, storing and sending paper docu-
ments.  Above all ,  the latest CCH
ProSystem fx Engagement of fers greater
functionality and flexibility than ever be-
fore! Learn how you can store audit en-
gagement binders in an intuitive Win-
dows Explorer-style file room, obtain se-
cure online sign-of fs by user and re-
viewer, and view staf f members del-
egated to each assignment. What’s more,
find out how you can manage every en-
gagement document within this solution.

b Practice Continuation
Arrangement

In November 2002, there was an article
in Akauntan Nasional on the above issue.
This article has generated some interest
and curiosity especially among the sole
practitioners. Practitioners are interested
in the ways and means of “selling off” their
firm to another party within the frame-
work of the Institute’s Practice Continua-
tion Arrangement. Johnny Yong from the
Practice Matters Department of the Insti-
tute will be present to explain to our mem-
bers who are interested in this continua-
tion scheme. He will be elaborating on
details on how two firms can form plans
and make arrangements in the event of
the demise of the sole practitioner or due
to his or her incapacitation in running his/
her practice. The Practice Matters Depart-
ment will also touch on the procedures of
how firms can be valued for the purposes
of this arrangement with the intention that
at least a residue value will be eventually
assigned to the estate or to the
practitioner’s beneficiary. AN




